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  Statement of Financial Position 
 

 As at 31 March 2020 

  
     *As at 30 September 2019. 

 
 

USD USD

Assets Note 2020 2019*

Cash and cash equivalents 8 177,753,020 157,523,999

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in transferable securities 6,9 2,422,727,142 2,344,196,800

Investments in financial derivative assets 6,9 75,832,084 48,226,223

Due from broker 8 23,950,348 2,735,834

Subscriptions receivable 323,252 2,923,413

Interest, dividend and other receivables 6,084,569 3,594,919

Total assets 2,706,670,415 2,559,201,188

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in financial derivative liabilities 6,9 85,981,214 33,598,916

Bank overdraft 8 27,572,498 16,714,381

Due to broker 8 4,564,003 1,532,774

Redemption payable 1,984,103 9,136,712

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,029,609 3,612,923

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of  redeemable participating shares) 125,131,427 64,595,706

Net assets attributable to holders of  redeemable participating shares 2,581,538,988 2,494,605,482
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 Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 
 For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
     *For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

                                           

 
 

USD USD

Income Note 2020 2019*

Interest income 3 2,767,828 1,634,003

Dividend income 4 22,328,691 11,668,228

Net (loss)/gain from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 (418,814,847) 67,243,722

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange (223,668) 695,938

Other income 655,706 174,380

Net investment (loss)/income (393,286,290) 81,416,271

Expenses

Operating expenses:

Investment manager's fee 13 (4,910,728) (3,880,588)

Performance fee 13 (970) -

Other fees (3,745,321) (3,415,371)

Operating expenses before finance costs (8,657,019) (7,295,959)

Net (loss)/gain from operations before finance costs (401,943,309) 74,120,312

Withholding tax (2,904,100) (1,087,029)

Interest expenses 3 (1,506,077) (937,419)

Dividend expense 4 (2,179,632) (1,920,128)

Net (loss)/gain from operations after finance costs (408,533,118) 70,175,736

Other comprehensive gain/(loss)

Foreign currency translation 7,991,253 (10,676,509)

Total other comprehensive gain/(loss) 7,991,253 (10,676,509)

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (400,541,865) 59,499,227
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  Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 
 

  For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
 *For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

 

  Statement of Cash Flows 

 

  For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 

 

*For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

                                           

USD USD

2020 2019*

Balance at the beginning of the period 2,494,605,483 2,280,029,404

Net (loss)/gain from operations after finance costs (408,533,118) 70,175,736

Total other comprehensive gain/(loss) 7,991,253 (10,676,509)

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the period 818,379,216 332,359,860

Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the period (332,340,577) (343,661,610)

Anti-dilution levy 1,436,731 904,707

Balance at the end of the period 2,581,538,988 2,329,131,588

USD USD

Operating activities 2020 2019*

Net (loss)/gain from operations after finance costs during the period (408,533,118) 70,575,302

Adjustments for:

Net loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 418,814,847 (67,243,722)

Net (receipts)/payments from trading activities (465,004,304) 4,290,743

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest, dividend and other receivables (21,107,651) (2,981,731)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,718,553) (1,030,594)

Cash flows (used in)/provided by operating activities (478,548,779) 3,609,998

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 818,374,480 332,359,861

Payments on redemption of shares (332,334,902) (343,661,611)

Anti-dilution levy 1,435,795 904,671

Cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 487,475,373 (10,397,079)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period 8,926,594 (9,787,081)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 140,809,618 98,894,138

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 444,310 (1,247,520)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 150,180,522 87,859,537

Cash represented by

Cash and cash equivalents 177,753,020 100,770,051

Bank overdraft (27,572,498) (12,910,514)

Supplementary information

Interest received 2,767,244 1,676,108

Dividend received 22,205,125 15,556,704

Interest paid 1,507,135 767,843

Dividend paid 2,038,604 2,491,916

Withholding tax paid 3,231,290 1,209,892

USD USD

Operating activities 2020 2019*

Net (loss)/gain from operations after finance costs during the period (408,533,120) 70,575,302

Adjustments for:

Net loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 418,814,847 (67,243,722)

Net (receipts)/payments from trading activities (465,004,302) 4,290,743

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest, dividend and other receivables (21,107,651) (2,981,731)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,718,553) (1,030,594)

Cash flows (used in)/provided by operating activities (478,548,779) 3,609,998

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 818,374,480 332,359,861

Payments on redemption of shares (332,334,902) (343,661,611)

Anti-dilution levy 1,435,795 904,671

Cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 487,475,373 (10,397,079)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period 8,926,594 (9,787,081)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 140,809,618 98,894,138

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 444,310 (1,247,520)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 150,180,522 87,859,537

Cash represented by

Cash and cash equivalents 177,753,020 100,770,051

Bank overdraft (27,572,498) (12,910,514)

Supplementary information

Interest received 2,767,244 1,676,108

Dividend received 22,205,125 15,556,704

Interest paid 1,507,135 767,843

Dividend paid 2,038,604 2,491,916

Withholding tax paid 3,231,290 1,209,892
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Investment Manager’s Report – Unaudited  

 

1st October 2019 to 31st March 2020 

 

Market environment 

 

During the period in review the economic and market backdrop continued to be dominated by the tumults of Sino-American 

trade negotiations, with bleed into economic sentiment and continued weaker macro data through most of the quarter. Signs of 

a “phase one” trade deal the US and China, and a resounding Conservative UK election victory lowered the probability of worst 

case outcomes and acted as a meaningful tailwind for risk assets in December. Central banks continued to respond dovishly too 

providing support for risk assets. The turn of the year brought focus on the emerging Covid-19 virus outbreak in China and the 

sharp drop in domestic activity as strict containment measures were put in place to inhibit its spread. The prognosis worsened 

through March as the infection spread across Europe and the Americas with the WHO officially labelling it a pandemic. 

Sentiment capitulated as investors began to appreciate the likely duration and severity of virus countermeasures and 

ramifications for corporate earnings and global economic growth.  Risk assets such as equities and lower grade credit 

experienced moves not seen since the financial crisis and a dramatic explosion in volatility. This was exacerbated by Saudi 

Arabia’s announcement of a material increase in oil supply, representing an aggressive oil price war which drove oil prices and 

inflation expectations sharply lower. Government bonds performed well as investors de-risked. Central banks became 

increasingly dovish as the quarter progressed with significant (and in some instances) unprecedented fiscal and monetary 

stimulus enacted to stem the damage. Equities and lower grade credit realised meaningful negative returns over the period. High 

quality government bonds finished the period meaningfully up while investment grade bonds also delivered a positive return, 

supported by the announcement of a corporate bond purchase program. US dollar (USD) finished the period up at the expense 

of most other currencies. 

 

Performance 

 

The Fund delivered an absolute negative return of -15.90% over the reporting period to end March (on a gross of fees basis). 

 

The key detractors from performance over the period were the Fund’s short position in US dollar (USD) amid widespread risk 

aversion and de-risking. Long positions in more trade-sensitive, and commodity sensitive currencies such as Swedish krone 

(SEK) and Norwegian krona (NOK), and Mexican peso (MXN) also detracted.. Key positive contributions to performance over 

the reporting period came from the Fund’s long position in Japanese yen (JPY) in addition to short positions in Canadian dollar 

(CAD) and Thai baht (THB).  

 

Outlook 

 

CARS retains short exposures in USD and the developed market commodity currencies of Australian dollar (AUD), New 

Zealand dollar (NZD), and Canadian dollar (CAD). We remain constructive on European (in particular Norwegian krone (NOK) 

and Swedish krona (SEK)), and Latin American currencies. We remain constructive on Japanese yen (JPY) but this long ‘safe 

haven’ exposure is largely offset by short positions in Swiss franc (CHF) and US dollar (USD). JPY remains materially cheap 

(which is unusual given we’re in a global recession). As a significant energy importer, Japan should benefit from recent oil 

market dynamics and improve Japan's trade balance position which tends to be associated with JPY strength. While we may 

see further bouts of risk-aversion we don't expect a material surge in USD at least relative to other flight-to-safety currencies. 

The Fed’s establishment (and then broadening) of swap lines across more central banks should have a material impact here thus 

we see less of a risk of further deleveraging and a USD liquidity squeeze going forward. While the US has enacted the most 

material policy response, risk factors such as economic disparity and a limited public health service mean we expect the US to 

be the epicenter for Covid-19, with the dollar remaining materially overvalued. CAD looks marginally cheap relative to USD 

but expensive relative to most other currencies with this position helping negative any positive oil factor exposure within the 

portfolio through long MXN and NOK – relative to these currencies we view CAD as having underreacted to recent news flow. 

While NOK does have positive sensitivity to the global growth outlook and oil prices, we retain conviction in this position 

perceiving recent price moves to represent an overshoot with NOK being materially undervalued, even after accounting for the 

change in macro environment. 

 

 

 

 

 
Historical performance is no indicator of current or future performance. 

The performance data does not take account of any commissions and costs charged when subscribing and redeeming shares. 
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Statement of Financial Position 

 
As at 31 March 2020 

 
 

 
 

*As at 30 September 2019. 
 

GBP GBP

Assets Note 2020 2019*

Cash and cash equivalents 8 50,757,674 44,215,399

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in transferable securities 6,9 296,051,753 357,245,672

Investments in financial derivative assets 6,9 28,588,929 5,072,176

Subscriptions receivable 24,692 41,145

Interest, dividend and other receivables 177,267 88,319

Total assets 375,600,315 406,662,711

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value throug profit or loss:

Investments in financial derivative liabilities 6,9 56,920,586 18,622,160

Bank overdraft 8 791,079 2,926

Due to broker 8 14 19

Redemption payable 111,895 36,378

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13 918,462 612,596

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares) 58,742,036 19,274,079

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 316,858,279 387,388,632

Net assets per Class (GBP) J-acc Shares GBP 129.49 153.97

Number of Class (GBP) J-acc shares in issue 210,419.51 210,916.60

Net assets per Class (GBP) I-A1-acc Shares GBP 105.74 126.13

Number of Class (GBP) I-A1-acc shares in issue 488,284.85 434,040.44

Net assets per Class (USD) I-B-acc Shares USD 85.91 100.37

Number of Class (USD) I-B-acc shares in issue 172,345.26 163,321.26

Net assets per Class (GBP) Q-acc Shares GBP 83.66 99.84

Number of Class (GBP) Q-acc shares in issue 208,576.25 54,879.65

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-A1-acc Shares EUR 82.13 98.08

Number of Class (EUR) I-A1-acc shares in issue 62,339.34 87,704.87

Net assets per Class (EUR hedged) Q-acc Shares EUR 75.92 90.72

Number of Class (EUR Hedged) Q-acc shares in issue 46,235.11 117,118.89

Net assets per Class (GBP) Class U-B-acc Shares GBP 83,188.03 98,912.54

Number of Class (GBP) Class U-B-acc shares in issue 835.65 1,095.65

Net assets per Class (SEK hedged) I-A1-acc Shares SEK 599.25 717.75

Number of Class (SEK Hedged) I-A1-acc shares in issue 172,793.59 170,056.93

Net assets per Class (SEK hedged) I-A3-acc Shares SEK 566.44 678.11

Number of Class (SEK Hedged) I-A3-acc shares in issue 1,289,239.57 1,307,584.21

Net assets per Class (SEK hedged) P-acc Shares SEK 561.62 675.54

Number of Class (SEK Hedged) P-acc shares in issue 1,372,313.58 1,146,815.76

Net assets per Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc Shares EUR 79.54 94.94

Number of Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc shares in issue 10,008.31 89.00

Net assets per Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc Shares USD 84.09 98.60

Number of Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc shares in issue 3,098.56 110,000.00
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 
For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
*For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 
 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
*For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

GBP GBP

Income Note 2020 2019*

Interest income 3 2,109,221 727,394

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 (68,635,649) (2,103,119)

Net loss on foreign exchange (28,775) (14,874)

Other income 18,652 -

Net investment loss (66,536,551) (1,390,599)

Expenses

Operating expenses:

Investment manager's fee 13 (1,093,316) (182,179)

Other fees (304,549) (185,690)

Operating expenses before finance costs (1,397,865) (367,869)

Net loss from operations before finance costs (67,934,416) (1,758,468)

Interest expenses 3 (1,070,589) (104,549)

Change in net assets attributable to holders redeemable particiapting shares (69,005,005) (1,863,017)

GBP GBP

2020 2019*

Balance at the beginning of the period 387,388,631 145,255,855

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period (69,005,005) (1,863,017)

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the period 85,090,715 52,972,666

Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the period (86,628,353) (5,550,655)

Anti-dilution levy 12,291 6,113

Balance at the end of the period 316,858,279 190,820,962
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Statement of Cash Flows 

 
For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
 

*For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

GBP GBP

Operating activities 2020 2019*

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period (69,005,005) (1,836,017)

Adjustments for:

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 68,635,649 2,103,119

Net payment/(receipts) from trading activities 7,339,943 (45,042,450)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest, dividend and other receivables (72,495) 601,021

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 381,377 51,713

Cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities 7,279,469 (44,122,614)

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 85,090,715 52,972,666

Payments on redemption of shares (86,628,353) (5,550,655)

Anti-dilution levy 12,291 6,113

Cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities (1,525,347) 47,428,124

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the period 5,754,122 3,278,510

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 44,212,473 14,586,283

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 49,966,595 17,864,793

Cash represented by

Cash and cash equivalents 50,757,674 17,876,534

Bank overdraft (791,079) (11,741)

Supplementary information

Interest received 2,109,221 852,339

Interest paid 1,071,413 104,549
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 

 

  
 

Financial derivative instruments 
 

 
 

 

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
S o v e re i g n  B o n d s  S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  GB P N e t  A s s e t s

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

Uk Treasury Bill Gbp 0.000% 04/ 20/ 20 30,000,000                                                         29,996,549                                             9.46                                  

Uk Treasury Bill Gbp 0.000% 05/ 11/ 20 30,000,000                                                         29,992,991                                              9.46                                  

Uk Treasury Bill Gbp 0.000% 04/ 27/ 20 30,000,000                                                         29,995,340                                             9.46                                  

Uk Treasury Bill Gbp 0.000% 06/ 01/ 20 65,000,000                                                         64,977,729                                             20.50                              

Uk Treasury Bill Gbp 0.000% 05/ 26/ 20 70,000,000                                                         69,978,412                                              22.08                              

Uk Tsy 3 3/ 4% 2020 3.750% 09/ 07/ 20 70,000,000                                                         71,110,732                                                22.44                              

To t a l  s o v e re i g n  b o n d s  2 9 6 , 0 5 1, 7 5 3             9 3 . 4 0          

To t a l  t ra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 2 9 6 , 0 5 1, 7 5 3             9 3 . 4 0          

Fo r e i g n  c u r r e n c y  f o r w a r d  c o n t r a c t s  

  Tr a d e  r a t e  a n d U n r e a l i s e d  Ga i n % o f

C u r r e n c y  S o l d C u r r e n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e r p a r t y i n  GB P N e t  A s s e t s

AUD (36,520,000)                                     GBP 60,879,489                                  1.9930 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 1,021,492                                                   0.32                                  

AUD (78,580,000)                                     J P Y 6,122,617,200                          0.0150 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 586,685                                                       0.19                                   

BRL (229,010,000)                                  US D 24,175,000                                   4.8590 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 1,258,677                                                  0.40                                  

BRL (19,640,000)                                      US D 6,071,852                                       5.0660 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Ba nk P lc 121,080                                                         0.04                                  

BRL (133,532,894)                                  US D 7,373,309                                      4.9530 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 276,333                                                       0.09                                  

CAD (5,005,000)                                         CHF 53,497,264                                  1.4690 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 109,738                                                        0.03                                  

CAD (157,955,000)                                  GBP 133,801,834                                1.7120 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 4,076,188                                                  1.29                                   

CAD (5,860,000)                                         GBP 11,367,114                                      1.7280 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 241,785                                                        0.08                                  

CAD (20,222,387,500)                       US D 96,695,000                                  1.3810 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 2,306,969                                                 0.73                                  

CHF (4,735,902,360)                           GBP 4,302,223                                      1.1630 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 127,523                                                        0.04                                  

CHF (3,854,845,500)                           GBP 136,005,132                                1.1610 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 4,253,932                                                 1.34                                   

CHF (48,830,238,000)                       GBP 4,974,754                                      1.1780 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 86,893                                                           0.03                                  

CLP (644,200)                                               US D 24,175,000                                   836.5000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 349,949                                                       0.11                                    

CLP (9,100,000)                                          US D 5,560,000                                      851.7810 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 78                                                                         -                                     

CLP (405,600)                                               US D 4,605,000                                      837.1000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 64,046                                                           0.02                                  

COP (736,000)                                               US D 12,346,457                                   3955.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 271,445                                                        0.09                                  

EUR (5,736,203)                                         GBP 575,110                                              1.1200 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4,842                                                               -                                     

EUR (1,293,995)                                          GBP 8,227,901                                       1.1060 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 172,262                                                        0.05                                  

EUR (1,545,881)                                           GBP 378,867                                            1.0710 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S re e t  19,815                                                             0.01                                   

EUR (286,492)                                               GBP 675,787                                            1.0890 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S re e t  24,254                                                           0.01                                   

GBP (22,913,150,000)                         MXN 168,650,000                               0.0340 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 41,239                                                            0.01                                   

GBP (425,900,000)                                 S EK 16,134,500                                    0.0800 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 19,392                                                            0.01                                   

GBP (1,300,000,000)                            S EK 19,066,700                                   0.0810 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 6,194                                                                -                                     

GBP (1,275,600,000)                            US D 355,800                                            0.8050 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 328                                                                     -                                     

HUF (210,410,000)                                   GBP 60,988,636                                  375.6950 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba rc la ys Ba nk P lc 4,770,694                                                 1.51                                    

J P Y (131,250,000)                                   CHF 3,818,532                                       111.5350 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 1,427                                                                -                                     

J P Y (160,860,000)                                  GBP 10,121,361                                      128.4410 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 403,768                                                       0.13                                   

J P Y (125,000,000)                                  GBP 9,891,696                                       128.9570 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 356,495                                                       0.11                                    

MXN (163,030,000)                                  GBP 7,645,965                                      27.5190 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 437,951                                                        0.14                                   

MXN (24,970,800)                                     GBP 4,698,319                                       27.9360 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 202,088                                                       0.06                                  

MXN (1,906,000)                                          GBP 5,526,544                                      29.1070 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS 15,964                                                            0.01                                   

NOK (34,700,000)                                     GBP 9,882,221                                       12.6490 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 285,201                                                        0.09                                  

NZD (123,337,600)                                  GBP 80,049,808                                  2.0370 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S re e t  2,149,166                                                   0.68                                  

S EK (2,153,200)                                          GBP 2,075,079                                      12.0340 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 42,395                                                           0.01                                   

S EK (2,966,100)                                          GBP 155,158                                              12.2840 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5                                                                             -                                     

S EK (50,000,000)                                     GBP 2,882,970                                      12.0360 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 58,307                                                           0.02                                  

S EK (66,996,700)                                     GBP 10,186,162                                     12.1080 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 146,184                                                         0.05                                  

S EK (72,110,000)                                       GBP 179,698                                             11.9820 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 4,422                                                               -                                     

S EK (4,199,930,000)                            GBP 247,481                                             11.9850 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 6,033                                                               -                                     

S EK (1,029,800)                                          GBP 4,111,514                                          12.1610 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 41,394                                                            0.01                                   

S EK (581,700)                                                GBP 5,658,161                                        11.8410 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y 204,468                                                       0.06                                  

S EK (10,405,000)                                      GBP 6,032,562                                      11.9530 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS 162,634                                                        0.05                                  

THB (4,605,000)                                         GBP 106,168,761                                 39.5590 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS 2,884,142                                                  0.91                                   

US D (11,395,000)                                       GBP 881,788                                             1.1680 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA 51,639                                                            0.02                                  

US D (41,480,000)                                      GBP 504,428                                            1.1530 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 35,504                                                           0.01                                   

US D (110,044,082,850)                     GBP 8,750,846                                      1.1890 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 363,101                                                         0.11                                    

US D -                                                                 GBP 3,837,355                                      1.2000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 125,144                                                         0.04                                  

US D -                                                                 GBP 9,301,214                                        1.2250 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 115,404                                                         0.04                                  

US D -                                                                 GBP 33,722,381                                   1.2300 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA 284,260                                                       0.08                                  

To t a l  f o r e i g n  c u r r e n c y  f o r w a r d  c o n t r a c t s  2 8 , 5 8 8 , 9 2 9               9 . 0 3             

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t r u m e n t s 2 8 , 5 8 8 , 9 2 9               9 . 0 3

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h r o u g h  p r o f i t  o r  l o s s 3 2 4 , 6 4 0 , 6 8 2             10 2 . 4 3
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Financial derivative instruments  
 

 
 

Fo r e i g n  c u r r e n c y  f o r w a r d  c o n t r a c t s
Tr a d e  r a t e  a n d U n r e a l i s e d  Lo s s e s % o f

C u r r e n c y  S o l d C u r r e n c y  B o u g h t D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e r p a r t y i n  GB P N e t  A s s e t s
CHF (90,735,000)                                     J P Y 10,018,867,965                      0.0090 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (790,845)                                                    (0.25)                               

CLP (8,652,060,000)                           US D 10,155,000                                    852.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,963)                                                             -                                     

CLP (8,110,300,000)                             US D 9,505,186                                       853.2500 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (13,082)                                                         -                                     

COP (16,979,642,000)                        US D 4,121,272                                        4120.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (44,214)                                                         (0.01)                                

COP (197,751,500,000)                     US D 48,350,000                                  4090.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (231,124)                                                      (0.07)                               

COP (27,583,730,000)                       US D 6,686,965                                      4125.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (78,368)                                                        (0.02)                               

COP (33,300,000,000)                       US D 7,985,612                                       4170.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (164,835)                                                     (0.05)                               

EUR (57,965,000)                                     US D 62,692,046                                  0.9250 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (774,937)                                                    (0.24)                               

GBP (7,170,048)                                          AUD 14,405,000                                   0.4980 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS (61,896)                                                         (0.02)                               

GBP (4,994,045)                                         AUD 10,005,000                                   0.4990 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS (57,074)                                                        (0.02)                               

GBP (8,224,428)                                         CAD 14,000,000                                   0.5870 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (293,949)                                                    (0.09)                               

GBP (8,336,042)                                         CAD 14,005,000                                   0.5950 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (402,730)                                                    (0.13)                                

GBP (4,988,795)                                         CAD 8,490,000                                      0.5880 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (179,526)                                                     (0.06)                               

GBP (6,835,782)                                         CAD 11,735,000                                    0.5830 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (188,341)                                                      (0.06)                               

GBP (4,872,735)                                         CHF 5,650,000                                      0.8620 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (160,037)                                                     (0.05)                               

GBP (6,390,229)                                         CHF 7,345,000                                      0.8700 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (263,721)                                                     (0.08)                               

GBP (8,301,409)                                          CHF 9,660,000                                      0.8590 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (243,946)                                                    (0.08)                               

GBP (11,451,788)                                        CHF 13,100,000                                    0.8740 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (525,000)                                                    (0.17)                                

GBP (282,164)                                                EUR 311,000                                              0.9070 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6,856)                                                            -                                     

GBP (70,419,903)                                      EUR 77,221,800                                   0.9120 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba rc la ys Ba nk P lc (2,060,464)                                              (0.65)                               

GBP (335,734)                                               EUR 368,200                                            0.9120 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (9,790)                                                            -                                     

GBP (7,110,963)                                           HUF 2,693,450,000                        0.0030 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA (502,521)                                                     (0.16)                                

GBP (4,669,474)                                         HUF 1,789,200,000                         0.0030 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS (279,630)                                                    (0.09)                               

GBP (133,062,959)                                  J P Y 17,316,900,000                      0.0080 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (3,617,893)                                               (1.14)                                 

GBP (9,924,842)                                         J P Y 1,315,900,000                          0.0080 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S re e t  (88,395)                                                        (0.03)                               

GBP (117,047,117)                                     MXN 3,153,350,000                         0.0370 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9,022,820)                                              (2.85)                               

GBP (209,281,327)                                  NOK 2,635,490,000                        0.0790 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (6,938,523)                                              (2.19)                                

GBP (7,101,060)                                           NZD 14,500,000                                   0.4900 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (172,523)                                                     (0.05)                               

GBP (246,189,094)                                  S EK 2,926,892,900                        0.0840 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7,932,949)                                              (2.50)                               

GBP (5,109,236)                                          S EK 60,988,200                                  0.0840 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit iba nk NA (144,649)                                                     (0.05)                               

GBP (3,225,184)                                          S EK 38,982,900                                  0.0830 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (51,882)                                                         (0.02)                               

GBP (15,800,950)                                      THB 607,980,000                              0.0260 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Ba nk P lc (849,514)                                                     (0.27)                               

GBP (377,475)                                               US D 458,500                                            0.8230 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Ba nk P lc (7,866)                                                            -                                     

GBP (12,060,062)                                      US D 14,833,500                                   0.8130 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (102,387)                                                     (0.03)                               

GBP (2,371,603)                                          US D 2,800,000                                      0.8470 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (114,450)                                                      (0.04)                               

GBP (457,766)                                               US D 562,000                                            0.8150 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (4,723)                                                            -                                     

GBP (8,653,991)                                          US D 10,465,000                                   0.8270 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (217,879)                                                     (0.07)                               

MYR (52,319,475)                                      US D 12,090,000                                   4.3280 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba rc la ys Ba nk P lc (35,468)                                                        (0.01)                                

MYR (21,645,038)                                      US D 4,845,000                                      4.4680 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (141,027)                                                      (0.04)                               

NOK (118,550,000)                                   GBP 9,074,434                                      13.0640 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (27,380)                                                        (0.01)                                

S EK (30,360,000)                                     CAD 4,321,080                                       7.0260 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (23,646)                                                        (0.01)                                

US D (100,000,000)                                  BRL 468,540,000                              0.2130 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Ba nk P lc (7,900,597)                                              (2.49)                               

US D (110,241,332)                                    CLP 92,046,000,000                    0.0010 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morga n Cha se  Ba nk, NA (1,757,528)                                               (0.55)                               

US D (203,628,540)                                 COP 778,553,359,000                0.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Ba rc la ys Ba nk P lc (9,789,931)                                               (3.09)                               

US D (50,404,619)                                      MYR 213,892,000                               0.2360 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morga n S t a nle y (643,707)                                                    (0.20)                               

To t a l  f o r e i g n  c u r r e n c y  f o r w a r d  c o n t r a c t s  ( 5 6 , 9 2 0 , 5 8 6 )             ( 17 . 9 4 )         

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t r u m e n t s ( 5 6 , 9 2 0 , 5 8 6 )             ( 17 . 9 4 )         

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  l i a b i l i t i e s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h r o u g h  p r o f i t  o r  l o s s ( 5 6 , 9 2 0 , 5 8 6 )             ( 17 . 9 4 )         

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t  

i n  GB P A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 2 6 7 , 7 2 0 , 0 9 6             8 4 . 4 9          

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 4 9 , 13 8 , 18 3                15 . 5 1           

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  3 16 , 8 5 8 , 2 7 9             10 0 . 0 0        

% o f  To t a l  

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  a s s e t s A s s e t s

Tr a n s f e r r a b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t r a d e d  o n  a  r e g u l a t e d  m a r k e t 2 9 6 , 0 5 1, 7 5 3             7 8 . 8 2          

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t r u m e n t s 2 8 , 5 8 8 , 9 2 9               7 . 6 1             

D e p o s i t s 5 0 , 7 5 7 , 6 7 4               13 . 5 1           

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 2 0 1, 9 5 9                      0 . 0 5             

To t a l  a s s e t s 3 7 5 , 6 0 0 , 3 15             10 0 . 0 0        
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 
 

 
Financial derivative instruments 
 

  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Financial derivative instruments 
 

  
 

 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

S o ve re ig n  B o n d s   S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s  in  G B P N e t  A s s e t s

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Uk Tsy 4  3 /4%  2020  4 .750%  03 /07 /20 28 ,200 ,000                                            28 ,707 ,696                                7 .41                                            

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  02 /17 /20 50 ,000 ,000                                            49 ,858 ,282                                12 .86                                          

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  10 /07 /19 30 ,000 ,000                                            29 ,996 ,870                                7 .74                                           

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  10 /28 /19 23 ,000 ,000                                            22 ,987 ,525                                5 .93                                           

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  11/11/19 27 ,000 ,000                                            26 ,977 ,477                                6 .96                                           

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  12 /02 /19 49 ,000 ,000                                            48 ,937 ,694                                12 .63                                          

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  12 /09 /19 100 ,000 ,000                                           99 ,858 ,274                                25 .77                                         

Uk Tre a su ry Bill G bp  0 .000%  12 /16 /19 50 ,000 ,000                                            49 ,921,854                                 12 .89                                          

To t a l s o ve re ig n  b o n d s  3 5 7 ,2 4 5 ,6 7 2               9 2 .2 0                         

To t a l  t ra n s fe rra b le  s e c u rit ie s  a d mit t e d  t o  o ffic ia l  s t o c k e xc h a n g e  l is t in g  o r t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u la t e d  ma rke t 3 5 7 ,2 4 5 ,6 7 2               9 2 .2 0                         

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Ga i n % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  GB P N e t  A s s e t s
NZD (279,485,000)                     GBP 144,209,311                             1.9381 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Morgan S t anley 2,039,941                                                   0.53                                                                

HUF (55,116,400,000)             US D 182,625,580                           301.8000 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc 1,241,387                                                    0.32                                                                

AUD (126,080,000)                      GBP 69,875,424                              1.8044 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Morgan S t anley 876,784                                                        0.23                                                                

CHF (181,445,000)                       GBP 148,213,115                              1.2242 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc 437,647                                                        0.11                                                                  

GBP (19,094,993)                          J P Y 2,574,500,000                    0.0074 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 245,290                                                        0.06                                                                

GBP (22,157,552)                          US D 27,538,400                              0.8046 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc 173,258                                                         0.04                                                                

AUD (18,210,000)                           GBP 10,002,768                               1.8205 : 10/ 17/ 2019 West pack Banking Corpora t ion 37,150                                                             0.01                                                                 

S EK (29,618,300)                          GBP 2,458,296                                  12.0483 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 12,651                                                              -                                                                   

EUR (635,100)                                    GBP 568,690                                        1.1168 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 6,472                                                                -                                                                   

GBP (251,717)                                     S EK 3,057,900                                  0.0823 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 781                                                                       -                                                                   

EUR (377,900)                                   GBP 335,273                                        1.1271 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 740                                                                      -                                                                   

EUR (35,000)                                       GBP 31,035                                             1.1278 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 51                                                                           -                                                                   

EUR (36,400)                                       GBP 32,249                                            1.1287 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 27                                                                          -                                                                   

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  5 , 0 7 2 , 17 6                   1. 3 0                            

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 5 , 0 7 2 , 17 6                   1. 3 0

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s 3 6 2 , 3 17 , 8 4 8              9 3 . 5 0

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s

Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  GB P N e t  A s s e t s

GBP (165,963)                                    S EK 2,008,600                                  0.0826 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (109)                                                                    -                                                                   

EUR (34,000)                                       GBP 29,967                                            1.1346 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (132)                                                                    -                                                                   

GBP (196,190)                                     S EK 2,354,800                                  0.0833 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (1,749)                                                              -                                                                   

GBP (11,531,467)                            EUR 13,010,000                                0.8864 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  (14,457)                                                          -                                                                   

NZD (32,215,000)                          GBP 16,371,786                                1.9677 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (15,449)                                                          -                                                                   

GBP (11,885,758)                           MXN 289,850,000                          0.0410 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (17,462)                                                          -                                                                   

GBP (11,878,570)                           S EK 143,420,000                           0.0828 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (36,080)                                                         (0.01)                                                              

GBP (30,217,667)                          S EK 365,263,600                          0.0827 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (57,086)                                                         (0.01)                                                              

GBP (19,002,542)                          NOK 212,210,000                            0.0895 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (57,304)                                                         (0.01)                                                              

CHF (14,850,000)                          GBP 11,988,609                                1.2387 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc (105,776)                                                      (0.03)                                                             

US D (86,477,969)                         MYR 361,132,000                            0.2395 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc (111,930)                                                        (0.03)                                                             

THB (652,210,000)                      GBP 17,078,478                               38.1890 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc (211,741)                                                        (0.05)                                                             

GBP (221,668,317)                       J P Y 29,463,000,000                0.0075 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Cit ibank NA (334,952)                                                     (0.09)                                                             

THB (5,391,030,000)                GBP 142,563,269                           37.8150 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc (354,027)                                                     (0.09)                                                             

CAD (40,070,000)                         GBP 24,187,711                                 1.6566 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (360,166)                                                      (0.09)                                                             

US D (34,430,000)                         COP 116,614,410,000                0.0003 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc (376,724)                                                     (0.10)                                                              

GBP (67,344,773)                         NOK 748,520,000                          0.0900 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (519,977)                                                      (0.13)                                                              

US D (98,620,000)                         GBP 79,350,207                              1.2428 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc (620,467)                                                     (0.16)                                                              

CAD (233,170,000)                      GBP 142,146,848                            1.6403 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (698,880)                                                     (0.18)                                                              

GBP (86,720,331)                          EUR 97,034,800                              0.8937 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  (820,963)                                                     (0.21)                                                              

CAD (241,280,000)                      NOK 1,632,330,378                     0.1478 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (1,043,177)                                                 (0.27)                                                             

US D (185,000,074)                      BRL 754,360,000                          0.2452 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (1,670,110)                                                  (0.43)                                                             

GBP (148,354,447)                      MXN 3,572,820,000                    0.0415 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc (2,060,547)                                               (0.53)                                                             

US D (360,352,266)                     COP 1,218,603,258,000        0.0003 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc (4,165,335)                                                (1.08)                                                              

GBP (269,514,385)                      S EK 3,203,828,400                    0.0841 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  (4,967,564)                                               (1.28)                                                              

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  ( 18 , 6 2 2 , 16 0 )               ( 4 . 7 8 )                          

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s ( 18 , 6 2 2 , 16 0 )               ( 4 . 7 8 )                          

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  l i a b i l i t i e s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s ( 18 , 6 2 2 , 16 0 )               ( 4 . 7 8 )                          

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t

i n  GB P A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 3 4 3 , 6 9 5 , 6 8 8             8 8 . 7 2                         

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 4 3 , 6 9 2 , 9 4 4                11. 2 8                          

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  3 8 7 , 3 8 8 , 6 3 2             10 0 . 0 0                       

% o f  To t a l

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  n e t  a s s e t s A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 3 5 7 , 2 4 5 , 6 7 2             8 7 . 8 5                         

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 5 , 0 7 2 , 17 6                   1. 2 5                            

D e p o s i t s 4 4 , 2 15 , 3 9 9                10 . 8 7                          

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 12 9 , 4 6 4                       0 . 0 3                            

To t a l  a s s e t s 4 0 6 , 6 6 2 , 7 11              10 0 . 0 0                       
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Investment Manager’s Report – Unaudited 

 

1st October 2019 to 31st March 2020 

 

Market environment 

After one of the longest bull markets in history, equities entered a bear market in Q1 2020, following a rise in the COVID-19 

infection rates and death rates globally. The virus outbreak dominated headlines not only because of its impact on financial 

markets but also due to its social implications, with restrictions on travel, closures of schools and shops and the strain on 

healthcare systems. We saw disruptions to supply chains and a cut back in consumer spending, especially on travel, 

entertainment and dining. In response, the US announced a USD2tn stimulus package, the largest the country has seen, as well 

as unlimited quantitative easing. In Europe, the ECB announced a EUR750bn bond purchasing scheme as part of its Pandemic 

Emergency Purchase Program (PEPP). Many countries around the world equally reacted with a mix of fiscal and monetary 

stimulus measures to help stabilise growth and boost liquidity. Defensive sectors such as health care and consumer staples 

suffered the least losses as a result of the 'flight to safety'. On the other hand, the energy sector came under pressure due to the 

collapse in the oil price while financials, real estate and industrials were among the worst performers. 

 

Performance 

The Equity Opportunity Long Short fund posted a positive absolute return of 5.2% (gross in EUR) over the six months to end 

March. Positive contribution from the short book outweighed the negative contribution from the long book. The short book 

was driven by consumer discretionary, where shares in an airport retailer fell after the company reported a significant decline 

in sales, while shares in an automobile manufacturer were weak on the back of profitability and demand issues. We also 

benefited from our shorts in real estate, energy, communication services and industrials. Some of this was offset by the long 

book, which on the whole was impacted by the sharp sell-off in the equity market. Our long positions in the energy sector 

were negatively impacted by the oil price volatility while a number of our holdings in financials fell on the back of the prospect 

of lower yields for longer. Additionally, our longs in communication services and industrials weighed on performance. 

 

Outlook 

As containment measures surrounding the coronavirus unfold, we expect to face a short but sharp global recession caused by 

delays in consumer purchases and industrial capex, as well as disruptions to global supply chains. We also expect earnings to 

fall in the near term and, in sectors such as energy, travel and leisure, losses will be unavoidable. Markets will continue to be 

volatile in the near term. 

 

While this sounds ominous, central banks and governments around the world have been providing unprecedented levels of 

supportive measures to the economy much earlier than the efforts seen in late-2008. Fiscal stimulus as a percentage of GDP 

already exceeds that of the Global Financial Crisis. We think that these measures will help to limit credit losses to moderate 

levels and provide a strong boost to demand.  

 

The path of the pandemic is uncertain, but our central expectation is that the longer-term impact on economies will not be 

permanent. Equity markets will see a recovery as things normalize. This could in turn lead to pent-up demand in the second 

half of 2020.  

 

As stock pickers, our focus remains on stocks that offer good risk versus reward. We have taken the opportunity to add value 

for our clients in light of the market volatility and will continue to do so. Most importantly, when equity markets bounce back 

we are well positioned to participate in the upside. It is worth noting that according to external research the market has 

recovered from these losses the following year in 75% of these periods. We remain solidly anchored in our 3-circle approach 

of stock selection (fundamental, quantitative and qualitative), which remains the core driver of performance. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Historical performance is no indicator of current or future performance. 

The performance data does not take account of any commissions and costs charged when subscribing and redeeming shares. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
 

As at 31 March 2020 

 
 

 
 

*As at 30 September 2019. 

EUR EUR

Assets Note 2020 2019*

Cash and cash equivalents 8 32,302,529 37,899,666

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in transferable securities 6,9 135,406,437 159,977,392

Investments in financial derivative assets 6,9 5,710,367 3,134,818

Due from broker 8 4,623,029 2,287,124

Subscriptions receivable 10,188 14,355

Interest, dividend and other receivables 116,759 71,202

Total assets 178,169,309 203,384,557

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in financial derivative liabilities 6,9 7,291,217 6,227,243

Bank overdraft 8 3,179,193 4,891,437

Due to broker 8 184,059 869,502

Redemption payable 33,578 1,861,347

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13 840,106 777,765

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares) 11,528,153 14,627,294

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 166,641,156 188,757,263

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-B-acc Shares EUR 168.06 159.80

Number of Class (EUR) I-B-acc Shares in issue 327,074.48 373,683.67

Net assets per Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc Shares EUR 124.29 118.62

Number of Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc Shares in issue 381,261.27 382,717.00

Net assets per Class (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc Shares CHF 97.40 93.45

Number of Class  (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc Shares in issue 12,183.00 12,287.40

Net assets per Class (EUR) P-PF-acc Shares EUR 99.89 95.69

Number of Class (EUR) P-PF-acc Shares in issue 152,469.42 194,855.65

Net assets per Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc Shares GBP 102.65 98.40

Number of Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc Shares in issue 5,399.69 7,631.68

Net assets per Class (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc Shares SGD 108.59 102.86

Number of Class  (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc Shares in issue 30,244.67 36,155.29

Net assets per Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc Shares USD 109.09 103.05

Number of Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc shares in issue 256,286.37 345,430.88

Net assets per Class (AUD Hedged) P-PF-acc Shares AUD 100.56 95.93

Number of Class (AUD Hedged) P-PF-acc in issue 13,064.40 16,400.78

Net assets per Class (CHF hedged) I-B-acc Shares CHF 106.98 101.88

Number of Class (CHF) I-B-acc Shares in issue 66,877.91 47,152.71

Net assets per Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc Shares USD 111.41 104.87

Number of Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc Shares in issue 47,989.82 149,516.55

Net assets per Class (GBP hedged)  Q-PF-acc Shares GBP 106.45 101.66

Number of Class (GBP hedged) Q-PF-acc Shares in issue 10,901.00 11,093.48

Net assets per Class (CHF hedged) Q-PF-acc Shares CHF 91.27 87.24

Number of Class (CHF) Q-PF-acc Shares in issue 9,784.59 10,495.31

Net assets per Class (EUR)  K-1-PF-acc Shares EUR 2,769,418.44 2,649,113.22

Number of Class (EUR) K-1-PF-acc Shares in issue 0.50 0.50

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc Shares EUR 96.31 91.87

Number of Class (EUR)  I-A1-PF-acc Shares in issue 39,982.95 50,181.28

Net assets per Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc Shares USD                               -   108.64

Number of Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc Shares in issue                               -   1,500.00
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 

   For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
  *For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

  Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 
 

  For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
  *For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

EUR EUR

Income Note 2020 2019*

Interest income 3 18,484 303,170

Dividend income 4 974,496 1,149,001

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 10,016,405 5,353,465

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange (434,578) 229,248

Other income 571,962 153,180

Net investment income 11,146,769 7,188,064

Expenses

Operating expenses:

Investment manager's fee 13 (649,408) (785,274)

Performance fee 13 (878) -

Other fees (1,086,991) (1,506)

Operating expenses before finance costs (1,737,277) (786,780)

Net gain from operations before finance costs 9,409,492 6,401,284

Withholding tax (181,190) (181,577)

Interest expenses 3 (88,949) (552,577)

Dividend expense 4 (1,323,558) (1,228,826)

Total finance costs and other charges (1,593,697) (1,962,980)

Change in net assets attributable to holders redeemable particiapting shares 7,815,795 4,438,304

EUR EUR

2020 2019*

Balance at the beginning of the period 188,757,263 219,058,463

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period 7,815,795 4,438,304

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the period 17,990,767 21,697,714

Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the period (47,982,030) (44,477,836)

Anti-dilution levy 59,361 28,257

Balance at the end of the period 166,641,156 200,744,902
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Statement of Cash Flows 

 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
 
  *For the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

 

 
 

 

EUR EUR

Operating activities 2020 2019*

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period 7,815,795 4,438,304

Adjustments for:

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (10,016,405) (5,353,465)

Net payment from trading activities 33,075,774 10,082,596

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest, dividend and other receivables (2,377,294) (1,830,540)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,450,861) (975,388)

Cash flows provided by operating activities 26,047,009 6,361,507

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 17,990,767 21,697,714

Payments on redemption of shares (47,982,030) (44,477,836)

Anti-dilution levy 59,361 28,257

Cash flows used in financing activities (29,931,902) (22,751,865)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period (3,884,893) (16,390,358)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 33,008,229 25,598,386

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 29,123,336 9,208,028

Cash represented by

Cash and cash equivalents 32,302,529 14,239,794

Bank overdraft (3,179,193) (5,031,766)

Supplementary information

Interest received 18,484 230,781

Dividend received 974,496 1,359,688

Interest paid 88,949 458,682

Dividend paid 1,291,114 1,568,122

Withholding tax paid 190,535 181,577

As at 31 March 2020

Note 2020 2019

EUR EUR

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32,302,529 37,899,666

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in transferable securities 135,406,437 159,977,392

Investments in financial derivative assets 5,710,367 3,134,818

Due from broker 4,623,029 2,287,124

Subscriptions receivable 10,188 14,355

Interest, dividend and other receivables 116,759 71,202

Total assets 178,169,309 203,384,557

Liabilities

Investments in financial derivative liabilities 7,291,217 6,227,243

Bank overdraft 3,179,193 4,891,437

Due to broker 184,059 869,502

Redemption payable 33,578 1,861,347

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 840,106 777,765

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of  

redeemable participating shares) 11,528,153 14,627,294

Net assets attributable to holders of  redeemable participating 

shares 166,641,156 188,757,263
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 
 

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f

Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s S h a r e s / C o n t r a c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t r a l i a

Ne wc re st  Mining Lt d 54,902                                                                                                    705,895                                                              0.42                                                                         

B e l g i u m

Eurona v Nv 121,428                                                                                                  1,265,280                                                         0.76                                                                         

C a n a d a

Ke lt  Explora t ion Lt d 266,232                                                                                                187,515                                                                0.11                                                                           

Me g Ene rgy Corp 146,799                                                                                                 156,972                                                               0.09                                                                         

Iva nhoe  Mine s Lt d-Cl A 447,004                                                                                                669,746                                                              0.40                                                                         

Osisko Gold Roya lt ie s Lt d 41,682                                                                                                     280,234                                                              0.17                                                                          

C h i n a

Aliba ba  Group Holding-S p Adr 9,894                                                                                                        1,753,643                                                         1.05                                                                          

Wuxi Biologic s Ca yma n Inc 102,000                                                                                                 1,205,337                                                         0.72                                                                         

China  Me idong Aut o Holdings 390,000                                                                                                555,788                                                              0.33                                                                         

D e n m a r k

Novo Nordisk A/ S -B 27,799                                                                                                    1,524,215                                                          0.91                                                                          

Topda nma rk A/ S 40,944                                                                                                    1,503,402                                                         0.90                                                                         

Torm P lc 53,400                                                                                                    413,622                                                               0.25                                                                         

Fi n l a n d

S a mpo Oyj-A S hs 78,797                                                                                                    2,097,576                                                        1.26                                                                          

Ne st e  Oyj 26,400                                                                                                    814,440                                                               0.49                                                                         

Fr a n c e

Le gra nd S a 31,192                                                                                                      1,824,108                                                          1.09                                                                          

P e rnod Ric a rd S a 3,800                                                                                                        491,910                                                                0.30                                                                         

Te le pe rforma nc e 6,569                                                                                                        1,246,796                                                         0.75                                                                         

LVMH Moe t  He nne ssy Louis Vui 1,267                                                                                                         428,816                                                               0.26                                                                         

Da none 22,650                                                                                                    1,328,196                                                          0.80                                                                         

Cgg S a 527,864                                                                                                440,766                                                              0.26                                                                         

S c hne ide r Ele c t r ic  S e 20,449                                                                                                    1,606,882                                                         0.96                                                                         

P e uge ot  S a 35,393                                                                                                    430,556                                                              0.26                                                                         

Na c on S a 225,000                                                                                                996,750                                                              0.60                                                                         

Ge r m a n y

Aure lius Equit y Opport unit ie 4,969                                                                                                        83,678                                                                  0.05                                                                         

Ct s Eve nt im Ag & Co Kga a 1,280                                                                                                         52,710                                                                   0.03                                                                         

S hop Apot he ke  Europe  Nv 39,680                                                                                                    2,015,744                                                         1.21                                                                           

Va rt a  Ag 13,890                                                                                                     912,573                                                               0.55                                                                         

S t e mme r Ima ging Ag 11,270                                                                                                      122,843                                                               0.07                                                                         

S e rvic e wa re  S e 38,767                                                                                                    372,163                                                               0.22                                                                         

Nfon Ag 10,868                                                                                                     90,487                                                                  0.05                                                                         

Dfv De ut sc he  Fa milie nve rsic h 61,805                                                                                                     1,161,934                                                           0.70                                                                         

M1 Klinike n Ag 88,986                                                                                                    854,266                                                              0.51                                                                          

Me dia  And Ga me s Inve st  P lc 845,853                                                                                                960,043                                                              0.58                                                                         

Te le  Columbus Ag 318,611                                                                                                   722,610                                                               0.43                                                                         

Ve c t ron S yst e ms Ag 42,137                                                                                                     257,036                                                              0.15                                                                          

Ir e l a n d

Ke rry Group P lc -A 16,650                                                                                                     1,751,580                                                          1.05                                                                          

It a l y

Infra st rut t ure  Wire le ss It a l 221,960                                                                                                 2,192,965                                                         1.32                                                                          

Te le c om It a lia -Rsp 6,272,193                                                                                           2,261,126                                                          1.36                                                                          

Monc le r  S pa 41,276                                                                                                     1,374,078                                                         0.82                                                                         

Ene l S pa 265,063                                                                                                1,680,234                                                         1.01                                                                           

J a p a n

S oft ba nk Group Corp 41,700                                                                                                     1,333,514                                                          0.80                                                                         

S ony Corp 22,100                                                                                                     1,197,972                                                          0.72                                                                         

Toyot a  Mot or Corp 14,500                                                                                                     795,792                                                              0.48                                                                         

Hit a c hi Lt d 20,700                                                                                                    549,245                                                              0.33                                                                         

Nippon Te le gra ph & Te le phone 40,500                                                                                                    880,579                                                              0.53                                                                         

Nomura  Re se a rc h Inst it ut e  Lt 76,400                                                                                                    1,475,710                                                          0.89                                                                         

N e t h e r l a n d s

Koninklijke  Ahold De lha iz e  71,029                                                                                                     1,511,852                                                           0.91                                                                          

N o r w a y

Ade vint a  Asa 53,023                                                                                                    428,428                                                              0.26                                                                         

S out h Afric a

Na spe rs Lt d-N S hs 4,657                                                                                                        606,863                                                              0.36                                                                         

S w e d e n

S a ndvik Ab 88,591                                                                                                     1,151,064                                                           0.69                                                                         

Te le 2 Ab-B S hs 78,663                                                                                                    965,268                                                              0.58                                                                         

Eqt  Ab 23,600                                                                                                    257,248                                                              0.15                                                                          

S t illfront  Group Ab 32,153                                                                                                     1,310,228                                                          0.79                                                                         

Lundin P e t role um Ab 45,422                                                                                                    795,945                                                              0.48                                                                         

S ve nska  Ce llulosa  Ab S c a -B 131,486                                                                                                  1,214,929                                                          0.73                                                                         

Nova rt is Ag-Re g 23,069                                                                                                    1,735,101                                                           1.04                                                                          

Ne st le  S a -Re g 18,622                                                                                                     1,744,424                                                         1.05                                                                          

Roc he  Holding Ag-Ge nussc he in 3,782                                                                                                        1,118,771                                                            0.67                                                                         

S ie gfrie d Holding Ag-Re g 411                                                                                                                150,983                                                               0.09                                                                         

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

Nic hols P lc 12,072                                                                                                     163,704                                                               0.10                                                                          

Unile ve r P lc 60,461                                                                                                     2,784,549                                                        1.67                                                                          

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

Abbot t  La bora t orie s 34,834                                                                                                    2,505,127                                                         1.50                                                                          

Adobe  Inc 4,894                                                                                                        1,419,427                                                          0.85                                                                         

Ama z on.Com Inc 1,368                                                                                                         2,430,820                                                        1.46                                                                          

Ardmore  S hipping Corp 75,800                                                                                                    362,679                                                              0.22                                                                         

He ss Corp 26,867                                                                                                    815,376                                                               0.49                                                                         

J ohnson & J ohnson 7,572                                                                                                        904,914                                                               0.54                                                                         

J pmorga n Cha se  & Co 10,400                                                                                                     853,326                                                              0.51                                                                          

Ma st e rc a rd Inc  -  A 11,630                                                                                                      2,560,349                                                        1.54                                                                          

Me dt ronic  P lc 37,000                                                                                                    3,040,930                                                        1.82                                                                          

Monde le z  Int e rna t iona l Inc -A 37,158                                                                                                     1,695,942                                                         1.02                                                                          

Tjx Compa nie s Inc 14,674                                                                                                     639,384                                                              0.38                                                                         

Visa  Inc -Cla ss A S ha re s 13,614                                                                                                      1,999,077                                                         1.20                                                                          

P a ypa l Holdings Inc 22,740                                                                                                    1,984,167                                                          1.19                                                                           

Ta l Educ a t ion Group- Adr 15,300                                                                                                     742,655                                                              0.45                                                                         

Int uit  Inc 3,862                                                                                                        809,533                                                              0.49                                                                         

Alpha be t  Inc -Cl A 2,169                                                                                                         2,296,896                                                        1.38                                                                          

Ame ric a n Expre ss Co 15,694                                                                                                     1,224,482                                                         0.73                                                                         

Mic rosoft  Corp 27,411                                                                                                      3,939,839                                                        2.36                                                                         

Zoe t is Inc 18,240                                                                                                     1,956,405                                                         1.17                                                                           

The rmo Fishe r S c ie nt if ic  Inc 8,937                                                                                                        2,309,896                                                        1.39                                                                          

Cha rt e r  Communic a t ions Inc -A 5,297                                                                                                        2,106,297                                                         1.26                                                                          

Aut oma t ic  Da t a  P roc e ssing 17,011                                                                                                       2,118,992                                                          1.27                                                                          

Ve e va  S yst e ms Inc -Cla ss A 15,951                                                                                                      2,273,190                                                         1.36                                                                          

Ne xt e ra  Ene rgy Inc 14,301                                                                                                      3,136,119                                                           1.88                                                                          

Coc a -Cola  Co/ The 52,754                                                                                                    2,127,468                                                         1.28                                                                          

Home  De pot  Inc 4,800                                                                                                        816,776                                                               0.49                                                                         

Edwa rds Life sc ie nc e s Corp 13,907                                                                                                     2,390,648                                                        1.43                                                                          
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market (continued) 

 

 
 

Financial derivative instruments 
 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

Baidu Inc  -  S pon Adr 22,100                                                                                                     2,030,038                                                        1.22                                                                          

Accent ure  P lc -Cl A 8,406                                                                                                        1,250,730                                                         0.75                                                                         

Willis Towers Wa t son P lc 6,730                                                                                                        1,041,778                                                          0.63                                                                         

New Orient a l Educa t io-S p Adr 10,900                                                                                                     1,075,248                                                         0.65                                                                         

Apache  Corp 18,980                                                                                                     72,305                                                                  0.04                                                                         

Globa l P ayment s Inc 6,735                                                                                                        885,294                                                              0.53                                                                         

Viacomcbs Inc  -  Cla ss B 58,157                                                                                                     742,565                                                              0.45                                                                         

Trac t or S upply Company 15,485                                                                                                     1,193,216                                                           0.72                                                                         

P o rt u g a l

Edp Renovave is S a 75,002                                                                                                    823,522                                                              0.49                                                                         

To t a l  e q u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s 119 , 5 4 2 , 0 9 4                 7 1. 7 4                              

Fu n d s  

Ire l a n d

UBS  S e lec t  Money Mk Eur-M 159,281                                                                                                  15,864,343                                                     9.52                                                                         

To t a l  f u n d s 15 , 8 6 4 , 3 4 3                   9 . 5 2                                

To t a l  t ra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 13 5 , 4 0 6 , 4 3 7                 8 1. 2 6                              

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  s w a p C o u n t e r p a r t y S h a r e s / C o n t r a c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

Fi n l a n d

S t oc kma nn Oyj Abp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (65,565)                                                                                                 2,491                                                                       0.00                                                                         

Fr a n c e

Air Liquide  S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 11,076                                                                                                      134,573                                                               0.08                                                                         

Ald S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (79,378)                                                                                                 16,669                                                                   0.01                                                                          

Axa  S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 52,232                                                                                                    122,223                                                               0.07                                                                         

Eiffa ge  S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 17,267                                                                                                     166,799                                                               0.10                                                                          

Kle pie rre  S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (64,926)                                                                                                 157,770                                                               0.09                                                                         

Ge r m a n y

Ca nc om S e Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 21,582                                                                                                     79,422                                                                  0.05                                                                         

De ut sc he  Euroshop Ag Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (49,064)                                                                                                 34,345                                                                  0.02                                                                         

Ec ke rt  & Zie gle r  Ag Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 10,757                                                                                                     393,706                                                              0.24                                                                         

Mue nc he ne r Rue c kve rsic he rungs-Ge se llsc ha ft  Ag In Mue nc he n Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 11,545                                                                                                      342,887                                                              0.21                                                                          

S a p S e Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 11,453                                                                                                      122,089                                                               0.07                                                                         

Zooplus Ag Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8,105)                                                                                                      69,703                                                                  0.04                                                                         

Gr e e c e

Tit a n Ce me nt  Co S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (40,150)                                                                                                  30,514                                                                   0.02                                                                         

Ho n g  Ko n g

Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,385,000)                                                                                       8,413                                                                       0.01                                                                          

Ir e l a n d

Kingspa n Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 17,650                                                                                                     112,960                                                                0.07                                                                         

It a l y

Te le c om It a lia  S pa / Mila no Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6,379,687)                                                                                       77,194                                                                   0.05                                                                         

J a p a n

De nt su Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (42,041)                                                                                                  1,065                                                                       0.00                                                                         

N e t h e r l a n d s

He ine ke n Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 10,576                                                                                                     55,418                                                                   0.03                                                                         

Koninklijke  Dsm Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 8,202                                                                                                        86,121                                                                    0.05                                                                         

Koninklijke  P hilips Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 80,419                                                                                                     456,780                                                              0.27                                                                         

P rosus Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 18,657                                                                                                     117,353                                                                0.07                                                                         

Uniba il-Roda mc o S e  & Wfd Uniba il-Roda mc o Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6,514)                                                                                                      84,421                                                                   0.05                                                                         

We re ldha ve  Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (71,982)                                                                                                  55,786                                                                  0.03                                                                         

N o r w a y

P e t role um Ge o-S e rvic e s Asa Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (336,590)                                                                                             2,337                                                                      0.00                                                                         

S i n g a p o r e

S e mbc orp Ma rine  Lt d Morga n S t a nle y & Co Int l (1,191,100)                                                                                           304,957                                                              0.18                                                                          

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

Ast ra z e ne c a  P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 8,590                                                                                                        37,373                                                                  0.02                                                                         

Aut o Tra de r Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 55,642                                                                                                    46,782                                                                  0.03                                                                         

Gla xosmit hkline  P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 69,197                                                                                                     109,475                                                               0.07                                                                         

Ha mme rson P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (464,219)                                                                                              25,390                                                                  0.02                                                                         

Roya l Ma il P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (566,095)                                                                                             125,385                                                               0.08                                                                         

S oft c a t  P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 110,220                                                                                                  135,142                                                                0.08                                                                         

Te sc o P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 374,800                                                                                                70,308                                                                  0.04                                                                         

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

Asc e na  Re t a il Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (76,345)                                                                                                 13,916                                                                    0.01                                                                          

Be d Ba t h & Be yond Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10,135)                                                                                                   2,309                                                                      0.00                                                                         

Flot e k Indust r ie s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (538,128)                                                                                              8,779                                                                      0.01                                                                          

Gt t  Communic a t ions Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (78,700)                                                                                                 3,586                                                                      0.00                                                                         

Ha ne sbra nds Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (77,985)                                                                                                 78,891                                                                   0.05                                                                         

J c  P e nne y Co Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (725,295)                                                                                             26,374                                                                  0.02                                                                         

Ma c e ric h Co/ The Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (73,803)                                                                                                 82,059                                                                  0.05                                                                         

Na bors Indust r ie s Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (975,063)                                                                                             99,350                                                                  0.06                                                                         

Roku Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5,464)                                                                                                     9,860                                                                      0.01                                                                          

Twit t e r  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36,829)                                                                                                 4,363                                                                      0.00                                                                         

Va la ris P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (115,248)                                                                                               5,241                                                                       0.00                                                                         

Whit ing P e t role um Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (79,135)                                                                                                  41,801                                                                    0.03                                                                         

To t a l  e q u i t y  s w a p 3 , 9 6 2 , 3 8 0                     2 . 3 8                                

Ca nve st  Environme nt a l P rot e c t ion Group Co Lt d
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 
 

 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
 

Financial derivative instruments  
 

 

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Ga i n % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

CHF (29,200)                EUR 27,719                                                                                 1.0530 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 206                                                                           0.00                                                

CHF (273,500)            EUR 259,690                                                                            1.0530 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 1,986                                                                      0.00                                                

EUR (775,544)            AUD 1,406,100                                                                        0.5520 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 8,248                                                                     0.00                                                

EUR (21,526)                 AUD 39,300                                                                                0.5480 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 381                                                                            0.00                                                

EUR (2,045,539)      GBP 1,858,900                                                                       1.1000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 54,355                                                                 0.03                                                

EUR (38,185)                 GBP 35,000                                                                                1.0910 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 1,352                                                                      0.00                                                

EUR (46,575)                GBP 41,400                                                                                 1.1250 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 192                                                                            0.00                                                

EUR (1,962,473)       S GD 3,120,300                                                                       0.6290 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 33,799                                                                 0.02                                                

EUR (43,722)                S GD 68,700                                                                                0.6360 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 230                                                                           0.00                                                

EUR (53,604)                S GD 84,200                                                                                0.6370 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 265                                                                           0.00                                                

EUR (915,671)              US D 1,010,400                                                                        0.9060 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 4,435                                                                     0.00                                                

EUR (363,774)            US D 401,500                                                                             0.9060 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 1,846                                                                      0.00                                                

EUR (4,898,456)      US D 5,460,000                                                                      0.8970 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Goldman S achs Int e rna t iona l 73,613                                                                  0.04                                                

EUR (1,832,499)       US D 2,020,000                                                                      0.9070 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Goldman S achs Int e rna t iona l 6,984                                                                     0.00                                                

EUR (31,201,636)    US D 34,861,900                                                                   0.8950 : 4/ 20/ 2020 UBS 544,840                                                             0.33                                                

TRY (53,140,000)   EUR 7,358,119                                                                        7.2220 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Goldman S achs Int e rna t iona l 59,496                                                                 0.04                                                

US D (3,412,691)        AUD 5,660,000                                                                      0.6030 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 47,297                                                                 0.03                                                

US D (15,449,598)   EUR 14,370,000                                                                   1.0750 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 301,051                                                               0.18                                                 

US D (1,775,200)       EUR 1,660,082                                                                       1.0690 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 43,522                                                                 0.03                                                

US D (275,700)            EUR 255,386                                                                            1.0800 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 4,323                                                                     0.00                                                

US D (1,407,300)       EUR 1,311,816                                                                          1.0730 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S ree t  30,279                                                                 0.02                                                

US D (8,670,000)      NOK 95,110,824                                                                    0.0910 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 353,724                                                             0.21                                                 

BRL (9,200,000)      US D 1,963,546                                                                       4.6850 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 175,244                                                              0.11                                                  

S GD (90,500)                EUR 58,218                                                                                 1.5540 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 319                                                                            0.00                                                

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  1, 7 4 7 , 9 8 7                     1. 0 5                    

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 5 , 7 10 , 3 6 7                     3 . 4 3                    

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s 14 1, 116 , 8 0 4                  8 4 . 6 8                 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t ra lia

Commonwe a lth  Ba nk O f Aus tra lia Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,557 )                                                                  (57 ,170 )                                            (0 .03 )                                                

B e lg iu m

S o lva y S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,267 )                                                                   (4 ,056 )                                              (0 .00 )                                                

C a n a d a

E ro  Coppe r Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (29 ,017 )                                                                  (9 ,104 )                                               (0 .01)                                                 

Impe ria l O il Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (64 ,243 )                                                                 (132 ,454 )                                          (0 .08 )                                                

Ne xge n  E ne rgy Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (275 ,160 )                                                                (49 ,332 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

C h in a

Xia omi Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (439 ,400 )                                                               (48 ,566 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

D e n ma rk

Ambu  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (24 ,291)                                                                  (326 )                                                 (0 .00 )                                                

Ch r Ha nse n  Ho ld ing  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,686 )                                                                  (82 ,198 )                                            (0 .05 )                                                

H Lundbe c k A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (14 ,047 )                                                                  (27 ,295 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

Is s  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (53 ,963 )                                                                 (63 ,782 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

P a ndo ra  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12 ,400 )                                                                  (39 ,133 )                                            (0 .02 )                                                

F in la n d

Kone c ra ne s  O yj Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,797 )                                                                  (32 ,696 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

O u tokumpu  O yj Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (152 ,584 )                                                                (19 ,531)                                             (0 .01)                                                 

F ra n c e

Bouygue s  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 32 ,746                                                                  (14 ,736 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

Ca s ino  G u ic ha rd  P e rra c hon  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17 ,426 )                                                                  (23 ,699 )                                           (0 .01)                                                 

E de n re d Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,114 )                                                                   (60 ,776 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

E u ropc a r G roupe  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (162 ,990 )                                                                (36 ,999 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

La ga rde re  S c a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,020 )                                                                 (93 ,112 )                                             (0 .06 )                                                

Re na u lt  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (22 ,300 )                                                                 (54 ,011)                                             (0 .03 )                                                

Re xe l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (30 ,508 )                                                                 (18 ,671)                                             (0 .01)                                                 

S ode xo  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,698 )                                                                  (94 ,177 )                                            (0 .06 )                                                

Va llou re c  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (335 ,545 )                                                               (22 ,985 )                                           (0 .01)                                                 

G e rma n y

Ce c onomy Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (63 ,661)                                                                  (16 ,488 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

Cove s tro  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9 ,531)                                                                     (15 ,345 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

Fie lma nn  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12 ,694 )                                                                  (92 ,285 )                                           (0 .06 )                                                

G e rre she ime r Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12 ,512 )                                                                   (41,290 )                                            (0 .02 )                                                

Ha pa g -Lloyd  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,313 )                                                                   (158 ,236 )                                          (0 .09 )                                                

Is ra  Vis ion  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (38 ,182 )                                                                  (45 ,055 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

K+S  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (73 ,588 )                                                                 (6 ,476 )                                              (0 .00 )                                                

Knorr-Bre mse  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,141)                                                                    (94 ,026 )                                           (0 .06 )                                                

Me tro  Who le sa le  & Food  S pe c ia lis t  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (28 ,951)                                                                  (34 ,046 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

Q sc  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (553 ,630 )                                                               (59 ,792 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

Rib  S o ftwa re  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (20 ,343 )                                                                 (11,799 )                                             (0 .01)                                                 

S g l Ca rbon  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (142 ,605 )                                                                (33 ,655 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 
 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

Ho n g  Ko n g

361 De gre e s  In te rna t iona l Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,785 ,000 )                                                           (31,153 )                                             (0 .02 )                                                

Ch ina  Un ic om Hong  Kong  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,880 ,000 )                                                            (86 ,211)                                             (0 .05 )                                                

Cosc o  S h ipp ing  Ho ld ings  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,709 ,500 )                                                            (22 ,111)                                              (0 .01)                                                 

P e troc h ina  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,744 ,000 )                                                           (174 ,229 )                                          (0 .10 )                                                 

Un ite d  E ne rgy G roup  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,678 ,000 )                                                           (4 ,325 )                                              (0 .00 )                                                

Ko re a ,  R e p u b lic  O f

S a msung  He a vy Indus trie s  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (138 ,442 )                                                                (93 ,857 )                                           (0 .06 )                                                

N e t h e rla n d s

P h ilip s  Ligh ting  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (18 ,494 )                                                                  (4 ,161)                                                (0 .00 )                                                

P os tn l Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (363 ,655 )                                                               (53 ,675 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

S in g a p o re

Hutc h ison  P o rt  Ho ld ings  Trus t Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8 ,639 ,100 )                                                            (118 ,101)                                             (0 .07 )                                                

S p a in

Me lia  Ho te ls  In te rna t iona l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (72 ,892 )                                                                 (50 ,441)                                            (0 .03 )                                                

Za rdoya  O tis  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (113 ,530 )                                                                 (28 ,383 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

S w e d e n

E le c tro lux Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (28 ,382 )                                                                 (48 ,951)                                            (0 .03 )                                                

E le c tro lux P ro fe ss iona l Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (28 ,382 )                                                                 (25 ,455 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

Te le fona ktie bo la ge t  Lm E ric sson Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (121,500 )                                                                 (73 ,204 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

Te lia  Co  Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (330 ,272 )                                                               (21,266 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

S w it z e rla n d

Dufry Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (19 ,992 )                                                                  (96 ,792 )                                           (0 .06 )                                                

S ta d le r Ra il Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (32 ,877 )                                                                 (52 ,646 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

Ta iw a n

Fa r E a s tone  Te le c ommunic a t ions  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (658 ,000 )                                                               (76 ,070 )                                           (0 .05 )                                                

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Dive rs ifie d  G a s  & O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (243 ,838 )                                                               (46 ,843 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

Domino 'S  P izza  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (110 ,035 )                                                                 (10 ,321)                                             (0 .01)                                                 

G re ggs  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (53 ,250 )                                                                 (188 ,950 )                                          (0 .11)                                                  

Itv P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,265 ,430 )                                                            (109 ,502 )                                          (0 .07 )                                                

P e a rson  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (168 ,387 )                                                                (186 ,671)                                           (0 .11)                                                  

P e tro fa c  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (286 ,637 )                                                               (87 ,781)                                            (0 .05 )                                                

Re n isha w P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,827 )                                                                    (54 ,485 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

S ou th32  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (279 ,736 )                                                               (19 ,473 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

Ta lkta lk Te le c om G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (556 ,340 )                                                               (60 ,983 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

We ir G roup  P lc /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (62 ,540 )                                                                 (7 ,774 )                                              (0 .00 )                                                

Wm Morrison  S upe rma rke ts  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (665 ,668 )                                                               (21,815 )                                             (0 .01)                                                 

Wpp  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (93 ,304 )                                                                 (64 ,739 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

8X8  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (90 ,076 )                                                                 (7 ,388 )                                              (0 .00 )                                                

Ame ric a n  E a g le  O u tfit te rs  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (71,758 )                                                                  (13 ,080 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

Bla c kba ud  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17 ,963 )                                                                  (107 ,066 )                                          (0 .06 )                                                

Ca te rp illa r Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9 ,056 )                                                                    (199 ,649 )                                          (0 .12 )                                                 

Che wy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (38 ,333 )                                                                 (186 ,905 )                                          (0 .11)                                                  

Clo rox Co /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12 ,447 )                                                                  (35 ,279 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

Coge n t  Communic a t ions  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,073 )                                                                   (142 ,493 )                                          (0 .09 )                                                

De ll Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,702 )                                                                  (85 ,394 )                                           (0 .05 )                                                

E n link Mids tre a m Llc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (207 ,675 )                                                               (7 ,571)                                               (0 .00 )                                                

Fo rd  Moto r Co Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (123 ,814 )                                                                 (92 ,529 )                                           (0 .06 )                                                

G a p  Inc /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (74 ,901)                                                                  (51,879 )                                            (0 .03 )                                                

In te rna t iona l P a pe r Co Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,354 )                                                                  (83 ,543 )                                           (0 .05 )                                                

Iq iyi Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (29 ,400 )                                                                 (8 ,842 )                                              (0 .01)                                                 

John  Wile y & S ons  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,983 )                                                                  (46 ,642 )                                           (0 .03 )                                                

Jun ipe r Ne tworks  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (35 ,410 )                                                                  (60 ,025 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

Koh l'S  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (27 ,980 )                                                                 (38 ,250 )                                           (0 .02 )                                                

Kra to s  De fe nse  & S e c u rity S o lu t ions  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (46 ,492 )                                                                 (139 ,402 )                                          (0 .08 )                                                

Libe rty G loba l P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (82 ,787 )                                                                 (65 ,641)                                            (0 .04 )                                                

Lilis  E ne rgy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (677 ,099 )                                                               (11,169 )                                              (0 .01)                                                 

Lu lu le mon  Ath le t ic a  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,518 )                                                                     (3 ,387 )                                              (0 .00 )                                                

Ma c y'S  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,375 )                                                                  (1,948 )                                               (0 .00 )                                                

Ma d ison  S qua re  G a rde n  Co /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,536 )                                                                    (83 ,382 )                                           (0 .05 )                                                

O mnic om G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (19 ,047 )                                                                  (114 ,568 )                                           (0 .07 )                                                

P a t te rson -Uti E ne rgy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (132 ,860 )                                                                (18 ,163 )                                             (0 .01)                                                 

S imon  P rope rty G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,230 )                                                                   (48 ,103 )                                            (0 .03 )                                                

S na p -O n  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,964 )                                                                    (79 ,530 )                                           (0 .05 )                                                

S po tify Te c hno logy S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,572 )                                                                    (16 ,555 )                                            (0 .01)                                                 

S upe rio r E ne rgy S e rvic e s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (90 ,427 )                                                                 (34 ,613 )                                            (0 .02 )                                                

Tra nsoc e a n  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (73 ,759 )                                                                 -                                                   -                                                   

Unde r Armour Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (79 ,469 )                                                                 (83 ,289 )                                           (0 .05 )                                                

Us  S ilic a  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (95 ,486 )                                                                 (64 ,397 )                                           (0 .04 )                                                

Ve rizon  Communic a t ions  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (32 ,877 )                                                                 (109 ,806 )                                          (0 .07 )                                                

Via c omc bs  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (43 ,461)                                                                  (106 ,169 )                                           (0 .06 )                                                

Wa yfa ir Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,285 )                                                                  (446 ,165 )                                          (0 .27 )                                                

To t a l  e q u it y  s w a p (6 ,10 6 ,4 9 2 )                     (3 . 6 6 )                             
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f  

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

AUD (5,660,000)      EUR 3,121,813                                                                         1.8130 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (33,201)                                                               (0.02)                                             

AUD (41,800)                 EUR 22,848                                                                                1.8290 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (452)                                                                        (0.00)                                             

AUD (74,100)                 EUR 40,214                                                                                 1.8430 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (1,091)                                                                    (0.00)                                             

AUD (79,400)                EUR 42,786                                                                                1.8560 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (1,474)                                                                   (0.00)                                             

EUR (12,883)                 AUD 23,100                                                                                 0.5580 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (7)                                                                                (0.00)                                             

EUR (8,351,700)       CHF 8,806,200                                                                      0.9480 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (54,125)                                                               (0.03)                                             

EUR (219,776)             CHF 232,600                                                                            0.9450 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (610)                                                                         (0.00)                                             

EUR (186,585)             CHF 198,000                                                                             0.9420 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (21)                                                                             (0.00)                                             

EUR (899,616)             TRY 6,310,000                                                                       0.1430 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (32,956)                                                              (0.02)                                             

US D (256,500)            EUR 229,425                                                                            1.1180 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (4,153)                                                                   (0.00)                                             

US D (252,800)            EUR 228,125                                                                             1.1080 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (2,083)                                                                  (0.00)                                             

US D (53,025,000)  EUR 47,457,733                                                                  1.1170 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (828,702)                                                          (0.50)                                             

US D (1,826,847)       BRL 9,200,000                                                                      0.1990 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (50,761)                                                               (0.03)                                             

GBP (230,700)            EUR 253,009                                                                            0.9120 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (7,599)                                                                  (0.00)                                             

GBP (43,100)                 EUR 46,917                                                                                 0.9190 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (1,771)                                                                    (0.00)                                             

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  ( 1, 0 19 , 0 0 6 )                    ( 0 . 6 1)                  

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f U n re a l i s e d  Ga i n % o f

Fu t u re s  C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

Index Fut ure s 

Nasdaq 100 E-Mini J un20 (83)                                                                             (165,719)                                                            (0.10)                                              

To t a l  f u t u re s  ( 16 5 , 7 19 )                        ( 0 . 10 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s ( 7 , 2 9 1, 2 17 )                    ( 4 . 3 8 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  l i a b i l i t i e s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s ( 7 , 2 9 1, 2 17 )                    ( 4 . 3 8 )                  

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t

i n  EU R A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 13 3 , 8 2 5 , 5 8 7                8 0 . 3 1                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 3 2 , 8 15 , 5 6 9                   19 . 6 9                  

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  16 6 , 6 4 1, 15 6                 10 0 . 0 0               

% o f  To t a l  

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  a s s e t s A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 13 5 , 4 0 6 , 4 3 7                7 6 . 0 0                 

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 5 , 7 10 , 3 6 7                     3 . 2 1                    

D e p o s i t s 3 2 , 3 0 2 , 5 2 9                  18 . 13                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 4 , 7 4 9 , 9 7 6                     2 . 6 7                    

To t a l  a s s e t s 17 8 , 16 9 , 3 0 9                 10 0 . 0 0               
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 
 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  in ve s t me n t s S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t ra lia

Ne wc re s t  Min ing  Ltd 86 ,452                                                     1,858 ,547                                                0 .98                                                          

C a n a d a

Iva nhoe  Mine s  Ltd -Cl A 447 ,004                                                   1,065 ,309                                                0 .56                                                          

Ke lt  E xp lo ra t ion  Ltd 320 ,081                                                    771,694                                                    0 .41                                                           

Me g  E ne rgy Corp 248 ,465                                                   998 ,387                                                   0 .53                                                          

P a ra moun t Re sou rc e s  Ltd  -A 69 ,664                                                     310 ,814                                                     0 .16                                                           

C h in a

Aliba ba  G roup  Ho ld ing -S p  Adr 12 ,684                                                      1,945 ,648                                                1.03                                                           

Te nc e n t  Ho ld ings  Ltd 25 ,500                                                     985 ,209                                                   0 .52                                                          

F in la n d

S a mpo  O yj-A S hs 79 ,239                                                     2 ,890 ,639                                               1.53                                                           

F ra n c e

Air Liqu ide  S a 10 ,979                                                      1,433 ,857                                                0 .76                                                          

Axa  S a 58 ,367                                                     1,367 ,539                                                0 .72                                                          

Cgg  S a 586 ,406                                                   1,206 ,824                                                0 .64                                                          

Ke ring 4 ,752                                                        2 ,221,798                                                1.18                                                            

Lvmh  Moe t He nne ssy Lou is  Vu i 3 ,024                                                        1,102 ,702                                                 0 .58                                                          

P e rnod  Ric a rd  S a 14 ,761                                                       2 ,411,947                                                 1.28                                                           

S a fra n  S a 20 ,504                                                     2 ,961,803                                                1.57                                                           

S c hne ide r E le c tric  S e 26 ,403                                                     2 ,125 ,442                                                1.13                                                            

Te le pe rfo rma nc e 10 ,656                                                      2 ,119 ,478                                                 1.12                                                            

G e rma n y

Allia nz S e -Re g 8 ,032                                                        1,717 ,643                                                 0 .91                                                           

Cts  E ve n tim Ag  & Co  Kga a 1,280                                                         66 ,176                                                      0 .04                                                          

Dfv De u tsc he  Fa milie nve rs ic h 100 ,197                                                     1,059 ,683                                                0 .56                                                          

He ide lbe rgc e me n t Ag 24 ,789                                                     1,644 ,006                                                0 .87                                                          

M1 Klin ike n  Ag 100 ,000                                                    1,240 ,000                                                0 .66                                                          

Me d ia  And  G a me s  Inve s t  P lc 990 ,000                                                   1,059 ,300                                                0 .56                                                          

Mue nc he ne r Rue c kve r Ag-Re g 7 ,524                                                        1,786 ,198                                                 0 .95                                                          

Nfon  Ag 10 ,868                                                      106 ,778                                                    0 .06                                                          

Rwe  Ag 58 ,119                                                       1,667 ,434                                                0 .88                                                          

S &T Ag 47 ,556                                                     867 ,897                                                   0 .46                                                          

S a p  S e 9 ,434                                                        1,017 ,740                                                 0 .54                                                          

S e rvic e wa re  S e 59 ,306                                                     803 ,003                                                   0 .43                                                          

S te mme r Ima g ing  Ag 11,270                                                       284 ,004                                                   0 .15                                                           

Va rta  Ag 17 ,775                                                      1,608 ,638                                                0 .85                                                          

Wire c a rd  Ag 9 ,509                                                        1,395 ,446                                                0 .74                                                          

Ho n g  Ko n g

Aia  G roup  Ltd 207 ,400                                                   1,796 ,986                                                0 .95                                                          

Ch ina  Towe r Corp  Ltd -H 7 ,044 ,000                                               1,467 ,068                                                0 .78                                                          

Wuxi Bio log ic s  Ca yma n  Inc 104 ,000                                                    973 ,496                                                   0 .52                                                          

It a ly

Monc le r S pa 68 ,166                                                      2 ,229 ,028                                               1.18                                                            

Te le c om Ita lia -Rsp 8 ,603 ,834                                               4 ,315 ,683                                                2 .29                                                          

Ja p a n

Hita c h i Ltd 91,900                                                      3 ,137 ,864                                                1.66                                                           

S o ftba nk G roup  Corp 30 ,700                                                     1,104 ,772                                                 0 .59                                                          

S ony Corp 17 ,200                                                      926 ,543                                                   0 .49                                                          

N e t h e rla n d s

He ine ke n  Nv 16 ,061                                                       1,592 ,609                                                0 .84                                                          

Kon inklijke  P h ilip s  Nv 44 ,880                                                     1,907 ,400                                                1.01                                                            

P ro sus 14 ,376                                                      968 ,224                                                   0 .51                                                           

S hop  Apo the ke  E u rope  Nv 66 ,855                                                     2 ,383 ,381                                                1.26                                                           

N o rw a y

Ade vin ta  Asa -A 124 ,165                                                     1,321,184                                                  0 .70                                                          

Ya ra  In te rna t iona l Asa 41,332                                                      1,634 ,837                                                0 .87                                                          

S o u t h  A fric a

Na spe rs  Ltd -N S hs 14 ,376                                                      1,995 ,966                                                1.06                                                           

S p a in

Ibe rd ro la  S a 230 ,927                                                   2 ,202 ,120                                                1.17                                                            

S w e d e n

Afric a  O il Co rp 1,211,482                                                  973 ,683                                                   0 .52                                                          

E q t  Ab 84 ,691                                                      691,101                                                      0 .37                                                          

Te le 2  Ab-B S hs 137 ,400                                                    1,877 ,888                                                0 .99                                                          

S w it z e rla n d

Ne stle  S a -Re g 12 ,453                                                      1,240 ,382                                                0 .66                                                          

Nova rt is  Ag-Re g 25 ,030                                                     1,992 ,558                                                1.06                                                           

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Nic ho ls  P lc 17 ,939                                                      311,255                                                     0 .16                                                           

Re c kit t  Be nc kise r G roup  P lc 33 ,685                                                     2 ,415 ,516                                                 1.28                                                           

Un ite d  S ta te s  O f Ame ric a

Abbo tt  La bo ra to rie s 26 ,889                                                     2 ,063 ,660                                               1.09                                                           

Adobe  Inc 2 ,252                                                        570 ,643                                                   0 .30                                                          

Air P roduc ts  & Che mic a ls  Inc 6 ,416                                                         1,305 ,681                                                 0 .69                                                          

Alpha be t  Inc -Cl A 2 ,075                                                        2 ,324 ,221                                                1.23                                                           

Ama zon .Com Inc 653                                                           1,039 ,763                                                0 .55                                                          

Ame ric a n  E xpre ss  Co 9 ,064                                                        983 ,388                                                   0 .52                                                          

Ardmore  S h ipp ing  Corp 75 ,800                                                     465 ,146                                                    0 .25                                                          

Au toma tic  Da ta  P roc e ss ing 11,190                                                        1,656 ,843                                                0 .88                                                          

Cit ig roup  Inc 17 ,618                                                       1,116 ,356                                                  0 .59                                                          

Cle a n  E ne rgy Fue ls  Corp 197 ,490                                                    374 ,075                                                   0 .20                                                          

Coc a -Co la  Co /The 49 ,252                                                     2 ,459 ,438                                               1.30                                                           

Comc a s t  Co rp -Cla ss  A 67 ,171                                                       2 ,777 ,535                                               1.47                                                           

Da na he r Corp 12 ,606                                                      1,670 ,046                                                0 .88                                                          

De nbury Re sou rc e s  Inc 280 ,048                                                   305 ,684                                                   0 .16                                                           

E pa m S ys te ms Inc 10 ,458                                                      1,748 ,947                                                0 .93                                                          

Fa c e book Inc -Cla ss  A 6 ,363                                                        1,039 ,372                                                0 .55                                                          

G e opa rk Ltd 34 ,100                                                      575 ,840                                                   0 .31                                                           

He ss  Corp 10 ,856                                                      602 ,248                                                   0 .32                                                          

Home  De po t  Inc 9 ,186                                                         1,954 ,995                                                1.04                                                           

Inge rso ll-Ra nd  P lc 9 ,810                                                         1,108 ,687                                                 0 .59                                                          

Jpmorga n  Cha se  & Co 12 ,494                                                      1,348 ,761                                                 0 .71                                                           

Ma s te rc a rd  Inc  - A 13 ,481                                                       3 ,358 ,132                                                1.78                                                           

Me d tron ic  P lc 24 ,400                                                     2 ,431,048                                                1.29                                                           

Mic roso ft  Co rp 35 ,988                                                     4 ,589 ,444                                               2 .43                                                          

Ne xte ra  E ne rgy Inc 10 ,388                                                      2 ,220 ,051                                                1.18                                                            

P a lo  Alto  Ne tworks  Inc 10 ,677                                                      1,996 ,233                                                1.06                                                           

P a yc om S oftwa re  Inc 10 ,156                                                       1,951,551                                                  1.03                                                           

S e rvic e now Inc 4 ,854                                                        1,130 ,240                                                 0 .60                                                          

Ta l E duc a tion  G roup - Adr 17 ,600                                                      552 ,765                                                   0 .29                                                          

The rmo  Fishe r S c ie n tific  Inc 12 ,918                                                       3 ,451,317                                                 1.83                                                           

Tra nsg lobe  E ne rgy Corp 39 ,500                                                     48 ,188                                                      0 .03                                                          

Ve e va  S ys te ms Inc -Cla ss  A 14 ,550                                                      2 ,037 ,827                                               1.08                                                           

Visa  Inc -Cla ss  A S ha re s 12 ,424                                                      1,960 ,239                                                1.04                                                           

Yum! Bra nds  Inc 24 ,665                                                     2 ,566 ,273                                               1.36                                                           

Zoe tis  Inc 23 ,219                                                      2 ,653 ,509                                               1.41                                                            

To t a l  e q u it y  in ve s t me n t s 14 1,9 9 9 ,2 7 3                         7 5 .2 3                                   
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market (continued) 

 
 

Financial derivative instruments 
 

 
 

 
 

S e c u r i t y / De s c r i p t i o n Nu m b e r  o f  Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Fu n d s S h a re s / Co n t ra c t s i n  EUR Ne t  As s e t s

Ire l a n d

UBS  S e lec t  Money Mk Eur-M 180,281                                                                              17,978,119                                                                     9.52                                                                                        

To t a l  f u n d s 17 , 9 7 8 , 119                           9 . 5 2                                        

To t a l  t ra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 15 9 , 9 7 7 , 3 9 2                        8 4 . 7 5                                     

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

C a n a d a

E ro  Coppe r Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (20 ,917 )                                                     11,593                                                       0 .01                                                           

D e n ma rk

H Lundbe c k A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (52 ,369 )                                                    138 ,878                                                    0 .07                                                          

Is s  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (66 ,116 )                                                      23 ,466                                                     0 .01                                                           

P a ndo ra  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8 ,989 )                                                       16 ,976                                                      0 .01                                                           

E u ro p e a n  U n io n

E le c tric ite  De  Fra nc e  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (136 ,982 )                                                   108 ,901                                                     0 .06                                                          

K+S  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (67 ,823 )                                                    116 ,209                                                     0 .06                                                          

Nos  S gps  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (146 ,623 )                                                   49 ,119                                                       0 .03                                                          

O u tokumpu  O yj Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (248 ,484 )                                                  52 ,182                                                      0 .03                                                          

S a lzg it te r Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12 ,208 )                                                     13 ,490                                                      0 .01                                                           

S g l Ca rbon  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (81,247 )                                                     10 ,562                                                      0 .01                                                           

Za rdoya  O tis  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (128 ,130 )                                                    3 ,844                                                        0 .00                                                          

F ra n c e

Air Fra nc e -Klm Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (52 ,842 )                                                    33 ,977                                                     0 .02                                                          

Ald  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,888 )                                                    19 ,182                                                       0 .01                                                           

E u ropc a r G roupe  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (168 ,759 )                                                   84 ,380                                                     0 .04                                                          

Re xe l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (32 ,045 )                                                    32 ,277                                                     0 .02                                                          

G e rma n y

De u tsc he  Ba nk Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,400 )                                                    12 ,740                                                      0 .01                                                           

Hugo  Boss  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,321)                                                      24 ,971                                                      0 .01                                                           

Zoop lus  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,317 )                                                       129 ,014                                                     0 .07                                                          

Ho n g  Ko n g

Ca nve s t  E nvironme n ta l P ro te c t ion  G roup  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,726 ,000 )                                               54 ,786                                                     0 .03                                                          

Cosc o  S h ipp ing  Ho ld ings  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,469 ,000 )                                               1,719                                                          0 .00                                                          

Ne woc e a n  E ne rgy Ho ld ings  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,660 ,000 )                                              43 ,291                                                      0 .02                                                          

N e t h e rla n d s

Arc e lo rmit ta l Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (46 ,473 )                                                    8 ,644                                                        0 .00                                                          

Fug ro  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (127 ,129 )                                                    65 ,703                                                     0 .03                                                          

N o rw a y

Norwe g ia n  Air S hu tt le  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (105 ,126 )                                                    4 ,351                                                         0 .00                                                          

S p a in

Me lia  Ho te ls  In te rna t iona l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (142 ,464 )                                                   54 ,136                                                      0 .03                                                          

Visc o fa n  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (26 ,208 )                                                    14 ,803                                                      0 .01                                                           

S w e d e n

Bille rudko rsna s  Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (98 ,891)                                                     19 ,374                                                      0 .01                                                           

Husqva rna  Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (128 ,219 )                                                    14 ,593                                                      0 .01                                                           

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Astra ze ne c a  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 12 ,504                                                      28 ,067                                                     0 .01                                                           

Dive rs ifie d  G a s  & O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (81,586 )                                                     1,824                                                         0 .00                                                          

Foxtons  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (811,489 )                                                    1,835                                                         0 .00                                                          

G re ggs  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (43 ,879 )                                                    11,904                                                       0 .01                                                           

Ma rks  & S pe nc e r G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (434 ,724 )                                                  38 ,328                                                     0 .02                                                          

Me tro  Ba nk P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (24 ,256 )                                                    18 ,863                                                      0 .01                                                           

P e ts  At Home  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (350 ,321)                                                   91,076                                                      0 .05                                                          

Rio  Tin to  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 22 ,529                                                     15 ,152                                                       0 .01                                                           

Roya l Du tc h  S he ll P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 32 ,189                                                      47 ,664                                                     0 .03                                                          

S ou th32  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (636 ,607 )                                                  27 ,920                                                     0 .01                                                           

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

Ava ya  Ho ld ings  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (42 ,773 )                                                    152 ,621                                                     0 .08                                                          

G la ukos  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (20 ,108 )                                                     33 ,200                                                     0 .02                                                          

G tt  Communic a t ions  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17 ,317 )                                                      1,430                                                         0 .00                                                          

Hu tc h ison  P o rt  Ho ld ings  Trus t Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,688 ,400 )                                             9 ,804                                                        0 .01                                                           

Iq iyi Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (26 ,900 )                                                    53 ,297                                                     0 .03                                                          

John  Wile y & S ons  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,565 )                                                    13 ,132                                                       0 .01                                                           

Ka r Auc tion  S e rvic e s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (44 ,837 )                                                    82 ,666                                                     0 .04                                                          

Kra to s  De fe nse  & S e c u rity S o lu t ions  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (55 ,331)                                                     51,072                                                      0 .03                                                          

Ne tflix Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,978 )                                                       71,377                                                      0 .04                                                          

S a n ta nde r Consume r Usa  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,436 )                                                       4 ,092                                                        0 .00                                                          

S na p  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (33 ,982 )                                                    93 5                                                           0 .00                                                          

S upe rio r E ne rgy S e rvic e s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 158 ,436                                                    4 ,723                                                        0 .00                                                          

Tra nsoc e a n  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (231,196 )                                                    18 ,388                                                      0 .01                                                           

Wa yfa ir Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,517 )                                                        2 ,000                                                        0 .00                                                          

To t a l  e q u it y  S w a p 1,9 4 4 ,5 3 1                             1. 0 3                                     

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Ga i n % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t   D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

S EK (63,750,000)  EUR 5,990,470                                                                  10.6419 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  44,113                                                                                  0.02                                                 

EUR (46,457,582)  US D 51,630,100                                                                0.8998 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 836,409                                                                            0.44                                                 

ZAR (41,900,000)   EUR 2,581,776                                                                   16.2291 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 56,459                                                                                0.03                                                 

US D (8,354,578)      TRY 48,150,000                                                               0.1735 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Cit ibank NA 55,915                                                                                 0.03                                                 

AUD (7,950,000)      EUR 4,925,335                                                                  1.6141 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 10,615                                                                                  0.01                                                  

EUR (4,762,357)      CHF 5,217,400                                                                   0.9128 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 37,730                                                                                0.02                                                 

EUR (2,377,529)      S GD 3,626,200                                                                  0.6557 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 24,915                                                                                 0.01                                                  

EUR (2,047,037)      GBP 1,831,700                                                                    1.1176 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 22,112                                                                                  0.01                                                  

EUR (736,290)            US D 807,000                                                                        0.9124 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 2,935                                                                                    0.00                                                 

EUR (640,599)            US D 705,000                                                                        0.9087 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc 5,192                                                                                     0.00                                                 

CHF (152,800)             EUR 140,579                                                                         1.0869 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 1                                                                                                   0.00                                                 

CHF (139,900)             EUR 128,857                                                                         1.0857 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 147                                                                                           0.00                                                 

EUR (37,230)                S GD 56,300                                                                            0.6613 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 70                                                                                              0.00                                                 

EUR (31,024)                 GBP 27,600                                                                            1.1240 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 154                                                                                           0.00                                                 

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  1, 0 9 6 , 7 6 7                             0 . 5 6                    
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Financial derivative instruments 

 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f U n re a lis e d  G a in % o f

F u t u re s  C o n t ra c t s in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

In d e x  fu t u re s

U n it e d  S t a t e s

Na sda q  100  E -Min i De c 19 (95)                                                             93 ,520                                                     0 .05                                 

To t a l fu t u re s  9 3 ,5 2 0                                 0 .0 5                    

To t a l fin a n c ia l  d e riva t ive  in s t ru me n t s 3 ,13 4 ,8 18                             1.6 4                     

To t a l fin a n c ia l  a s s e t s  a t  fa ir va lu e  t h ro u g h  p ro fit  o r lo s s 16 3 ,112 ,2 0 8                          8 6 .3 9                  

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s  in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t ra lia

Commonwe a lth  Ba nk O f Aus tra lia Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (27 ,837 )                                                    (32 ,023 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

B e lg iu m Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Me le xis  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,374 )                                                       (31,438 )                                                     (0 .02 )                                                         

C a n a d a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Impe ria l O il Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (64 ,243 )                                                    (81,448 )                                                     (0 .04 )                                                         

P a rkla nd  Fue l Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,577 )                                                    (17 ,188 )                                                      (0 .01)                                                          

D e n ma rk Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Ve sta s  Wind  S ys te ms A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (22 ,710 )                                                     (101,288 )                                                    (0 .05 )                                                         

E u ro p e a n  U n io n Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Alt ic e  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (186 ,676 )                                                   (145 ,421)                                                    (0 .08 )                                                         

Ba nkia  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (444 ,467 )                                                  (32 ,326 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Ce c onomy Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (34 ,085 )                                                    (10 ,975 )                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

De u tsc he  Ba nk Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (203 ,100 )                                                   (60 ,727 )                                                    (0 .03 )                                                         

P ro s ie be nsa t .1 Me d ia  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (66 ,827 )                                                    (44 ,440 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

S toc kma nn  O yj Abp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (101,408 )                                                    (6 ,084 )                                                       (0 .00 )                                                         

Te le c om Ita lia  S pa /Mila no Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,974 ,427 )                                              (311,800 )                                                    (0 .17 )                                                          

F ra n c e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Ca s ino  G u ic ha rd  P e rra c hon  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (23 ,340 )                                                    (128 ,137 )                                                    (0 .07 )                                                         

E u te lsa t  Communic a t ions  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (77 ,000 )                                                    (96 ,635 )                                                    (0 .05 )                                                         

Ilia d  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,640 )                                                     (114 ,582 )                                                    (0 .06 )                                                         

Re xe l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (111,382 )                                                     (18 ,712 )                                                      (0 .01)                                                          

G e rma n y Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Ha pa g -Lloyd  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,221)                                                       (29 ,175 )                                                     (0 .02 )                                                         

Is ra  Vis ion  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (31,960 )                                                     (179 ,615 )                                                    (0 .10 )                                                          

Knorr-Bre mse  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,967 )                                                     (21,209 )                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

Me tro  Who le sa le  & Food  S pe c ia lis t  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (72 ,199 )                                                     (26 ,307 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

No t  App lic a b le Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (78 ,391)                                                     (225 ,146 )                                                   (0 .12 )                                                          

G re e c e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Tita n  Ce me n t Co  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (40 ,150 )                                                     (42 ,017 )                                                     (0 .02 )                                                         

Ho n g  Ko n g Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

361 De gre e s  In te rna t iona l Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,785 ,000 )                                              (26 ,572 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

Ca nve s t  E nvironme n ta l P ro te c t ion  G roup  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (159 ,000 )                                                   (32 )                                                             

Un ite d  E ne rgy G roup  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,678 ,000 )                                              (94 ,677 )                                                    (0 .05 )                                                         

Xia omi Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,129 ,600 )                                                (35 ,686 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Ja p a n Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Mura ta  Ma nufa c tu ring  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,700 )                                                     (84 ,416 )                                                     (0 .04 )                                                         

S e ve n  Ba nk Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (230 ,800 )                                                  (35 ,260 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Ko re a ,  R e p u b lic  O f Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

S a msung  He a vy Indus trie s  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (118 ,950 )                                                    (20 ,642 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

N e t h e rla n d s Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Uniba il-Roda mc o  S e  & Wfd  Un iba il-Roda mc o  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,854 )                                                     (159 ,011)                                                     (0 .08 )                                                         

We re ldha ve  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (71,982 )                                                     (159 ,080 )                                                   (0 .08 )                                                         

N o rw a y Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h

Mowi Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (44 ,960 )                                                    (18 ,036 )                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

No rsk Hydro  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (321,957 )                                                   (102 ,709 )                                                   (0 .05 )                                                         

No rwe g ia n  Air S hu tt le  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (30 ,277 )                                                    (10 ,483 )                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

O c e a n  Yie ld  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (49 ,415 )                                                     (1,497 )                                                        (0 .00 )                                                         

P e tro le um G e o-S e rvic e s  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (216 ,390 )                                                   (32 ,113 )                                                      (0 .02 )                                                         

S in g a p o re

S e mbc orp  Ma rine  Ltd Morga n  S ta n le y & Co  In t l (974 ,700 )                                                  (25 ,860 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

S w e d e n

Ra tos  Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (365 ,949 )                                                  (115 ,394 )                                                    (0 .06 )                                                         

Te le fona ktie bo la ge t  Lm E ric sson Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (143 ,000 )                                                   (29 ,350 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Tre lle bo rg  Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (39 ,781)                                                     (15 ,216 )                                                      (0 .01)                                                          

S w it z e rla n d

Abb  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (112 ,300 )                                                    (88 ,841)                                                     (0 .05 )                                                         

Ade c c o  G roup  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,811)                                                         (22 ,705 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

Du fry Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (29 ,085 )                                                    (86 ,686 )                                                    (0 .05 )                                                         

S un rise  Communic a t ions  G roup  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17 ,823 )                                                     (50 ,825 )                                                    (0 .03 )                                                         

Tu rke y

Turkiye  G a ra n ti Ba nka s i As Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (813 ,778 )                                                   (165 ,825 )                                                   (0 .09 )                                                         

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Arrow G loba l G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (303 ,269 )                                                  (67 ,188 )                                                     (0 .04 )                                                         

As tra ze ne c a  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 19 ,500                                                      (12 ,564 )                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

Dive rs ifie d  G a s  & O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (561,242 )                                                   (41,236 )                                                     (0 .02 )                                                         

Ds  S mith  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (298 ,373 )                                                  (68 ,802 )                                                    (0 .04 )                                                         

Fe ve rtre e  Drinks  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (42 ,259 )                                                    (77 ,860 )                                                    (0 .04 )                                                         

Itv P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (265 ,732 )                                                  (29 ,887 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

King fishe r P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (420 ,400 )                                                  (46 ,712 )                                                     (0 .02 )                                                         

P re mie r O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 741,960                                                    (23 ,650 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

Rio  Tin to  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 16 ,420                                                      (16 ,440 )                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

S o ftc a t  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 107 ,239                                                    (46 ,062 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Ta lkta lk Te le c om G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (967 ,705 )                                                  (28 ,079 )                                                    (0 .01)                                                          

Tra vis  P e rkin s  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (98 ,395 )                                                    (45 ,044 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Wm Morrison  S upe rma rke ts  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (332 ,213 )                                                   (66 ,466 )                                                    (0 .04 )                                                         

Wpp  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (75 ,520 )                                                    (40 ,804 )                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p  (c o n t in u e d ) C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s  in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

Abbvie  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8 ,652)                                                       (79 ,203)                                                    (0 .04 )                                                         

Asc e na  Re ta il G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (357 ,584)                                                  (4 ,986)                                                       (0 .00 )                                                         

At&T Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (14 ,174)                                                      (33 ,543)                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Au tode sk Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,629)                                                       (16 ,244)                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

Be d  Ba th  & Be yond  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (107 ,604)                                                   (89 ,917)                                                     (0 .05 )                                                         

Ca na da  G oose  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,915)                                                     (158 ,552)                                                   (0 .08 )                                                         

Flo te k Indus trie s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (361,133)                                                    (36 ,729)                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Fra nk'S  In te rna tiona l Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (206 ,497)                                                  (74 ,163)                                                     (0 .04 )                                                         

G a p  Inc /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (30 ,763)                                                    (44 ,302)                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Ha ne sb ra nds  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (47 ,704)                                                    (72 ,637)                                                    (0 .04 )                                                         

John  Wile y & S ons  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,386)                                                       (2 ,776)                                                       (0 .00 )                                                         

Kroge r Co /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,507)                                                     (31,797)                                                     (0 .02 )                                                         

Lilis  E ne rgy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (454 ,275)                                                  (13 ,709)                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

Ma c e ric h  Co /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (47 ,753)                                                    (134 ,034)                                                   (0 .07 )                                                         

Ma c y'S  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (51,082)                                                     (36 ,547)                                                    (0 .02 )                                                         

Ma tte l Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (61,199)                                                      (89 ,256)                                                    (0 .05 )                                                         

Na bors  Indus trie s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (272 ,691)                                                   (47 ,525)                                                    (0 .03 )                                                         

Nords trom Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (28 ,628)                                                    (100 ,688)                                                   (0 .05 )                                                         

O 'Re illy Au tomotive  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,478)                                                        (19 ,997)                                                     (0 .01)                                                          

S na p-O n  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9 ,155)                                                        (57 ,634)                                                    (0 .03 )                                                         

Unde r Armour Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (57 ,541)                                                     (70 ,198)                                                     (0 .04 )                                                         

Urba n  O u tfit te rs  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,598)                                                    (157 ,108)                                                    (0 .08 )                                                         

Za yo  G roup  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (64 ,184)                                                     (14 ,130)                                                      (0 .01)                                                          

To t a l e q u it y  S w a p (5 ,13 4 ,0 7 8 )                           (2 .7 2 )                                    

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y  i n  EU R  N e t  A s s e t s

EUR (14,779)                 AUD 23,900                                                                            0.6184 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (4)                                                                                               (0.00)                                              

CHF (17,900)                 EUR 16,395                                                                             1.0918 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (74)                                                                                           (0.00)                                              

CHF (58,300)                EUR 53,079                                                                            1.0984 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (558)                                                                                       (0.00)                                              

US D (176,900)             EUR 161,161                                                                            1.0977 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (882)                                                                                       (0.00)                                              

US D (251,300)             EUR 226,843                                                                        1.1078 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (3,352)                                                                                 (0.00)                                              

EUR (950,125)             AUD 1,533,600                                                                   0.6195 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (2,048)                                                                                 (0.00)                                              

US D (1,059,900)       EUR 961,577                                                                         1.1023 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (9,308)                                                                                 (0.00)                                              

EUR (1,686,813)        CHF 1,831,400                                                                    0.9211 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (1,898)                                                                                  (0.00)                                              

US D (48,230,000)  EUR 43,398,119                                                                1.1113 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (781,327)                                                                          (0.42)                                              

TRY (65,020,000)  EUR 10,191,528                                                                 6.3798 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (293,715)                                                                          (0.16)                                               

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  ( 1, 0 9 3 , 16 5 )                           ( 0 . 5 8 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s ( 6 , 2 2 7 , 2 4 3 )                          ( 3 . 3 0 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  l i a b i l i t i e s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s ( 6 , 2 2 7 , 2 4 3 )                          ( 3 . 3 0 )                  

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t

i n  EU R A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 15 6 , 8 8 4 , 9 6 7                        8 3 . 0 9                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 3 1, 8 7 2 , 2 9 6                          16 . 9 1                   

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  18 8 , 7 5 7 , 2 6 3                        10 0 . 0 0                

% o f  To t a l

A n a l y s i s  o f  n e t  a s s e t s  A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 15 9 , 9 7 7 , 3 9 2                        7 8 . 6 6                  

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 3 , 13 4 , 8 18                             1. 5 4                     

D e p o s i t s 3 7 , 8 9 9 , 6 6 6                          18 . 6 3                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 2 , 3 7 2 , 6 8 1                             1. 17                     

To t a l  a s s e t s 2 0 3 , 3 8 4 , 5 5 7                       10 0 . 0 0                
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Investment Manager’s Report – Unaudited  

 

1st October 2019 to 31th March 2020 

 

Market environment 

The broad upward trend in markets for risky assets seen since the summer of 2019 came to an abrupt end as February drew to 

a close, as investors reassessed the likelihood of the coronavirus outbreak having a major impact on economic activity 

worldwide. This step change in market became a full scale rout in March as more and more countries announced 

unprecedented limitations on personal and commercial interactions in a bid to stop the disease spreading further. Countries 

such as the US, France, the UK, Russia and South Africa introduced at least partial lockdowns with bans on non-essential 

travel between and often within states becoming widespread. The speed of the spread of the Covid-19 virus and the scale of 

steps taken to mitigate its impact on both population health and economic activity often left investors struggling to adjust. As 

a result, market volatility and sometimes dislocation reached levels not seen since the depths of the global financial crisis over 

a decade ago.    

Performance 

Overall, the fund fared well over the period and delivered absolute positive return of 0.79%. Due to the unprecedented 

volatility, our major short sleeves posted positive returns across the board whereas the long sleeves with negative ones. The 

biggest performers were short sleeves of Energy, Communication Services and IT. The news that the OPEC plus group of oil 

producers had failed to agree production cuts in the face of reduced demand ignited a round of sharp price falls across markets 

for equities and credit. Shorting big fallers such as Tullow Oil and Nabors Industries added to the performance. The biggest 

detractor is the long book of Financials. Due to its cyclicality, Financials sector came as the second sector which suffered the 

most in March's sell off after Energy names. More specifically within Financials, Banks are hit harder than Insurances and 

other financials companies. Our holdings of Ameriprise financials, Axis Bank and HDFC Bank weighed most on the 

performance. 

 

Outlook 

While the Coronavirus pandemic is unprecedented and the path of pandemic is uncertain, our central expectation is that the 

impact on economies and our long-term valuation models will largely not be permanent. Many of our Portfolio Managers 

have more than 20 years' experience and, we have invested through a number of market setbacks in the past. 

 

We expect earnings to fall in the first half of the year and this is likely to have a material knock-on impact to full-year earnings. 

Dividends on the whole are likely to be less impacted, and we should keep in mind the record level of yield of equities versus 

bonds (yield gap). 

 

Overall we see this as an opportunity for clients.  Since the Great Depression in the US in the 1930's, total returns for US 

equities (which has a longer time series than Europe) have averaged +27% per annum in the 2 years following a bear market 

and would expect a sharp recovery once COVID 19 has stabilized.  

 

Our process has been in place for 40 years, and our PMs have invested through many such short term dislocations, and it is 

crucial during such periods to stick to our disciplined process and take advantage of panic selling to invest in companies at 

cheap levels.  

 
  Historical performance is no indicator of current or future performance. 

  The performance data does not take account of any commissions and costs charged when subscribing and redeeming shares. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
 

As at 31 March 2020 

 
*As at 30 September 2019. 

 

 
 

EUR EUR

Assets Note 2020 2019*

Cash and cash equivalents 8 17,418,749 13,990,255

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in transferable securities 6,9 63,179,736 57,665,526

Investments in financial derivative assets 6,9 1,654,179 2,072,569

Due from broker 8 603,733 222,355

Interest, dividend and other receivables 119,024 87,941

Total assets 82,975,421 74,038,646

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in financial derivative liabilities 6,9 6,172,856 3,542,366

Bank overdraft 8 2,991,202 132,593

Due to broker 8 3,575,213 521,632

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13 229,977 213,687

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares) 12,969,248 4,410,278

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 70,006,173 69,628,368

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-B-acc Shares EUR 152.25 152.00

Number of Class (EUR) I-B-acc Shares in issue 4,933.57 5,309.57

Net assets per Class (EUR) U-B-acc Shares EUR 112,027.94 111,850.68

Number of Class (EUR) U-B-acc Shares in issue 601.56 600.56

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc Shares EUR 117.57 117.77

Number of Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc Shares in issue 7,069.00 6,568.00

Net assets per Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc Shares EUR 108.29 108.75

Number of Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc Shares in issue 10,580.51 8,056.40
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
* For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019.  

 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 
 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
*For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 
 

EUR EUR

Income Note 2020 2019*

Interest income 3 15,218 249,388

Dividend income 4 546,223 548,788

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 516,422 (3,456,340)

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange (320,188) 82,322

Net investment income/(expense) 757,675 (2,575,842)

Expenses

Operating expenses:

Investment manager's fee 13 (7,017) (12,228)

Other fees 2,488 (97,970)

Operating expenses before finance costs (4,529) (110,198)

Net gain/(loss) from opreations before finance costs 753,146 (2,686,040)

Withholding tax (80,449) (80,336)

Interest expense 3 (19,119) (136,797)

Dividend expense 4 (554,493) (457,864)

Total finance costs and other charges (654,061) (674,997)

Change in net assets attributable to holders redeemable particiapting shares 99,085 (3,361,037)

EUR EUR

2020 2019*

Balance at the beginning of the period 69,628,368 72,998,879

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period 99,085 (3,361,037)

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the period 873,137 418,475

Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the period (591,702) (2,827,103)

Anti-dilution levy (2,715) 3,536

Balance at the end of the period 70,006,173 67,232,750
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Statement of Cash Flows 
 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
 

*For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EUR EUR

Operating activities 2020 2019*

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period 99,085 (3,361,037)

Adjustments for:

Net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (516,422) 3,456,340

Net (receipt)/payment from trading activities (1,948,917) 1,526,462

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest, dividend and other receivables (412,461) 444,311

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,069,880 (78,161)

Cash flows provided by operating activities 291,165 1,987,915

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 873,137 418,475

Payments on redemption of shares (591,702) (2,827,103)

Anti-dilution levy (2,715) 3,504

Cash flows from financing activities 278,720 (2,405,124)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period 569,885 (417,209)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 13,857,662 4,573,928

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14,427,547 4,156,719

Cash represented by

Cash and cash equivalents 17,418,749 4,267,646

Bank overdraft (2,991,202) (110,927)

Supplementary information

Interest received 546,223 216,687

Dividend received 15,218 783,062

Interest paid 19,119 80,392

Dividend paid 554,493 620,842

Withholding tax paid 283,953 188,262
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 

 

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s S h a r e s / C o n t r a c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

A r g e n t i n a

Tra nsport a dor Ga s S ur-S p B 24,400                                                                                102,292                                                                             0.16                                                                                         

A u s t r a l i a

Fa r Lt d 38,839,550                                                                  216,648                                                                             0.33                                                                                        

B r a z i l

Ena ut a  P a rt ic ipa c oe s S a 111,000                                                                               178,466                                                                             0.28                                                                                        

C a n a d a

Ba yt e x Ene rgy Corp 283,317                                                                             60,772                                                                                0.09                                                                                        

Ca na dia n Na t ura l Re sourc e s 26,497                                                                                322,184                                                                             0.50                                                                                        

Ene rplus Corp 46,720                                                                                61,924                                                                                 0.10                                                                                         

Ge a r Ene rgy Lt d 721,842                                                                             46,219                                                                                 0.07                                                                                        

Husky Ene rgy Inc 194,119                                                                               440,001                                                                             0.68                                                                                        

Int e rna t iona l P e t role um Corp 58,264                                                                                59,690                                                                                0.09                                                                                        

Ke lt  Explora t ion Lt d 476,171                                                                              335,381                                                                             0.52                                                                                        

Ma c ro Ent e rprise s Inc 77,800                                                                                101,125                                                                               0.16                                                                                         

Me g Ene rgy Corp 295,108                                                                             315,559                                                                             0.49                                                                                        

Nuvist a  Ene rgy Lt d 170,038                                                                             52,804                                                                                0.08                                                                                        

P a ra mount  Re sourc e s Lt d -A 291,722                                                                             211,072                                                                              0.33                                                                                        

P e t rus Re sourc e s Lt d 333,447                                                                            16,013                                                                                  0.02                                                                                        

Ce novus Ene rgy Inc 129,278                                                                             235,085                                                                            0.36                                                                                        

Bont e rra  Ene rgy Corp 55,766                                                                                33,922                                                                                0.05                                                                                        

Tourma line  Oil Corp 43,271                                                                                 239,383                                                                            0.37                                                                                        

Roya l Ba nk Of Ca na da 2,444                                                                                    136,411                                                                               0.21                                                                                         

C h i n a

Kwe ic how Mout a i Co Lt d-A 2,200                                                                                    314,047                                                                             0.48                                                                                        

P ing An Insura nc e  Group Co-H 55,000                                                                                492,464                                                                            0.76                                                                                        

Tia nhe  Che mic a ls Group Lt d 680,000                                                                            3,758                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Hua ne ng P owe r Int l Inc -H 284,000                                                                            97,175                                                                                 0.15                                                                                         

D e n m a r k

Ge nma b A/ S 1,503                                                                                     277,349                                                                            0.43                                                                                        

H Lundbe c k A/ S 17,237                                                                                 466,141                                                                              0.72                                                                                        

Torm P lc 32,520                                                                                251,891                                                                              0.39                                                                                        

Fi n l a n d

Ne st e  Oyj 1,936                                                                                     59,726                                                                                0.09                                                                                        

Ge r m a n y

Infine on Te c hnologie s Ag 72,324                                                                                971,311                                                                               1.50                                                                                         

S a p S e 5,796                                                                                    595,829                                                                            0.92                                                                                        

In d o n e s i a

Ba nk Ma ndiri P e rse ro Tbk P t 582,400                                                                            152,303                                                                             0.23                                                                                        

It a l y

P ra da  S .P .A. 97,500                                                                                260,239                                                                            0.40                                                                                        

J a p a n

Inpe x Corp 32,100                                                                                 164,980                                                                             0.25                                                                                        

It oc hu Corp 13,000                                                                                 246,109                                                                             0.38                                                                                        

Kisse i P ha rma c e ut ic a l Co Lt d 18,900                                                                                 443,726                                                                            0.68                                                                                        

Orix Corp 27,400                                                                                300,824                                                                            0.46                                                                                        

Ot suka  Holdings Co Lt d 8,200                                                                                    292,893                                                                            0.45                                                                                        

S oft ba nk Group Corp 31,600                                                                                 1,010,529                                                                        1.56                                                                                         

S ony Corp 6,800                                                                                    368,607                                                                            0.57                                                                                        

Ta ke da  P ha rma c e ut ic a l Co Lt d 18,400                                                                                 513,848                                                                             0.79                                                                                        

Toyot a  Mot or Corp 6,700                                                                                    367,711                                                                              0.57                                                                                        

Nippon Te le gra ph & Te le phone 44,600                                                                                969,724                                                                            1.50                                                                                         

Ta iyo Yude n Co Lt d 9,600                                                                                    231,868                                                                             0.36                                                                                        

S mc  Corp 700                                                                                          270,359                                                                            0.42                                                                                        

Ke ye nc e  Corp 900                                                                                          264,635                                                                            0.41                                                                                         

J t owe r Inc 34,090                                                                                955,469                                                                            1.47                                                                                         

Ne c  Corp 25,300                                                                                842,596                                                                            1.30                                                                                         

S hin-Et su Che mic a l Co Lt d 4,000                                                                                    362,336                                                                            0.56                                                                                        

Hoya  Corp 5,000                                                                                    388,338                                                                            0.60                                                                                        

Ko r e a ,  R e p u b l i c  Of

S a msung Ele c t ronic s Co Lt d 19,107                                                                                  683,038                                                                            1.05                                                                                         

S k Ga s Lt d 2,047                                                                                    96,393                                                                                0.15                                                                                         

N e t h e r l a n d s

Ga la pa gos Nv 2,719                                                                                     492,139                                                                             0.76                                                                                        

Koninklijke  Ahold De lha iz e  N 17,826                                                                                 379,426                                                                            0.59                                                                                        

P rosus Nv 3,723                                                                                    235,107                                                                             0.36                                                                                        

N o r w a y

Hunt e r  Group Asa 248,433                                                                            93,683                                                                                0.14                                                                                         

Mowi Asa 28,025                                                                                385,877                                                                            0.60                                                                                        

Equinor Asa 3,448                                                                                    39,246                                                                                0.06                                                                                        

P h i l i p p i n e s

First  Ge n Corpora t ion 701,000                                                                             207,262                                                                            0.32                                                                                        

P e t ron Corp 1,455,900                                                                       66,004                                                                                0.10                                                                                         

First  P hilippine  Hldgs 291,400                                                                             250,639                                                                            0.39                                                                                        

S i n g a p o r e

S inga pore  Te c h Engine e ring 109,800                                                                             219,274                                                                             0.34                                                                                        

S o u t h  A f r i c a

Na spe rs Lt d-N S hs 2,793                                                                                    363,962                                                                            0.56                                                                                        

S w e d e n

Afric a  Ene rgy Corp 3,155,238                                                                       342,480                                                                            0.53                                                                                        

Afric a  Oil Corp 855,442                                                                            480,001                                                                             0.74                                                                                        

Int e rna t iona l P e t role um Corp 157,220                                                                             171,086                                                                              0.26                                                                                        

S ha ma ra n P e t role um Corp 1,932,349                                                                       48,881                                                                                 0.08                                                                                        

S w i t z e r l a n d

Nova rt is Ag-Re g 5,685                                                                                    427,589                                                                            0.66                                                                                        

Alc on Inc 20,732                                                                                963,326                                                                            1.49                                                                                         

Th a i l a n d

Esso Tha ila nd P c l-Fore ign 769,400                                                                            90,692                                                                                0.14                                                                                         

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

S e pla t  P e t role um De ve lopme nt 542,190                                                                             352,304                                                                            0.54                                                                                        

Axis Ba nk Lt d- Gdr Re g S 9,161                                                                                      211,231                                                                               0.33                                                                                        

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

Abbot t  La bora t orie s 4,465                                                                                    321,106                                                                              0.50                                                                                        

Aliba ba  Group Holding-S p Adr 2,122                                                                                     376,110                                                                              0.58                                                                                        

Alle gion P lc 6,300                                                                                    528,345                                                                            0.82                                                                                        

Alnyla m P ha rma c e ut ic a ls Inc 2,935                                                                                    291,159                                                                              0.45                                                                                        

Ama z on.Com Inc 479                                                                                          851,142                                                                              1.31                                                                                          
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market (continued) 

 

 
 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s  ( c o n t i n u e d ) S h a r e s / C o n t r a c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a  ( c o n t i n u e d )

Ardmore  S hipping Corp 47,000                                                                                224,880                                                                            0.35                                                                                        

Az ure  P owe r Globa l Lt d 29,594                                                                                412,657                                                                             0.64                                                                                        

Ba nk Of Ame ric a  Corp 5,445                                                                                    105,352                                                                             0.16                                                                                         

Ba yt e x Ene rgy Corp 47,286                                                                                10,063                                                                                 0.02                                                                                        

Bio-Ra d La bora t orie s-A 1,598                                                                                     510,544                                                                             0.79                                                                                        

Cle a n Ene rgy Fue ls Corp 149,948                                                                             243,251                                                                             0.38                                                                                        

Cohe rus Biosc ie nc e s Inc 17,900                                                                                 264,605                                                                            0.41                                                                                         

Comc a st  Corp-Cla ss A 30,570                                                                                957,846                                                                            1.48                                                                                         

Ea rt hst one  Ene rgy Inc  -  A 45,668                                                                                73,252                                                                                0.11                                                                                          

Eli Lilly & Co 3,669                                                                                    463,854                                                                            0.72                                                                                        

Expe dia  Group Inc 12,398                                                                                 635,804                                                                            0.98                                                                                        

Fa c e book Inc -Cla ss A 4,814                                                                                     731,807                                                                             1.13                                                                                          

Fort ive  Corp 10,760                                                                                 541,212                                                                              0.83                                                                                        

Ge opa rk Lt d 103,828                                                                             669,003                                                                            1.03                                                                                         

Goda ddy Inc  -  Cla ss A 8,569                                                                                    446,002                                                                            0.69                                                                                        

Hdfc  Ba nk Lt d-Adr 8,400                                                                                    294,431                                                                             0.45                                                                                        

He ss Corp 14,515                                                                                  440,510                                                                             0.68                                                                                        

Inc yt e  Corp 11,755                                                                                  784,524                                                                            1.21                                                                                          

Insule t  Corp 1,824                                                                                     275,416                                                                             0.42                                                                                        

Ironwood P ha rma c e ut ic a ls Inc 54,284                                                                                499,180                                                                             0.77                                                                                        

J a bil Inc 26,159                                                                                 586,000                                                                            0.90                                                                                        

J ohnson & J ohnson 3,569                                                                                    426,524                                                                            0.66                                                                                        

Kosmos Ene rgy Lt d 42,616                                                                                 34,784                                                                                0.05                                                                                        

La bora t ory Crp Of Ame r Hldgs 5,953                                                                                    685,714                                                                             1.06                                                                                         

Lkq Corp 19,907                                                                                 372,105                                                                             0.57                                                                                        

Ma st e rc a rd Inc  -  A 2,297                                                                                    505,685                                                                            0.78                                                                                        

Me dt ronic  P lc 4,500                                                                                    369,843                                                                            0.57                                                                                        

Me t life  Inc 3,799                                                                                    105,842                                                                             0.16                                                                                         

Mic ron Te c hnology Inc 16,138                                                                                  618,605                                                                             0.95                                                                                        

Na t e ra  Inc 9,499                                                                                    258,501                                                                             0.40                                                                                        

Nxp S e mic onduc t ors Nv 10,082                                                                                 761,996                                                                             1.18                                                                                          

P a mpa  Ene rgia  S a -S pon Adr 15,400                                                                                 158,597                                                                             0.24                                                                                        

P la ins Gp Holdings Lp-Cl A 17,334                                                                                 88,625                                                                                0.14                                                                                         

S c hlumbe rge r Lt d 1,549                                                                                     19,044                                                                                 0.03                                                                                        

S c orpio Ta nke rs Inc 4,122                                                                                     71,827                                                                                 0.11                                                                                          

S t e ric yc le  Inc 7,210                                                                                     319,218                                                                              0.49                                                                                        

S ync hrony Fina nc ia l 11,602                                                                                  170,131                                                                               0.26                                                                                        

Ta iwa n S e mic onduc t or-S p Adr 8,600                                                                                    374,567                                                                            0.58                                                                                        

Ta ke -Two Int e ra c t ive  S oft wre 4,992                                                                                    539,623                                                                            0.83                                                                                        

Ta los Ene rgy Inc 23,428                                                                                122,771                                                                              0.19                                                                                         

Tra nsglobe  Ene rgy Corp 985,641                                                                             323,382                                                                            0.50                                                                                        

Unit e dhe a lt h Group Inc 3,748                                                                                    851,835                                                                             1.31                                                                                          

Unive rsa l Displa y Corp 4,478                                                                                    537,809                                                                            0.83                                                                                        

Ve rt e x P ha rma c e ut ic a ls Inc 2,282                                                                                    494,875                                                                            0.76                                                                                        

Visa  Inc -Cla ss A S ha re s 3,823                                                                                    561,369                                                                             0.87                                                                                        

We lls Fa rgo & Co 1,719                                                                                      44,963                                                                                0.07                                                                                        

We st e rn Digit a l Corp 16,117                                                                                   611,337                                                                              0.94                                                                                        

Twit t e r  Inc 10,390                                                                                 232,562                                                                            0.36                                                                                        

Xilinx Inc 8,811                                                                                      625,864                                                                            0.97                                                                                        

Ye lp Inc 15,243                                                                                 250,473                                                                            0.39                                                                                        

Ela nc o Anima l He a lt h Inc 17,214                                                                                  351,261                                                                              0.54                                                                                        

P a lo Alt o Ne t works Inc 5,002                                                                                    747,439                                                                            1.15                                                                                          

Tra ne  Te c hnologie s P lc 6,394                                                                                    481,276                                                                             0.74                                                                                        

Cit igroup Inc 2,512                                                                                     96,428                                                                                0.15                                                                                         

Apa c he  Corp 89,830                                                                                342,210                                                                             0.53                                                                                        

Inge rsoll-Ra nd Inc 19,175                                                                                  433,393                                                                            0.67                                                                                        

On S e mic onduc t or Corp 74,496                                                                                844,594                                                                            1.30                                                                                         

P t c  Inc 11,663                                                                                  650,619                                                                             1.00                                                                                         

Kla  Corp 3,658                                                                                    479,199                                                                             0.74                                                                                        

Eme rge nt  Biosolut ions Inc 5,976                                                                                    315,125                                                                              0.49                                                                                        

Ada ms Re sourc e s & Ene rgy Inc 4,150                                                                                     88,881                                                                                 0.14                                                                                         

Cre e  Inc 9,995                                                                                    323,010                                                                             0.50                                                                                        

Live ra mp Holdings Inc 33,316                                                                                 999,556                                                                            1.54                                                                                         

Fide lit y Na t iona l Info S e rv 4,129                                                                                     457,737                                                                            0.71                                                                                         

Grifols S a -Adr 23,600                                                                                433,177                                                                             0.67                                                                                        

Align Te c hnology Inc 2,060                                                                                    326,577                                                                            0.50                                                                                        

Wa lt  Disne y Co/ The 6,454                                                                                    568,199                                                                             0.88                                                                                        

Uniqure  Nv 4,600                                                                                    198,925                                                                             0.31                                                                                         

Mira t i The ra pe ut ic s Inc 3,893                                                                                    272,732                                                                            0.42                                                                                        

Ba t t a lion Oil Corp 613                                                                                           2,610                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Dia mond S  S hipping Inc 8,742                                                                                    94,093                                                                                0.15                                                                                         

S unda nc e  Ene rgy Inc 5,224                                                                                    10,807                                                                                 0.02                                                                                        

Ube r Te c hnologie s Inc 9,595                                                                                    244,149                                                                             0.38                                                                                        

Lyft  Inc -A 11,343                                                                                  277,566                                                                            0.43                                                                                        

Wa yfa ir  Inc -  Cla ss A 6,177                                                                                     300,842                                                                            0.46                                                                                        

Vmwa re  Inc -Cla ss A 5,996                                                                                    661,759                                                                             1.02                                                                                         

Brigha m Mine ra ls Inc -Cl A 7,238                                                                                    54,553                                                                                0.08                                                                                        

Arvina s Inc 4,706                                                                                    172,843                                                                             0.27                                                                                        

Linc oln Na t iona l Corp 3,301                                                                                     79,182                                                                                 0.12                                                                                         

Voya  Fina nc ia l Inc 3,167                                                                                     117,040                                                                              0.18                                                                                         

Ce nt e ne  Corp 5,866                                                                                    317,611                                                                               0.49                                                                                        

Disc ove r Fina nc ia l S e rvic e s 1,733                                                                                     56,337                                                                                0.09                                                                                        

P rogre ssive  Corp 2,358                                                                                    158,683                                                                             0.24                                                                                        

P rologis Inc 3,000                                                                                    219,740                                                                             0.34                                                                                        

P rude nt ia l Fina nc ia l Inc 866                                                                                          41,151                                                                                   0.06                                                                                        

Ka runa  The ra pe ut ic s Inc 2,548                                                                                    167,196                                                                              0.26                                                                                        

Ma rsh & Mc le nna n Cos 2,445                                                                                    192,659                                                                             0.30                                                                                        

Digit a l Re a lt y Trust  Inc 1,563                                                                                     197,873                                                                             0.31                                                                                         

T Rowe  P ric e  Group Inc 949                                                                                          84,456                                                                                0.13                                                                                         

Ame riprise  Fina nc ia l Inc 3,318                                                                                     309,892                                                                            0.48                                                                                        

Ava lonba y Communit ie s Inc 1,300                                                                                     174,364                                                                             0.27                                                                                        

Be rkshire  Ha t ha wa y Inc -Cl B 1,266                                                                                     210,948                                                                             0.33                                                                                        

Aon P lc 1,200                                                                                     180,495                                                                             0.28                                                                                        

Ca rniva l Corp 23,559                                                                                282,772                                                                            0.44                                                                                        

S t ryke r Corp 1,259                                                                                     191,033                                                                              0.29                                                                                        

Willia ms Cos Inc 19,452                                                                                 250,851                                                                             0.39                                                                                        
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market (continued) 

 

 
 

 
 

Financial derivative instruments 

 

 
 

S e c u r i t y / De s c r i p t i o n Nu m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s  ( c o n t i n u e d ) S h a re s / Co n t ra c t s i n  EUR Ne t  As s e t s

Ne w Ze a l a n d

Fisher & P ayke l Hea lt hca re  C 9,835                                                                                    161,436                                                                              0.25                                                                                        

To t a l  e q u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s 5 7 , 4 0 1, 18 1                           8 8 . 5 9                                     

S e c u r i t y / De s c r i p t i o n Nu m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Fu n d s S h a re s / Co n t ra c t s i n  EUR Ne t  As s e t s

Lu x e m b o u rg

UBS  Lux Money Marke t -Eur-Uxa 565                                                                                          5,778,555                                                                      8.91                                                                                         

To t a l  f u n d s  5 , 7 7 8 , 5 5 5                            8 . 9 1                                        

To t a l  t ra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 6 3 , 17 9 , 7 3 6                          9 7 . 5 0                                     

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  s w a p C o u n t e r p a r t y S h a r e s / C o n t r a c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

B r a z i l

Ult ra pa r P a rt ic ipa c oe s S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 23,800                                                                                22,006                                                                                0.03                                                                                        

C a n a d a

Front e ra  Ene rgy Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17,800)                                                                              6,041                                                                                     0.01                                                                                         

Fr a n c e

Esso S a  Fra nc a ise Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4,261                                                                                     4,474                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Et a blisse me nt s Ma ure l Et  P rom Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 107,802                                                                             15,739                                                                                 0.02                                                                                        

P ublic is Groupe  S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 25,600                                                                                44,642                                                                                0.07                                                                                        

Re xe l S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (55,688)                                                                             8,576                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

S a nofi Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3,563                                                                                    22,411                                                                                  0.03                                                                                        

Ge r m a n y

Aroundt own S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 21,030                                                                                 1,577                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Ho n g  Ko n g

Ca nve st  Environme nt a l P rot e c t ion Group Co Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (468,000)                                                                         4,402                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

China  Lng Group Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,260,000)                                                                   13,416                                                                                  0.02                                                                                        

It a l y

Infra st rut t ure  Wire le ss It a lia ne  S pa Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 138,697                                                                             100,391                                                                              0.16                                                                                         

S a ipe m S pa Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (125,616)                                                                           1,005                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Te na ris S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 37,485                                                                                18,223                                                                                 0.03                                                                                        

N o r w a y

P e t role um Ge o-S e rvic e s Asa Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (161,900)                                                                           2,585                                                                                    -                                                                                           

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

Ade s Int e rna t iona l Holding Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13,791)                                                                               943                                                                                          -                                                                                           

Anglo P a c if ic  Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (167,263)                                                                          9,451                                                                                     0.01                                                                                         

Asht e a d Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 65,934                                                                                193,091                                                                              0.30                                                                                        

Ba bc oc k Int e rna t iona l Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 135,046                                                                             88,513                                                                                 0.14                                                                                         

Brit ish Ame ric a n Toba c c o P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 15,539                                                                                 38,368                                                                                0.06                                                                                        

Ca irn Ene rgy P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 815,943                                                                             63,013                                                                                 0.10                                                                                         

Ene rge a n Oil & Ga s P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 33,353                                                                                83,485                                                                                0.13                                                                                         

Enque st  P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 733,251                                                                             1,075                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Gla xosmit hkline  P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 25,208                                                                                18,687                                                                                 0.03                                                                                        

P a nt he on Re sourc e s P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (20,000)                                                                             1                                                                                                   -                                                                                           

P a rkme a d Group P lc / The Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 361,420                                                                             1,609                                                                                     -                                                                                           

P re mie r Oil P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 273,379                                                                            1,220                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Roc khoppe r Explora t ion P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 666,298                                                                            6,777                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Rolls-Royc e  Holdings P lc UBS -                                                                                           341                                                                                           -                                                                                           

S a ge  Group P lc / The Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 84,787                                                                                29,492                                                                                0.04                                                                                        

S e ric a  Ene rgy P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 89,118                                                                                  12,790                                                                                 0.02                                                                                        

S pe c t r is P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 37,316                                                                                 66,627                                                                                0.10                                                                                         

S pira x-S a rc o Engine e ring P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6,376)                                                                                 5,764                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Ta lkt a lk Te le c om Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (317,500)                                                                          6,244                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

8X8 Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (28,165)                                                                              67,550                                                                                0.10                                                                                         

Apple  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (623)                                                                                       1,266                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Comme rc e  Ba nc sha re s Inc / Mo Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,216)                                                                                  3,676                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

De ll Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,973)                                                                                 4,647                                                                                    -                                                                                           

Dia mond Offshore  Drilling Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (45,764)                                                                             37,120                                                                                 0.06                                                                                        

Doc usign Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,823)                                                                                  3,448                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Enlink Midst re a m Llc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (81,250)                                                                              3,702                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Era  Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (33,041)                                                                              903                                                                                          -                                                                                           

Fle e t c or Te c hnologie s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,378)                                                                                 1,062                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Flot e k Indust r ie s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (347,475)                                                                         6,334                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Fra nklin Re sourc e s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8,983)                                                                                 1,719                                                                                      -                                                                                           

Fra nk'S  Int e rna t iona l Nv Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (47,327)                                                                             41,838                                                                                 0.06                                                                                        

Gulfport  Ene rgy Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (170,331)                                                                           40,578                                                                                0.06                                                                                        

Ke a ne  Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,707)                                                                              396                                                                                          -                                                                                           

Libe rt y Globa l P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (47,066)                                                                             41,825                                                                                 0.06                                                                                        

Libe rt y Globa l P lc  Lila c Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13,667)                                                                              12,081                                                                                  0.02                                                                                        

Liga nd P ha rma c e ut ic a ls Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5,200)                                                                                 711                                                                                            -                                                                                           

Na bors Indust r ie s Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (732,350)                                                                         49,791                                                                                 0.08                                                                                        

Nort he rn Oil And Ga s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (233,859)                                                                         15,346                                                                                 0.02                                                                                        

Nvidia  Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (727)                                                                                       3,828                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Okt a  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,220)                                                                                  1,435                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Omnic om Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,973)                                                                                 350                                                                                          -                                                                                           

Ora c le  Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,624)                                                                                  174                                                                                           -                                                                                           

P a t t e rson Cos Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,585)                                                                              20,065                                                                                0.03                                                                                        

P e ople 'S  Unit e d Fina nc ia l Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9,759)                                                                                 6,759                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

S hopify Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (356)                                                                                       15,691                                                                                  0.02                                                                                        

S l Gre e n Re a lt y Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,446)                                                                                 6,108                                                                                     0.01                                                                                         

S la c k Te c hnologie s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,039)                                                                                 586                                                                                          -                                                                                           
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 

 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Financial derivative instruments  

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  s w a p  ( c o n t i n u e d ) C o u n t e rp a r t y S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s  i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a  ( c o n t i n u e d )

S plunk Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (631)                                                                                        757                                                                                          -                                                                                           

Texas Inst rument s Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (718)                                                                                        1,632                                                                                     -                                                                                           

Tha i Oil P c l Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (65,500)                                                                             2,597                                                                                    -                                                                                           

Trust mark Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (7,137)                                                                                  5,464                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Twilio Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (807)                                                                                       7,883                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

Wa lgreens Boot s Alliance  Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (9,225)                                                                                 5,633                                                                                    0.01                                                                                         

West e rn Union Co/ The Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (26,130)                                                                              5,715                                                                                     0.01                                                                                         

Whit ing P e t roleum Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (36,361)                                                                              21,195                                                                                  0.03                                                                                        

Workday Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (595)                                                                                       6,148                                                                                     0.01                                                                                         

P o rt u g a l

Galp Ene rgia  S gps S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 7,762                                                                                    16,696                                                                                 0.03                                                                                        

To t a l  e q u i t y  s w a p 1, 3 5 5 , 6 8 8                             2 . 0 5                                        

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f  

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

CAD (1,975,000)                 EUR 1,274,942                                                                  1.5490 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 11,138                                                                                   0.02                                                

CAD (6,625,000)                EUR 4,257,082                                                                 1.5560 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 17,738                                                                                 0.03                                                

CAD (2,390,000)                CAD 2,390,000                                                                 0.6400 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S ree t  422                                                                                          -                                                   

CHF (1,250,000)                 EUR 1,185,729                                                                   1.0540 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 7,926                                                                                    0.01                                                 

CLP (481,800,000)         US D 577,041                                                                        834.9500 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 10,392                                                                                 0.02                                                

CNY (11,860,000)              US D 1,702,849                                                                  6.9650 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 25,780                                                                                0.04                                                

EUR (9,188,772)                 EUR 9,188,772                                                                  118.3180 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Morgan S t anley & Co Int l 8,274                                                                                    0.01                                                 

EUR (939,071)                       GBP 855,000                                                                       1.0980 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 26,774                                                                                0.04                                                

EUR (1,969,721)                  GBP 1,790,000                                                                  1.1000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 52,341                                                                                 0.08                                                

EUR (536,592)                      NOK 6,200,000                                                                 0.0870 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 1,132                                                                                      -                                                   

IDR (4,716,900,000)   US D 325,730                                                                       14481.0000 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 33,580                                                                                0.05                                                

INR (96,590,000)            US D 1,300,508                                                                  74.2710 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 26,190                                                                                 0.04                                                

KRW (1,324,000,000)   US D 1,112,717                                                                     1189.8800 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 23,345                                                                                0.03                                                

NOK (12,740,000)             EUR 1,114,910                                                                     11.4270 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 9,974                                                                                    0.01                                                 

S EK (5,640,000)                EUR 521,982                                                                        10.8050 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 3,352                                                                                    -                                                   

TWD (8,000,000)                US D 268,177                                                                        29.8310 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc 2,490                                                                                    -                                                   

ZAR (14,560,000)             EUR 777,682                                                                       18.7220 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA 37,643                                                                                0.06                                                

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  2 9 8 , 4 9 1                                 -                      

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 1, 6 5 4 , 17 9                             2 . 0 5                    

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s 6 4 , 8 3 3 , 9 15                          9 9 . 5 5                 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  s w a p  C o u n t e rp a r t y S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t r i a

Omv Ag Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (10,020)                                                                              (23,046)                                                                             (0.04)                                                                                     

B ra z i l

Ult rapa r P a rt ic ipacoes S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (23,800)                                                                             (22,006)                                                                             (0.03)                                                                                     

C a n a d a

Blackbe rry Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (82,700)                                                                             (38,700)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Enbridge  Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (14,389)                                                                              (36,669)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Impe ria l Oil Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (28,852)                                                                             (53,574)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Nexgen Ene rgy Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (646,755)                                                                         (91,106)                                                                               (0.14)                                                                                      

P a rkland Fue l Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (28,768)                                                                             (17,499)                                                                              (0.03)                                                                                     

Tc  Ene rgy Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (7,481)                                                                                  (46,799)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

C h i n a

Hane rgy Thin Film P ower Group Lt d UBS (100,000)                                                                          -                                                                                           -                                                                                           

D e n m a rk

Ambu A/ S Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (17,161)                                                                                (5,059)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Demant  A/ S Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (14,600)                                                                              (10,076)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

Fi n l a n d

Nokia  Oyj Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (57,495)                                                                             (19,031)                                                                               (0.03)                                                                                     

Fra n c e

Dassault  S yst emes S e Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (3,021)                                                                                  (24,772)                                                                             (0.04)                                                                                     

Edenred Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (4,212)                                                                                  (1,306)                                                                                  -                                                                                           

Gec ina  S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (813)                                                                                        (10,569)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

Legrand S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (6,185)                                                                                  (44,903)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

Technipfmc  P lc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (30,622)                                                                             (2,756)                                                                                 -                                                                                           

Va llourec  S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (98,401)                                                                              (7,862)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Veolia  Environnement  S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (7,500)                                                                                 (9,338)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Worldline  S a / France Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (6,287)                                                                                 (38,979)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Ge rm a n y

Deut sche  Wohnen S e Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (3,714)                                                                                  (15,970)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

E.On S e Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (44,015)                                                                              (31,433)                                                                              (0.05)                                                                                     

Mot or Oil He lla s Corint h Re fine rie s S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 15,985                                                                                 (5,519)                                                                                  (0.01)                                                                                      

Qsc  Ag Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (671,813)                                                                           (85,992)                                                                             (0.13)                                                                                      

Rwe  Ag Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (30,217)                                                                              (57,786)                                                                             (0.09)                                                                                     

Ho n g  Ko n g

Ant on Oilf ie ld S e rvice s Group/ Hong Kong Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (1,790,000)                                                                    -                                                                                           -                                                                                           

China  Oilf ie ld S e rvice s Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (340,000)                                                                         (5,597)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Concord New Ene rgy Group Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (3,880,000)                                                                   (9,124)                                                                                  (0.01)                                                                                      

Hane rgy Thin Film P ower Group Lt d UBS 100,000                                                                             (45,975)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

Newocean Ene rgy Holdings Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (1,054,000)                                                                    (13,707)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

P e t rochina  Co Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (938,000)                                                                         (44,117)                                                                               (0.07)                                                                                     

Unit ed Ene rgy Group Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (4,370,000)                                                                   -                                                                                           -                                                                                           

It a l y

P rysmian S pa Bank of America  Merrill Lynch 35,452                                                                                (17,726)                                                                              (0.03)                                                                                     

S a ra s S pa Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (99,885)                                                                             (11,387)                                                                               (0.02)                                                                                     
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 

 
 

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  s w a p  ( c o n t i n u e d ) C o u n t e rp a r t y S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

J a p a n

Eisa i Co Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (5,800)                                                                                 (87,793)                                                                             (0.14)                                                                                      

Hisamit su P ha rmaceut ica l Co Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (9,400)                                                                                 (40,868)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Kaken P ha rmaceut ica l Co Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (8,900)                                                                                 (55,224)                                                                             (0.09)                                                                                     

S umit omo Da inippon P ha rma  Co Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (42,300)                                                                             (83,205)                                                                             (0.13)                                                                                      

Ko re a ,  R e p u b l i c  Of

P osco Daewoo Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (10,959)                                                                              (15,227)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

N e t h e r l a n d s

Fugro Nv Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (15,473)                                                                              (5,694)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Koninklijke  P hilips Nv Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (15,509)                                                                              (77,700)                                                                             (0.12)                                                                                      

Roya l Dut ch S he ll P lc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (15,900)                                                                              (70,787)                                                                             (0.11)                                                                                       

N o rw a y

Aker Bp Asa Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (18,232)                                                                              (50,397)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Avance  Gas Holding Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (56,745)                                                                             (8,417)                                                                                  (0.01)                                                                                      

Bw Lpg Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (37,294)                                                                             (5,243)                                                                                 -                                                                                           

S ca t ec  S ola r Asa Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (19,580)                                                                              (29,908)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

P o l a n d

Grupa  Lot os S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (52,552)                                                                             (56,733)                                                                             (0.09)                                                                                     

P olski Konce rn Na ft owy Orlen S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (53,087)                                                                             (36,343)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

S i n g a p o re

China  Avia t ion Oil S ingapore  Corp Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (22,400)                                                                             (860)                                                                                       -                                                                                           

S p a i n

Cellnex Te lecom S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (13,529)                                                                              (53,034)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Repsol S a Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (16,124)                                                                               (34,892)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Za rdoya  Ot is S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (91,200)                                                                              (10,944)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     
S we de n

Alfa  La va l Ab Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (18,365)                                                                              (20,863)                                                                             (0.03)                                                                                     

S a ndvik Ab Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (39,390)                                                                             (68,481)                                                                              (0.11)                                                                                       

S kf Ab Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36,067)                                                                             (39,812)                                                                              (0.06)                                                                                     

Te le fona kt ie bola ge t  Lm Eric sson Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (98,400)                                                                             (62,424)                                                                             (0.10)                                                                                      

S w i t z e r l a n d

Abb Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (29,800)                                                                             (28,210)                                                                              (0.04)                                                                                     

Ade c c o Group Ag Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7,498)                                                                                 (23,801)                                                                              (0.04)                                                                                     

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

Bt  Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 220,666                                                                            (25,179)                                                                              (0.04)                                                                                     

Dive rsif ie d Ga s & Oil P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (869,263)                                                                         (166,993)                                                                          (0.26)                                                                                     

Enque st  P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 1,577,511                                                                         (6,774)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Expe ria n P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13,497)                                                                              (32,792)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Hurric a ne  Ene rgy P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 1,150,247                                                                        (16,118)                                                                                (0.02)                                                                                     

J ohn Wood Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (53,395)                                                                             (2,534)                                                                                 -                                                                                           

P a nt he on Re sourc e s P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (734,750)                                                                         (34,292)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Re nt okil Init ia l P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (110,412)                                                                            (15,222)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

S ha ft e sbury P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9,415)                                                                                  (2,447)                                                                                 -                                                                                           

Ta lkt a lk Te le c om Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (430,491)                                                                          (53,026)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Tullow Oil P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (625,900)                                                                         (6,896)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Vivo Ene rgy P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 265,189                                                                             (19,479)                                                                              (0.03)                                                                                     

We ir  Group P lc / The Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 23,984                                                                                (5,746)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

Afla c  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,959)                                                                                 (20,253)                                                                             (0.03)                                                                                     

Ame ric a n Towe r Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,371)                                                                                   (23,511)                                                                               (0.04)                                                                                     

Ame risourc e be rge n Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8,073)                                                                                 (58,051)                                                                              (0.09)                                                                                     

Amge n Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,250)                                                                                 (42,889)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

Apa rt me nt  Inve st me nt  & Ma na ge me nt  Co Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,979)                                                                                  (12,337)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

Apple  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (807)                                                                                       (18,424)                                                                              (0.03)                                                                                     

Ba ndwidt h Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4,065)                                                                                 (5,300)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Ca me c o Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25,300)                                                                             (30,897)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Ca rdina l He a lt h Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12,766)                                                                              (53,635)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Cinc inna t i Fina nc ia l Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (936)                                                                                       (358)                                                                                       -                                                                                           

Cirrus Logic  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5,936)                                                                                 (45,609)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

Cit r ix S yst e ms Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,390)                                                                                 (42,433)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

Cno Fina nc ia l Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (18,926)                                                                              (43,811)                                                                               (0.07)                                                                                     

Coge nt  Communic a t ions Holdings Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10,393)                                                                              (59,136)                                                                              (0.09)                                                                                     

Culle n/ Frost  Ba nke rs Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2,486)                                                                                 (6,140)                                                                                  (0.01)                                                                                      

De le k Us Ene rgy Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4,886)                                                                                 (3,028)                                                                                 -                                                                                           

De ll Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (14,185)                                                                               (91,270)                                                                              (0.14)                                                                                      

Doc usign Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,792)                                                                                 (40,789)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Ec ope t rol S a Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15,600)                                                                              (32,984)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Endo Int e rna t iona l P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (77,223)                                                                             (48,561)                                                                              (0.07)                                                                                     

Eni S pa Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (23,900)                                                                             (88,216)                                                                              (0.14)                                                                                      

Exxon Mobil Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10,958)                                                                              (52,231)                                                                              (0.08)                                                                                     

Fide lit y Na t iona l Informa t ion S e rvic e s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 384                                                                                          (6,327)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Ga rmin Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4,907)                                                                                 (34,234)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Ge nie  Ene rgy Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (42,587)                                                                             (23,676)                                                                             (0.04)                                                                                     

Gile a d S c ie nc e s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7,143)                                                                                  (9,765)                                                                                 (0.02)                                                                                     

Ha lliburt on Co Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (18,942)                                                                              (31,074)                                                                              (0.05)                                                                                     

Hc a  He a lt hc a re  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7,464)                                                                                 (77,208)                                                                             (0.12)                                                                                      

He a lt hc a re  S e rvic e s Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (37,501)                                                                              (79,633)                                                                             (0.12)                                                                                      

He nry S c he in Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10,650)                                                                              (53,481)                                                                              (0.08)                                                                                     

Ide xx La bora t orie s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,765)                                                                                  (94,825)                                                                             (0.15)                                                                                      

Invit a t ion Home s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,300)                                                                                 (12,571)                                                                               (0.02)                                                                                     

J a c k He nry & Assoc ia t e s Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3,010)                                                                                  (57,361)                                                                              (0.09)                                                                                     

J a nus He nde rson Group P lc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13,500)                                                                              (15,625)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

Libe rt y Globa l P lc  Lila c Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12,938)                                                                              (12,145)                                                                               (0.02)                                                                                     

Lilis Ene rgy Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (356,778)                                                                         (1,756)                                                                                  -                                                                                           

Ma rke l Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (273)                                                                                       (35,507)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Mc ke sson Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4,761)                                                                                  (44,649)                                                                             (0.07)                                                                                     

Me t t le r-Tole do Int e rna t iona l Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (631)                                                                                        (26,103)                                                                              (0.04)                                                                                     

Nic e  Lt d Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,525)                                                                                  (20,556)                                                                             (0.03)                                                                                     

Nvidia  Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,817)                                                                                   (79,634)                                                                             (0.12)                                                                                      

Okt a  Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,875)                                                                                  (11,637)                                                                               (0.02)                                                                                     

Omnic e ll Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5,822)                                                                                 (53,962)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Omnic om Group Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4,480)                                                                                 (22,007)                                                                             (0.03)                                                                                     

Ora c le  Corp Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13,293)                                                                              (32,468)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Ovint iv Inc Ba nk of Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (69,539)                                                                             (15,210)                                                                               (0.02)                                                                                     
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Financial derivative instruments  

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  s w a p  ( c o n t i n u e d ) C o u n t e rp a r t y S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a  ( c o n t i n u e d )

P a t t e rson-Ut i Ene rgy Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (83,649)                                                                             (10,673)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

P aypa l Holdings Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (4,104)                                                                                  (33,887)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

P enumbra  Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (2,824)                                                                                 (74,895)                                                                             (0.12)                                                                                      

P e rkine lmer Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (5,749)                                                                                 (23,001)                                                                              (0.04)                                                                                     

Quest  Diagnost ic s Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (6,696)                                                                                 (30,879)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

Ringcent ra l Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (1,908)                                                                                  (35,040)                                                                             (0.06)                                                                                     

Rose t t a  Resource s Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (33,297)                                                                             (3,638)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

S ba  Communica t ions Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (3,439)                                                                                 (113,591)                                                                            (0.17)                                                                                      

S eaga t e  Technology P lc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (8,652)                                                                                 (53,517)                                                                              (0.08)                                                                                     

S e rvicenow Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (1,016)                                                                                   (24,658)                                                                             (0.04)                                                                                     

S hopify Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (518)                                                                                        (33,457)                                                                             (0.05)                                                                                     

S lack Technologie s Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (11,450)                                                                               (48,106)                                                                              (0.07)                                                                                     

S ola ris Oilf ie ld Infra st ruc t ure  Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (15,980)                                                                              (6,117)                                                                                   (0.01)                                                                                      

S plunk Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (1,523)                                                                                  (22,111)                                                                                (0.03)                                                                                     

S t aa r S urgica l Co Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (14,277)                                                                              (61,545)                                                                              (0.09)                                                                                     

S upe rior Ene rgy S e rvice s Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (45,803)                                                                             (8,349)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Te ladoc  Hea lt h Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (2,494)                                                                                 (30,162)                                                                              (0.05)                                                                                     

Te rada t a  Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (35,037)                                                                             (31,522)                                                                              (0.05)                                                                                     

Teva  P ha rmaceut ica l Indust rie s Lt d Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (81,798)                                                                              (127,477)                                                                          (0.20)                                                                                     

Texas Inst rument s Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (2,851)                                                                                  (6,054)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Twilio Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (2,025)                                                                                 (9,874)                                                                                 (0.02)                                                                                     

Unit ed The rapeut ic s Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (4,927)                                                                                 (52,469)                                                                             (0.08)                                                                                     

Us S ilic a  Holdings Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (99,597)                                                                             (68,985)                                                                             (0.11)                                                                                       

Ve rizon Communica t ions Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (8,596)                                                                                 (15,347)                                                                              (0.03)                                                                                     

Vonage  Holdings Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (58,859)                                                                             (59,220)                                                                             (0.09)                                                                                     

W&T Offshore  Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (236,155)                                                                          (25,827)                                                                             (0.04)                                                                                     

Webst e r  Financ ia l Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (4,926)                                                                                 (12,121)                                                                                (0.02)                                                                                     

West america  Bancorpora t ion Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (2,392)                                                                                 (14,497)                                                                              (0.02)                                                                                     

Workday Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (1,897)                                                                                  (9,025)                                                                                 (0.01)                                                                                      

Wr Be rkley Corp Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (2,920)                                                                                 (12,215)                                                                               (0.02)                                                                                     

Zoom Video Communica t ions Inc Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (3,292)                                                                                 (41,555)                                                                              (0.06)                                                                                     

To t a l  e q u i t y  s w a p s  ( 4 , 9 7 3 , 8 3 2 )                          ( 7 . 6 8 )                                      

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

AUD (515,000)                       EUR 284,052                                                                       1.8130 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (3,021)                                                                                  -                                                   

DKK (5,340,000)                EUR 714,700                                                                        7.4720 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (869)                                                                                       -                                                   

EUR (738,531)                       EUR 738,531                                                                        1.5640 : 4/ 20/ 2020 S t a t e  S ree t  (555)                                                                                       -                                                   

EUR (664,532)                      US D 725,000                                                                       0.9170 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit ibank NA (4,322)                                                                                 (0.01)                                              

EUR (1,388,791)                  US D 1,495,000                                                                  0.9290 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (27,391)                                                                              (0.04)                                             

EUR (494,429)                      GBP 530,000                                                                       0.9330 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (11,793)                                                                               (0.02)                                             

EUR (150,600)                       US D 165,000                                                                        0.9130 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (345)                                                                                       -                                                   

EUR (774,648)                      CAD 1,200,000                                                                  0.6460 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Bank of America  Merrill Lynch (6,767)                                                                                 (0.01)                                              

EUR (765,251)                       CAD 1,190,000                                                                   0.6430 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (3,769)                                                                                 (0.01)                                              

EUR (982,462)                      J P Y 116,000,000                                                           0.0080 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc (2,939)                                                                                 -                                                   

EUR (1,188,572)                  J P Y 139,800,000                                                          0.0090 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (8,078)                                                                                 (0.01)                                              

J P Y (86,600,000)            EUR 719,166                                                                         120.4170 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Cit ibank NA (12,098)                                                                              (0.02)                                             

S GD (705,000)                      EUR 443,401                                                                        1.5900 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (7,636)                                                                                 (0.01)                                              

US D (53,645,000)            EUR 47,927,276                                                             1.1190 : 4/ 20/ 2020 Barc lays Bank P lc (923,754)                                                                         (1.36)                                              

GBP (1,110,000)                   EUR 1,215,029                                                                   0.9140 : 4/ 20/ 2020 HS BC Bank P lc (38,875)                                                                             (0.06)                                             

GBP (375,000)                      EUR 411,605                                                                         0.9110 : 4/ 20/ 2020 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank, NA (12,011)                                                                                (0.02)                                             

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  ( 1, 0 6 4 , 2 2 3 )                           ( 1. 5 7 )                  

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f
Fu t u re s  C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

In d e x  f u t u re s

MS CI EMU Fut ure  J un19 (13)                                                                                            (1,427)                                                                                  -                                                   

S TOXX 600 Insu J un19 (73)                                                                                           (133,374)                                                                          (0.21)                                              

To t a l  f u t u re s ( 13 4 , 8 0 1)                               ( 0 . 2 1)                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s  ( 6 , 17 2 , 8 5 6 )                           ( 9 . 4 6 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  l i a b i l i t i e s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s ( 6 , 17 2 , 8 5 6 )                           ( 9 . 4 6 )                  

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t

i n  GB P A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 5 8 , 6 6 1, 0 5 9                          8 3 . 7 9                 

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 11, 3 4 5 , 114                            16 . 2 1                  

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  7 0 , 0 0 6 , 17 3                          10 0 . 0 0               

% o f  To t a l  

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  a s s e t s A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 6 3 , 17 9 , 7 3 6                          7 6 . 14                  

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 1, 6 5 4 , 17 9                             1. 9 9                    

D e p o s i t s 17 , 4 18 , 7 4 9                           2 0 . 9 9                 

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 7 2 2 , 7 5 7                                0 . 8 7                    

To t a l  a s s e t s 8 2 , 9 7 5 , 4 2 1                          10 0 . 0 0               
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 

 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  in ve s t me n t s S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s  in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t ra lia

S unda nc e  E ne rgy Aus tra lia  Lt 522 ,498                                                              61,416                                                  0 .09

B e lg iu m

E urona v Nv 8 ,528                                                                   71,294                                                 0 .10

B ra z il

E na u ta  P a rt ic ipa c oe s  S a 67 ,000                                                                163 ,623                                               0 .24

C a n a d a

Ba yte x E ne rgy Corp 283 ,317                                                               384 ,711                                                0 .55

Bon te rra  E ne rgy Corp 27 ,136                                                                 77 ,455                                                0 .11

Ca na d ia n  Na tu ra l Re sou rc e s 8 ,913                                                                    217 ,665                                               0 .31

Ce novus  E ne rgy Inc 13 ,733                                                                 118 ,261                                                 0 .17

E ne rp lu s  Corp 46 ,720                                                                319 ,467                                               0 .46

Firs t  Q ua n tum Mine ra ls  Ltd 12 ,840                                                                 99 ,007                                                0 .14

G e a r E ne rgy Ltd 283 ,908                                                              93 ,428                                                0 .13

Husky E ne rgy Inc 28 ,094                                                                181,399                                                0 .26

In te rna t iona l P e tro le um Corp 72 ,395                                                                231,716                                                0 .33

Ke lt  E xp lo ra t ion  Ltd 288 ,360                                                              695 ,217                                               1.00

Me g  E ne rgy Corp 230 ,880                                                              927 ,727                                              1.33

Nuvis ta  E ne rgy Ltd 76 ,865                                                                132 ,065                                               0 .19

P a ra moun t Re sou rc e s  Ltd  -A 169 ,864                                                               757 ,867                                              1.09

P e tru s  Re sou rc e s  Ltd 333 ,447                                                              45 ,047                                                0 .06

Te c k Re sou rc e s  Ltd -Cls  B 7 ,415                                                                    110 ,345                                                0 .16

Tourma line  O il Co rp 9 ,880                                                                   89 ,736                                                0 .13

C h in a

Kwe ic how Mou ta i Co  Ltd -A 2 ,400                                                                   354 ,652                                              0 .51

F in la n d

Ne ste  O yj 1,936                                                                    58 ,796                                                0 .08

Ho n g  Ko n g

P ing  An  In su ra nc e  G roup  Co-H 51,500                                                                 542 ,628                                              0 .78

Tia nhe  Che mic a ls  G roup  Ltd 680 ,000                                                              3 ,740                                                   0 .01

In d o n e s ia

Ba nk Ma nd iri P e rse ro  Tbk P t 580 ,900                                                              261,821                                                0 .38

Ja p a n

Inpe x Corp 32 ,100                                                                 270 ,017                                               0 .39

Itoc hu  Corp 17 ,200                                                                 325 ,684                                              0 .47

Kisse i P ha rma c e u tic a l Co  Ltd 31,200                                                                 688 ,753                                              0 .99

Mine be a  Mitsumi Inc 38 ,200                                                                554 ,730                                              0 .80

Na b te sc o  Corp 10 ,700                                                                 303 ,773                                              0 .44

Nippon  Te le g ra ph  & Te le phone 25 ,300                                                                1,107 ,139                                             1.59

O rix Corp 30 ,300                                                                414 ,292                                               0 .60

O tsuka  Ho ld ings  Co  Ltd 14 ,400                                                                 493 ,756                                              0 .71

S mc  Corp 800                                                                      313 ,011                                                 0 .45

S oftba nk G roup  Corp 22 ,000                                                                791,694                                               1.14

S ony Corp 8 ,400                                                                   452 ,498                                              0 .65

Ta iyo  Yude n  Co  Ltd 9 ,600                                                                   214 ,205                                               0 .31

Ta ke da  P ha rma c e u tic a l Co  Ltd 13 ,900                                                                 435 ,321                                               0 .63

Toyo ta  Moto r Corp 7 ,900                                                                   483 ,829                                              0 .69

Ko re a ,  R e p u b lic  O f

S a msung  E le c tron ic s  Co  Ltd 23 ,621                                                                 888 ,476                                              1.28

S k G a s  Ltd 2 ,089                                                                   119 ,184                                                 0 .17

N e t h e rla n d s

Koninklijke  Aho ld  De lha ize  N 17 ,826                                                                 409 ,196                                               0 .59

P rosus 3 ,723                                                                   250 ,744                                              0 .36

N e w  Ze a la n d

Ne w Ze a la nd  Re fin ing  Co  Ltd 101,022                                                                121,439                                                0 .17

N o rw a y

Ava nc e  G a s  Ho ld ing  Ltd 126 ,273                                                               466 ,568                                              0 .67

Borr Drilling  Ltd 10 ,726                                                                 51,001                                                  0 .07

Bw Lpg  Ltd 24 ,016                                                                 129 ,105                                                0 .19

E qu ino r Asa 3 ,533                                                                   61,722                                                 0 .09

Hun te r G roup  Asa 342 ,497                                                              142 ,109                                                0 .20

P h il ip p in e s

Firs t  G e n  Corpo ra t ion 364 ,200                                                              158 ,558                                               0 .23

Firs t  P h ilipp ine  Hldgs 173 ,500                                                               246 ,563                                              0 .35

P e tron  Corp 1,066 ,900                                                           94 ,407                                                0 .14

S in g a p o re

S inga po re  Te c h  E ng ine e ring 148 ,900                                                               379 ,253                                              0 .54

S o u t h  A fric a 0 .00

Na spe rs  Ltd -N S hs 3 ,723                                                                   516 ,902                                               0 .74

S w e d e n

Afric a  E ne rgy Corp 1,280 ,128                                                            232 ,403                                              0 .33

Afric a  O il Co rp 719 ,277                                                               578 ,092                                              0 .83

Norde a  Ba nk Abp 24 ,802                                                                161,529                                                0 .23

S ha ma ra n  P e tro le um Corp 1,932 ,349                                                           96 ,446                                                0 .14

S w it z e rla n d

S ig  Combib loc  G roup  Ag 14 ,575                                                                 178 ,317                                                0 .26

Zuric h  In su ra nc e  G roup  Ag 918                                                                       322 ,581                                               0 .46

Th a ila n d

Ba ngkok Ba nk P ub lic  Co-Nvdr 47 ,500                                                                247 ,059                                              0 .35

E sso  Tha ila nd  P c l-Fo re ign 330 ,800                                                              79 ,831                                                 0 .11

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Axis  Ba nk Ltd - G dr Re g  S 8 ,575                                                                   383 ,051                                               0 .55

S e p la t  P e tro le um De ve lopme n t 236 ,614                                                               307 ,573                                              0 .44

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

Abbo tt  La bo ra to rie s 3 ,630                                                                   278 ,593                                              0 .40

Ac tivis ion  Blizza rd  Inc 19 ,767                                                                 959 ,521                                               1.38

Ada ms Re sou rc e s  & E ne rgy Inc 6 ,171                                                                     175 ,473                                               0 .25

Agc o  Corp 6 ,974                                                                   484 ,252                                              0 .70

Aliba ba  G roup  Ho ld ing -S p  Adr 1,694                                                                    259 ,849                                              0 .37

Align  Te c hno logy Inc 2 ,658                                                                   441,098                                               0 .63

Alle g ion  P lc 8 ,800                                                                   836 ,654                                              1.20

Alnyla m P ha rma c e u tic a ls  Inc 2 ,945                                                                   217 ,242                                               0 .31

Ama zon .Com Inc 519                                                                       826 ,396                                              1.19

Apa c he  Corp 5 ,126                                                                    120 ,368                                               0 .17

Ardmore  S h ipp ing  Corp 30 ,100                                                                 184 ,708                                               0 .27

Aris ta  Ne tworks  Inc 1,910                                                                     418 ,581                                                0 .60

Azure  P owe r G loba l Ltd 17 ,556                                                                 193 ,242                                               0 .28

Ba nk O f Ame ric a  Corp 11,836                                                                  316 ,691                                                0 .45

Ba yte x E ne rgy Corp 205 ,484                                                              278 ,955                                              0 .40

Bio -Ra d  La bo ra to rie s -A 2 ,948                                                                   899 ,759                                              1.29

Ca lifo rn ia  Re sou rc e s  Corp 58 ,450                                                                546 ,863                                              0 .79

Cle a n  E ne rgy Fue ls  Corp 139 ,984                                                               265 ,150                                               0 .38

Cohe rus  Biosc ie nc e s  Inc 13 ,086                                                                 243 ,187                                               0 .35

Comc a s t  Co rp -Cla ss  A 25 ,718                                                                 1,063 ,445                                           1.54
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market (continued) 

 

 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s S h a r e s / C o n t r a c t s  i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  o f  A m e r i c a  ( c o n t i n u e d )

Cre e  Inc 5,479                                                                                                     246,258                                                                    0.35

Cyc le rion The ra pe ut ic s Inc 21,875                                                                                                  243,189                                                                     0.35

Da na he r Corp 2,541                                                                                                      336,632                                                                    0.48

De lt a  Air  Line s Inc 6,757                                                                                                     357,002                                                                    0.51

De nbury Re sourc e s Inc 511,608                                                                                               558,442                                                                    0.80

Doria n Lpg Lt d 25,800                                                                                                 245,173                                                                     0.35

Ea rt hst one  Ene rgy Inc  -  A 45,668                                                                                                 136,141                                                                       0.20

Ela nc o Anima l He a lt h Inc 15,888                                                                                                  387,509                                                                    0.56

Ele c t ronic  Art s Inc 5,415                                                                                                      485,870                                                                    0.70

Eli Lilly & Co 4,369                                                                                                     448,161                                                                      0.64

Eme rge nt  Biosolut ions Inc 7,158                                                                                                      343,258                                                                    0.49

Fa c e book Inc -Cla ss A 4,722                                                                                                     771,321                                                                      1.11

Fide lit y Na t iona l Info S e rv 4,129                                                                                                      502,812                                                                     0.72

Fort ive  Corp 7,681                                                                                                      483,039                                                                    0.69

Ga rdne r De nve r Holdings Inc 8,100                                                                                                      210,190                                                                      0.30

Ge ne ra l Dyna mic s Corp 680                                                                                                           113,976                                                                      0.16

Ge opa rk Lt d 32,500                                                                                                 548,821                                                                     0.79

Goda ddy Inc  -  Cla ss A 6,390                                                                                                     386,729                                                                    0.56

Grifols S a -Adr 21,800                                                                                                  400,726                                                                    0.58

Ha lc on Re sourc e s Corp 264,191                                                                                               17,084                                                                         0.02

Hdfc  Ba nk Lt d-Adr 8,200                                                                                                     429,105                                                                     0.62

He ss Corp 4,615                                                                                                      256,022                                                                    0.37

Inc yt e  Corp 7,897                                                                                                     537,694                                                                    0.77

Inge rsoll-Ra nd P lc 5,256                                                                                                     594,012                                                                     0.85

Insule t  Corp 2,610                                                                                                      394,852                                                                    0.57

Int e rna t iona l S e a wa ys Inc 7,115                                                                                                       125,697                                                                     0.18

Ironwood P ha rma c e ut ic a ls Inc 92,811                                                                                                   730,859                                                                    1.05

J ohnson & J ohnson 3,661                                                                                                      434,471                                                                     0.62

J pmorga n Cha se  & Co 3,305                                                                                                     356,784                                                                    0.51

Kla  Corp 3,407                                                                                                     498,300                                                                    0.72

Kosmos Ene rgy Lt d 20,929                                                                                                 119,792                                                                      0.17

La bora t ory Crp Of Ame r Hldgs 4,143                                                                                                      638,437                                                                    0.92

Liva nova  P lc 4,600                                                                                                     311,350                                                                      0.45

Live ra mp Holdings Inc 9,457                                                                                                     372,659                                                                    0.54

Lkq Corp 8,382                                                                                                     241,803                                                                     0.35

Logme in Inc 6,483                                                                                                     421,972                                                                     0.61

Ma st e rc a rd Inc  -  A 2,192                                                                                                      546,030                                                                    0.78

Me dic ine s Compa ny 7,192                                                                                                      329,848                                                                    0.47

Me dt ronic  P lc 4,700                                                                                                     468,276                                                                    0.67

Me t life  Inc 5,731                                                                                                      247,912                                                                     0.36

Mic ron Te c hnology Inc 20,098                                                                                                 789,946                                                                    1.13

Mira t i The ra pe ut ic s Inc 2,539                                                                                                     181,447                                                                      0.26

Monde le z  Int e rna t iona l Inc -A 8,730                                                                                                     442,986                                                                    0.64

Monolit hic  P owe r S yst e ms Inc 3,160                                                                                                      451,101                                                                       0.65

Na t e ra  Inc 12,596                                                                                                  378,966                                                                    0.54

Ne t a pp Inc 7,483                                                                                                     360,422                                                                    0.52

Nxp S e mic onduc t ors Nv 9,500                                                                                                     950,871                                                                     1.37

On S e mic onduc t or Corp 21,473                                                                                                  378,368                                                                    0.54

P a lo Alt o Ne t works Inc 2,320                                                                                                     433,760                                                                    0.62

P a mpa  Ene rgia  S a -S pon Adr 11,700                                                                                                   186,307                                                                     0.27

P la ins Gp Holdings Lp-Cl A 11,934                                                                                                   232,397                                                                    0.33

Qorvo Inc 6,815                                                                                                      463,460                                                                    0.67

S a le sforc e .Com Inc 3,102                                                                                                      422,364                                                                    0.61

S c hlumbe rge r Lt d 1,549                                                                                                      48,550                                                                        0.07

S c orpio Ta nke rs Inc 5,471                                                                                                      149,346                                                                     0.21

S imon P rope rt y Group Inc 1,665                                                                                                      237,715                                                                     0.34

S kyworks S olut ions Inc 5,825                                                                                                     423,437                                                                    0.61

S pirit  Ae rosyst e ms Hold-Cl A 3,016                                                                                                      227,514                                                                     0.33

S pirit  Airline s Inc 3,348                                                                                                     111,477                                                                       0.16

S t e e l Dyna mic s Inc 5,864                                                                                                     160,289                                                                     0.23

S t e ric yc le  Inc 6,451                                                                                                      301,366                                                                     0.43

S ync hrony Fina nc ia l 9,843                                                                                                     307,786                                                                    0.44

Ta iwa n S e mic onduc t or-S p Adr 11,300                                                                                                   481,768                                                                     0.69

Ta ke -Two Int e ra c t ive  S oft wre 3,871                                                                                                      445,048                                                                    0.64

Ta los Ene rgy Inc 9,465                                                                                                     176,503                                                                     0.25

Te ra dyne  Inc 8,451                                                                                                      448,906                                                                    0.64

Tra nsglobe  Ene rgy Corp 612,794                                                                                              747,584                                                                    1.07

Tra nsport a dor Ga s S ur-S p B 39,000                                                                                                 303,715                                                                     0.44

Uniqure  Nv 4,600                                                                                                     166,076                                                                     0.24

Unit e dhe a lt h Group Inc 3,803                                                                                                     758,089                                                                    1.09

Ve rt e x P ha rma c e ut ic a ls Inc 2,949                                                                                                     458,283                                                                    0.66

Visa  Inc -Cla ss A S ha re s 3,402                                                                                                     536,762                                                                    0.77

Wa lt  Disne y Co/ The 2,828                                                                                                     338,053                                                                    0.49

We lls Fa rgo & Co 10,406                                                                                                  481,452                                                                     0.69

We st e rn Digit a l Corp 16,855                                                                                                  922,062                                                                    1.32

To t a l  e q u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s 5 7 , 6 6 2 , 3 0 5 8 2 . 8 1

Fu n d s  

Lu x e m b o u r g

UBS  Lux Mone y Ma rke t -Eur-Uxa 0.314                                                                                                      3,221                                                                             0.00

To t a l  f u n d s  3 , 2 2 1 0 . 0 0

To t a l  t r a n s f e r r a b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t r a d e d  o n  a  r e g u l a t e d  m a r k e t 5 7 , 6 6 5 , 5 2 6 8 2 . 8 1
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments 

 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s  in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t ria

E rs te  G roup  Ba nk Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 6 ,720                                                                   7 ,190                                                    0 .01

B e lg iu m

Kbc  G roup  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 2 ,722                                                                   19 ,000                                                 0 .03

B ra z il

Ultra pa r P a rt ic ipa c oe s  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 23 ,800                                                                58 ,815                                                 0 .08

C a n a d a

Bnk P e tro le um Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (407 ,500 )                                                             11,293                                                  0 .02

Fron te ra  E ne rgy Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17 ,800 )                                                                370                                                      0 .00

In te r P ipe line  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,424 )                                                                10 ,472                                                 0 .02

Ne wmont G o ldc o rp  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,990 )                                                                  9 ,783                                                   0 .01

Ne xge n  E ne rgy Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (512 ,019 )                                                               7 ,095                                                   0 .01

D e n ma rk

Ambu  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (17 ,161)                                                                  2 ,026                                                   0 .00

Ap  Molle r - Ma e rsk A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 141                                                                        9 ,971                                                    0 .01

De ma n t A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,600 )                                                                54 ,737                                                0 .08

Drilling  Co  O f 1972  A/S /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3 3 0                                                                      495                                                      0 .00

G e nma b  A/S Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 2 ,610                                                                    2 ,097                                                   0 .00

Torm P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 16 ,200                                                                 6 ,943                                                   0 .01

F in la n d

Norde a  Ba nk Abp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4 3 0                                                                      356                                                      0 .00

S a mpo  O yj Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4 ,302                                                                   1,463                                                    0 .00

F ra n c e

Bnp  P a riba s  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3 ,700                                                                   13 ,450                                                 0 .02

E le c tric ite  De  Fra nc e  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (62 ,275 )                                                               49 ,509                                                0 .07

E sso  S a  Fra nc a ise Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4 ,261                                                                    4 ,261                                                    0 .01

E urone xt  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3 ,507                                                                   12 ,976                                                 0 .02

P ub lic is  G roupe  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 7 ,500                                                                   11,250                                                  0 .02

S a no fi Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3 ,963                                                                   27 ,503                                                0 .04

Te c hn ip fmc  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,914 )                                                                 8 ,964                                                   0 .01

Tha le s  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 2 ,376                                                                   832                                                      0 .00

Va llou re c  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (56 ,065 )                                                               7 ,176                                                    0 .01

World line  S a /Fra nc e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,782 )                                                                  28 ,332                                                0 .04

G e rma n y

Dws G roup  G mbh  & Co  Kga a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5 ,236                                                                   4 ,424                                                   0 .01

In fine on  Te c hno log ie s  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 46 ,245                                                                35 ,331                                                 0 .05

Mue nc he ne r Rue c kve rs ic he rungs-G e se llsc ha ft  Ag  In  Mue nc he n Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 1,214                                                                     23 ,673                                                0 .03

No t App lic a b le Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3 ,882                                                                   16 ,537                                                 0 .02

Q sc  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (507 ,126 )                                                              27 ,385                                                0 .04

Ho n g  Ko n g

Anton  O ilfie ld  S e rvic e s  G roup /Hong  Kong Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,290 ,000 )                                                          3 ,019                                                    0 .00

Ca nve s t  E nvironme n ta l P ro te c t ion  G roup  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (519 ,000 )                                                              18 ,825                                                 0 .03

Ch ina  O ilfie ld  S e rvic e s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (460 ,000 )                                                             17 ,762                                                 0 .03

Ne woc e a n  E ne rgy Ho ld ings  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (950 ,000 )                                                             15 ,461                                                  0 .02

S ino  O il And  G a s  Ho ld ings  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (655 ,000 )                                                             307                                                      0 .00

It a ly

Autog rill S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 19 ,729                                                                 2 ,565                                                   0 .00

Ba nc a  G e ne ra li S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 7 ,328                                                                   9 ,380                                                   0 .01

Ba nc a  Me d io la num S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 55 ,766                                                                17 ,287                                                 0 .02

In fra s tru t tu re  Wire le ss  Ita lia ne  S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 117 ,553                                                                50 ,548                                                0 .07

Me d ioba nc a  Ba nc a  Di Cre d ito  Fina nzia rio  S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 28 ,503                                                                28 ,788                                                0 .04

S a ipe m S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (193 ,849 )                                                              33 ,342                                                0 .05

Ja p a n

Ka ke n  P ha rma c e u tic a l Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8 ,600 )                                                                  5 ,839                                                   0 .01

S umitomo  Da in ippon  P ha rma  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,700 )                                                               25 ,230                                                0 .04

N e t h e rla n d s

Asr Ne de rla nd  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 9 ,241                                                                    19 ,036                                                 0 .03

Kon inklijke  P h ilip s  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,254 )                                                                5 ,103                                                    0 .01

P o rt u g a l

G a lp  E ne rg ia  S gps  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 9 ,375                                                                   7 ,172                                                    0 .01

S in g a p o re

Hutc h ison  P o rt  Ho ld ings  Trus t Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (952 ,400 )                                                             874                                                      0 .00

S p a in

Ba nc o  Bilba o  Vizc a ya  Arge n ta ria  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 67 ,118                                                                  31,646                                                 0 .05

Bo lsa s  Y Me rc a dos  E spa no le s  S hmsf S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6 ,791)                                                                   2 ,309                                                   0 .00

Za rdoya  O tis  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (82 ,500 )                                                               2 ,475                                                   0 .00

S w e d e n

In te rna t iona l P e tro le um Corp /S we de n Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 138 ,006                                                               25 ,235                                                0 .04

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Ade s  In te rna t iona l Ho ld ing  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9 ,244 )                                                                  424                                                      0 .00

Ang lo  Ame ric a n  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 13 ,402                                                                 14 ,694                                                 0 .02

Ba bc oc k In te rna t iona l G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 157 ,540                                                               100 ,434                                               0 .14

Ba e  S ys te ms P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 42 ,683                                                                11,772                                                  0 .02

Ba rc la ys  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 137 ,395                                                               21,432                                                 0 .03

Bhp  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,228 )                                                                6 ,071                                                    0 .01

Bp  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 12 ,689                                                                 2 ,237                                                   0 .00

Brit ish  Ame ric a n  Toba c c o  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4 ,553                                                                   6 ,562                                                   0 .01

Bt G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 92 ,128                                                                 13 ,475                                                 0 .02

Ca irn  E ne rgy P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 209 ,576                                                              58 ,986                                                0 .08

Dive rs ifie d  G a s  & O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,627 )                                                               573                                                      0 .00

E nque s t  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 2 ,046 ,793                                                          15 ,964                                                 0 .02

G la xosmithkline  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 46 ,145                                                                 17 ,213                                                  0 .02

G le nc o re  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 89 ,974                                                                7 ,933                                                   0 .01

P a n the on  Re sou rc e s  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (734 ,750 )                                                             15 ,531                                                  0 .02

P e a rson  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (24 ,756 )                                                               26 ,835                                                0 .04

P rude n tia l P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 26 ,154                                                                 31,632                                                 0 .05

Rio  Tin to  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 4 ,564                                                                   3 ,070                                                   0 .00

S pe c tris  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 35 ,598                                                                53 ,516                                                 0 .08

S p ira x-S a rc o  E ng ine e ring  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,750 )                                                                  11,699                                                  0 .02

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

Amge n  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,740 )                                                                  51,836                                                 0 .07

Atla ss ia n  Corp  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,250 )                                                                  18 ,719                                                  0 .03

Ca de nc e  De s ign  S ys te ms Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6 ,081)                                                                   13 ,387                                                 0 .02

Crowdstrike  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,988 )                                                                  62 ,956                                                0 .09

Dia mond  O ffsho re  Drilling  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (27 ,745 )                                                               23 ,668                                                0 .03

E ba y Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,185 )                                                                  13 ,440                                                 0 .02

Fide lity Na tiona l In fo rma tion  S e rvic e s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 3 8 4                                                                      7 ,169                                                    0 .01

Fle e tc o r Te c hno log ie s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,177 )                                                                   23 ,204                                                0 .03

H&R Bloc k Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,342 )                                                                8 ,444                                                   0 .01

Ide xx La bo ra to rie s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,531)                                                                    25 ,011                                                  0 .04

In tu it  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,623 )                                                                   33 ,377                                                0 .05
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 

 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Financial derivative instruments  

 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p  (c o n t in u e d ) C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s  in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

Libe rty G loba l P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,170)                                                                 29 ,219                                                 0 .04

Ma llinc krod t  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (65 ,058)                                                               10 ,742                                                 0 .02

Mc ke sson  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,745)                                                                  7 ,007                                                   0 .01

Moto ro la  S o lu tions  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,543)                                                                  24 ,492                                                0 .04

P a tte rson -Uti E ne rgy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (14 ,035)                                                                1,287                                                    0 .00

P a ypa l Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,829)                                                                  19 ,177                                                  0 .03

P e numbra  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,352)                                                                  23 ,861                                                 0 .03

P in te re s t  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,924)                                                                79 ,861                                                 0 .11

S ba  Communic a tions  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,810)                                                                   74 ,369                                                0 .11

S e rvic e now Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,522)                                                                   11,155                                                   0 .02

S hop ify Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (958)                                                                     64 ,789                                                0 .09

S na p  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,701)                                                                 432                                                      0 .00

S o la ris  O ilfie ld  In fra s truc tu re  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,144)                                                                  3 ,373                                                   0 .00

Te va  P ha rma c e u tic a l Indus trie s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (113 ,668)                                                               2 ,085                                                   0 .00

Tra nsoc e a n  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (53 ,649)                                                               3 ,937                                                   0 .01

Unite d  The ra pe u tic s  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,604)                                                                  14 ,444                                                 0 .02

Ve e va  S yste ms Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,779)                                                                   12 ,549                                                 0 .02

Ve ris ign  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,077)                                                                  56 ,918                                                 0 .08

Vona ge  Ho ld ings  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (18 ,284)                                                                32 ,201                                                 0 .05

Workda y Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,059)                                                                  13 ,825                                                 0 .02

To t a l e q u it y  s w a p 1,9 8 2 ,8 9 9 2 .8 5

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y  i n  EU R  N e t  A s s e t s

IDR # # # # # # # # # US D 667,643 14129.9998 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 1,779 0.00

KRW (2,618,000,000) US D 2,198,430 1190.8500 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc 5,317 0.01

CLP (963,600,000)      US D 1,346,619 715.5700 : 10/ 17/ 2019 Barc lays Bank P lc 10,515 0.01

CNY (21,700,000)           US D 3,056,338 7.1000 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 5,869 0.01

ZAR (14,560,000)           EUR 897,152 16.2291 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 19,619 0.03

S EK (1,230,000)               EUR 115,621 10.6382 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 891 0.00

AUD (515,000)                     EUR 319,063 1.6141 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 688 0.00

EUR (441,437)                     GBP 395,000 1.1176 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank 4,768 0.01

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  4 9 , 4 4 7 0 . 0 7

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f U n re a l i s e d  Ga i n % o f

Fu t u re s  C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

In d e x  Fu t u re s  

Ge rm a n y

S t oxx 600 Bank    Dec19 (253)                                                                               40,223                                                                    0.06

To t a l  f u t u re s  4 0 , 2 2 3 0 . 0 6

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 2 , 0 7 2 , 5 6 9 2 . 9 8

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s 5 9 , 7 3 8 , 0 9 5 8 5 . 7 9

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

A u s t ria

O mv Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,035 )                                                                 (31,229 )                                                (0 .04 )                                                  

B ra z il

Ultra pa r P a rt ic ipa c oe s  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (23 ,800 )                                                               (58 ,815 )                                                (0 .08 )                                                  

C a n a d a

E nbridge  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (29 ,889 )                                                               (40 ,793 )                                               (0 .06 )                                                  

High  Arc t ic  E ne rgy S e rvic e s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (86 ,459 )                                                               (4 ,193 )                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

Impe ria l O il Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,381)                                                                (32 ,178 )                                                (0 .05 )                                                  

P a rkla nd  Fue l Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (30 ,490 )                                                               (20 ,490 )                                               (0 .03 )                                                  

Tc  E ne rgy Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,711)                                                                  (3 ,610 )                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

C h in a

Ha ne rgy Th in  Film P owe r G roup  Ltd UBS (100 ,000 )                                                              -                                                       -                                                     

F in la n d

O utokumpu  O yj Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 47 ,735                                                                (10 ,024 )                                                (0 .01)                                                   

S to ra  E nso  O yj Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9 ,535 )                                                                  (8 ,438 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

F ra n c e

Da ssa u lt  S ys te me s  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,777 )                                                                  (7 ,220 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

E de n re d Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,099 )                                                                  (4 ,909 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

E ng ie  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,497 )                                                                (19 ,054 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

E ta b lisse me n ts  Ma ure l E t  P rom Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 92 ,142                                                                 (11,057 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

Le g ra nd  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6 ,185 )                                                                   (7 ,793 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Re xe l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (49 ,629 )                                                               (8 ,338 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

S tmic roe le c tron ic s  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (24 ,315 )                                                                (39 ,026 )                                               (0 .06 )                                                  

Ub iso ft  E n te rta inme n t S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5 ,958                                                                   (41,825 )                                                (0 .06 )                                                  

Ve o lia  E nvironne me n t S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,200 )                                                                (13 ,463 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

G e rma n y

Aurub is  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6 ,409 )                                                                  (3 ,781)                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

De u tsc he  Ba nk Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,300 )                                                                (4 ,874 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

E .O n  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (49 ,448 )                                                               (22 ,944 )                                               (0 .03 )                                                  

Ha mburge r Ha fe n  Und  Log is t ik Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,840 )                                                                  (6 ,899 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Mo to r O il He lla s  Corin th  Re fine rie s  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5 ,758                                                                   (7 ,255 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Rwe  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (19 ,063 )                                                                (52 ,995 )                                               (0 .08 )                                                  

S a p  S e Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5 ,145                                                                    (3 ,704 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Ho n g  Ko n g

Conc ord  Ne w E ne rgy G roup  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,880 ,000 )                                                         (9 ,080 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Ha ne rgy Th in  Film P owe r G roup  Ltd UBS 100 ,000                                                               (45 ,750 )                                               (0 .07 )                                                  

P e troc h ina  Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (938 ,000 )                                                             (15 ,365 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

Un ite d  E ne rgy G roup  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,678 ,000 )                                                         (94 ,677 )                                               (0 .14 )                                                   

Is ra e l

O il Re fine rie s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (335 ,074 )                                                             (7 ,251)                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

It a ly

Azimut Ho ld ing  S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (9 ,974 )                                                                  (11,919 )                                                  (0 .02 )                                                  

P rysmia n  S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 42 ,468                                                                (8 ,706 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Te na ris  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 17 ,085                                                                 (3 ,075 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

  

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  s w a p  (c o n t in u e d ) C o u n t e rp a rt y S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s in  E U R N e t  A s s e t s

Ja p a n

E isa i Co  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,900 )                                                                  (4 ,090 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Hisa mitsu  P ha rma c e u tic a l Co  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,600 )                                                                (38 ,235 )                                               (0 .05 )                                                  

Mitsub ish i Ta na be  P ha rma  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (35 ,000 )                                                               (3 ,268 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  

Mitsu i O sk Line s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (11,179 )                                                                  (21,632 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

Ko re a ,  R e p u b lic  O f

P osc o  Da e woo  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,959 )                                                                (8 ,219 )                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

N e t h e rla n d s

G a la pa gos  Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 2 ,660                                                                   (36 ,442 )                                               (0 .05 )                                                  

Roya l Du tc h  S he ll P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (27 ,000 )                                                               (45 ,225 )                                               (0 .07 )                                                  

N o rw a y

Ake r Bp  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (18 ,939 )                                                                (3 ,059 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  

O c e a n  Yie ld  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (50 ,465 )                                                               (1,528 )                                                   (0 .00 )                                                  

P e tro le um G e o-S e rvic e s  Asa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (205 ,700 )                                                             (30 ,526 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

S ubse a  7  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,752 )                                                                (8 ,052 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

P o la n d

G rupa  Lo tos  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,549 )                                                               (20 ,404 )                                               (0 .03 )                                                  

P o lski Konc e rn  Na ftowy O rle n  S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (39 ,195 )                                                                (72 ,278 )                                               (0 .10 )                                                   

S in g a p o re

China  Avia t ion  O il S inga po re  Corp  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (22 ,400 )                                                               (149 )                                                      (0 .00 )                                                  

S inga po re  Airline s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (27 ,276 )                                                               (5 ,608 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

S p a in

Ba nc o  De  S a ba de ll S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (118 ,170 )                                                                (13 ,164 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

S w e d e n

Alfa  La va l Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,838 )                                                                (27 ,707 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

In te rna t iona l P e tro le um Corp /S we de n Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 19 ,214                                                                  (5 ,331)                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

S a ndvik Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,385 )                                                               (42 ,770 )                                               (0 .06 )                                                  

S kf Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (36 ,067 )                                                               (14 ,637 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

S ve nska  Ha nde lsba nke n  Ab Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (20 ,690 )                                                               (11,195 )                                                  (0 .02 )                                                  

S w it z e rla n d

Abb  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (32 ,300 )                                                               (25 ,553 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

Ade c c o  G roup  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,498 )                                                                  (21,795 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

Alc on  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5 ,811                                                                     (11,225 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

Kue hne  + Na ge l In te rna t iona l Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,323 )                                                                   (3 ,590 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

La fa rge ho lc im Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,877 )                                                                  (8 ,381)                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

Nova rt is  Ag Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 5 ,125                                                                    (11,645 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Anglo  P a c ific  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (131,916 )                                                                (14 ,165 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

An to fa ga s ta  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (16 ,000 )                                                                (5 ,968 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Ash te a d  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 43 ,910                                                                 (3 ,474 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Dive rs ifie d  G a s  & O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (763 ,610 )                                                              (56 ,104 )                                                (0 .08 )                                                  

E ne rge a n  O il & G a s  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 16 ,947                                                                 (10 ,344 )                                                (0 .01)                                                   

E nque s t  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 1,425 ,214                                                            (20 ,427 )                                               (0 .03 )                                                  

E xpe ria n  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (14 ,657 )                                                                (13 ,420 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

Hu rric a ne  E ne rgy P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 213 ,708                                                               (2 ,706 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  

La nd  S e c u rit ie s  G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 0                                                                           (1)                                                           -                                                     

Le ga l & G e ne ra l G roup  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (65 ,293 )                                                               (21,255 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

P a rkme a d  G roup  P lc /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 176 ,006                                                               (20 ,691)                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

P re mie r O il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 779 ,349                                                              (24 ,842 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

Re n tokil In it ia l P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (114 ,933 )                                                               (22 ,865 )                                               (0 .03 )                                                  

Roc khoppe r E xp lo ra t ion  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 394 ,179                                                               (2 ,317 )                                                   (0 .00 )                                                  

Ro lls -Royc e  Ho ld ings  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,568 )                                                                (3 ,731)                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

Roya l Ma il P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (107 ,894 )                                                              (6 ,830 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

S a ge  G roup  P lc /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 67 ,387                                                                (7 ,008 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

We ir G roup  P lc /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h 21,253                                                                 (9 ,369 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Wpp  P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (32 ,300 )                                                               (17 ,452 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

Ame risou rc e be rge n  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,538 )                                                                  (415 )                                                      (0 .00 )                                                  

Ca me c o  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,300 )                                                               (16 ,941)                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

Ca rd ina l He a lth  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (13 ,218 )                                                                 (49 ,225 )                                               (0 .07 )                                                  

Ch  Rob inson  Worldwide  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,246 )                                                                  (597 )                                                     (0 .00 )                                                  

De le k Us  E ne rgy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,349 )                                                                  (10 ,905 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

E c ope tro l S a Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,600 )                                                                (17 ,744 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

E ndo  In te rna t iona l P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (141,723 )                                                               (109 ,198 )                                               (0 .16 )                                                   

E n i S pa Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (20 ,800 )                                                               (5 ,533 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

E ra  G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (38 ,493 )                                                               (38 ,133 )                                                (0 .05 )                                                  

E xxon  Mob il Co rp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8 ,923 )                                                                  (17 ,433 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

Flo te k Indus trie s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (359 ,232 )                                                             (36 ,446 )                                               (0 .05 )                                                  

Fra nk'S  In te rna t iona l Nv Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (85 ,645 )                                                               (31,424 )                                                (0 .05 )                                                  

G a rmin  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (10 ,843 )                                                                (31,031)                                                 (0 .04 )                                                  

G e n ie  E ne rgy Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (27 ,273 )                                                               (7 ,505 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Hc a  He a lthc a re  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,885 )                                                                  (582 )                                                     (0 .00 )                                                  

He a lthc a re  S e rvic e s  G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (25 ,503 )                                                               (40 ,704 )                                               (0 .06 )                                                  

He n ry S c he in  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,180 )                                                                   (12 ,382 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

Ho llyfron tie r Co rp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,461)                                                                   (46 ,485 )                                               (0 .07 )                                                  

In te rna t iona l Bus ine ss  Ma c h ine s  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,742 )                                                                  (52 ,090 )                                               (0 .07 )                                                  

In tre xon  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (52 ,160 )                                                                (10 ,201)                                                 (0 .01)                                                   

Ja c k He nry & Assoc ia te s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,010 )                                                                   (2 ,789 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  

Ke a ne  G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (21,707 )                                                                (15 ,132 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

Libe rty G loba l P lc  Lila c Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (30 ,697 )                                                               (17 ,035 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

Liga nd  P ha rma c e u tic a ls  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,271)                                                                   (33 ,809 )                                               (0 .05 )                                                  

Lilis  E ne rgy Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (245 ,107 )                                                              (7 ,397 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Me tt le r-To le do  In te rna t iona l Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (593 )                                                                     (25 ,897 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

Na bo rs  Indus trie s  Ltd Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (139 ,436 )                                                              (24 ,301)                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

No rth rop  G rumma n  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (643 )                                                                     (4 ,081)                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

O mnic e ll Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (5 ,490 )                                                                  (2 ,367 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  

O mnic om G roup  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,725 )                                                                  (9 ,708 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

O pko  He a lth  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (186 ,589 )                                                              (42 ,788 )                                               (0 .06 )                                                  

O ra c le  Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (15 ,737 )                                                                (42 ,872 )                                               (0 .06 )                                                  

P a r P a c ific  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (7 ,480 )                                                                  (7 ,684 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

P a t te rson  Cos  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (33 ,145 )                                                                (33 ,443 )                                               (0 .05 )                                                  

P e rkine lme r Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (4 ,541)                                                                   (10 ,288 )                                                (0 .01)                                                   

P ione e r Na tu ra l Re sou rc e s  Co Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,111)                                                                      (2 ,395 )                                                  (0 .00 )                                                  

Q ue s t  Dia gnos t ic s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (6 ,621)                                                                   (28 ,301)                                                (0 .04 )                                                  

Rose t ta  Re sou rc e s  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (33 ,297 )                                                               (12 ,217 )                                                 (0 .02 )                                                  

S e a ga te  Te c hno logy P lc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (8 ,750 )                                                                  (28 ,733 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

Te xa s  In s trume n ts  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (3 ,754 )                                                                  (18 ,904 )                                                (0 .03 )                                                  

Tha i O il P c l Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (65 ,500 )                                                               (3 ,962 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

Un ite d  P a rc e l S e rvic e  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,816 )                                                                    (1,932 )                                                   (0 .00 )                                                  

Ve rizon  Communic a t ions  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (2 ,548 )                                                                  (5 ,142 )                                                   (0 .01)                                                   

Vu lc a n  Ma te ria ls  Co Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (1,488 )                                                                   (13 ,635 )                                                (0 .02 )                                                  

We s te rn  Un ion  Co /The Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (29 ,553 )                                                               (28 ,463 )                                               (0 .04 )                                                  

Xe rox Corp Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (12 ,234 )                                                                (10 ,324 )                                                (0 .01)                                                   

Za yo  G roup  Ho ld ings  Inc Ba nk o f Ame ric a  Me rrill Lync h (22 ,934 )                                                               (5 ,049 )                                                  (0 .01)                                                   

To t a l  e q u it y  s w a p s  (2 ,3 9 3 ,0 2 9 )                       (3 . 4 4 )                               
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 (continued) 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Financial derivative instruments (continued) 

 

 
 

Fo re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s
Tra d e  ra t e  a n d U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f

C u rre n c y  S o l d C u rre n c y  B o u g h t  D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y C o u n t e rp a r t y  i n  EU R  N e t  A s s e t s

CHF (590,000)                    EUR 538,542 1.0956 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (4,267)                                                                     (0.01)                                              

S GD (705,000)                    EUR 462,235 1.5252 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (4,844)                                                                     (0.01)                                              

CAD (1,050,000)               EUR 716,433 1.4656 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  (10,210)                                                                   (0.01)                                              

HKD (1,880,000)               EUR 216,394 8.6879 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (3,348)                                                                     (0.00)                                             

CAD (8,840,000)              EUR 6,013,415 1.4700 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  (104,229)                                                              (0.15)                                              

NOK (10,300,000)           EUR 1,036,089 9.9412 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (2,656)                                                                     (0.00)                                             

THB (13,960,000)           EUR 413,945 33.7243 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (4,112)                                                                       (0.01)                                              

TWD (16,000,000)           US D 514,469 31.1000 : 10/ 17/ 2019 S t a t e  S ree t  (784)                                                                           (0.00)                                             

US D (50,755,000)          EUR 45,670,154 1.1113 : 10/ 17/ 2019 J P  Morgan Chase  Bank (822,232)                                                             (1.18)                                               

INR (193,180,000)        US D 2,685,144 71.9440 : 10/ 17/ 2019 HS BC Bank P lc (17,237)                                                                  (0.02)                                             

J P Y (869,900,000)      EUR 7,310,889 118.9869 : 10/ 17/ 2019 West pack Banking Corpora t ion (71,157)                                                                   (0.10)                                              

To t a l  f o re i g n  c u rre n c y  f o rw a rd  c o n t ra c t s  ( 1, 0 4 5 , 0 7 7 )                     ( 1. 5 0 )                  

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r U n re a l i s e d  Lo s s % o f

Fu t u re s  o f  C o n t ra c t s i n  EU R N e t  A s s e t s

In d e x  f u t u re s

Ge rm a n y

Msc i Emu Fut       Dec19 (155)                                                                                (10,075)                                                                  (0.01)                                              

S t oxx 600 Insu    Dec19 (57)                                                                                   (2,565)                                                                     (0.00)                                             

J a p a n

Topix Indx Fut r    Dec19 (17)                                                                                    (91,620)                                                                  (0.13)                                              

To t a l  f u t u re s ( 10 4 , 2 6 0 )                         ( 0 . 15 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s  ( 3 , 5 4 2 , 3 6 6 )                    ( 5 . 0 9 )                  

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  l i a b i l i t i e s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s ( 3 , 5 4 2 , 3 6 6 )                    ( 5 . 0 9 )                  

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t  

i n  EU R A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 5 6 , 19 5 , 7 2 9 8 0 . 7 1                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 13 , 4 3 2 , 6 3 9 19 . 2 9                  

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  6 9 , 6 2 8 , 3 6 8 10 0 . 0 0               

% o f  

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  a s s e t s To t a l  A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 5 7 , 6 6 5 , 5 2 6 7 7 . 8 9                 

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 2 , 0 7 2 , 5 6 9 2 . 8 0                    

D e p o s i t s 13 , 9 9 0 , 2 5 5 18 . 9 0                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 3 10 , 2 9 6 0 . 4 1                    

To t a l  a s s e t s 7 4 , 0 3 8 , 6 4 6 10 0 . 0 0               
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Investment Manager’s Report  

 

1st October 2019 to 31st March 2020 

 

Market environment 

Emerging markets (MSCI EM) equities returned ~-15% in USD terms over the 6 month-period ending March 31, 2020. After 

a strong Q4 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has sent global equity markets into deep negative territory in Q1 2020. The current 

situation also varies by region as countries are at different stages on the epidemic curve. Governments have had to trade 

controlling the outbreak on one hand, with the associated economic impact on the other hand. China and some other Asian 

countries have weighed more on the side of control early on with other countries partially following suit now. Meanwhile, 

China is now slowly ramping up its economic activity with a big focus on reopening businesses without letting the rate of 

infections going back up to previous highs. In addition, the collapse of oil prices has increased volatility in the market in 

addition to the evolving Coronavirus situation. 

 

Performance 

The strategy outperformed its benchmark, the MSCI Emerging Marketing Index (r), over the reporting period. Stock selection 

in Consumer Discretionary and IT contributed most, driven by holdings in Tal Education and TSMC. TAL’s online revenues 

have been growing fast off a small base, and they are much better positioned than their competitors in this segment – their 

market share gain should hence get accelerated. TSMC outperformed as it held up relatively well in a falling market. TSMC 

is seen as a big beneficiary of trends such as 5G and high performance computing (AI, IoT, edge computing etc.). In contrast, 

stock selection within Financials and Energy detracted. More specifically, our holdings in Bank Mandiri (Indonesia, 

Financials), HDFC Bank (India, Financials) and Banorte (Mexico, Financials)  detracted from performance. The banks fell as 

the coronavirus outbreak worsened in the country and concerns that economic weakness may worsen asset quality for the 

banks. Last, Petrobras (Brazil, Energy) was hit by the oil price collapse as Russia and Saudi Arabia couldn’t agree on further 

production cut. Moreover, the oil price also further weakened by the anticipated Covid-19 induced demand destruction.  

Outlook 

The short-term impact is expected to be very severe. Recession fears are growing as the significant near-term impact on 

revenues and earnings is inescapable. Markets in EM are indeed discounting a recession if you look at price-to-book ratio 

(P/B) as a measure – MSCI EM's P/B is ~1.3 as of March 31 which is close to the 2001(dotcom downturn) , 2003 (SARS) 

and 2008 (Global Financial Crisis) trough levels. Even then there could very well be further downside, which is difficult to 

predict and depends on the evolution of the outbreak, as well as the extent of policy support globally – which has already been 

very significant.  

 

It is worth noting though that this time around there had been no large build-up of excess capacity in EM - in fact, the past 

decade has seen low investment/capex – hence this capacity should get filled up relatively quickly once the situation 

normalizes. In the long-term, we believe the underlying secular trends in EM should outweigh the near-term losses. 

At the sector level, a series of trends are seeing an acceleration which can benefit companies with the right offering e.g. an 

accelerated offline-to-online shift across businesses, growing demand for automated solutions and continued supply chain 

shifts among others. 

 

At the company level, we expect companies with high fixed costs, high debt and/or high expenses to face difficulties riding 

out this storm. These are mostly smaller players in the unlisted equity space. 

 

We have asked our analysts to look for companies that are strong enough to withstand severe economic dislocation for 12-24 

months – these are typically companies with a combination of low fixed cost, low interest burden, and low operating expenses. 

We will also look to identify those companies which have the most upside as and when the situation normalizes. Whenever 

we find opportunities to add companies that meet this criteria, we will make trades. 

 

Even going into the downturn, our portfolio had been tilted towards companies meeting the above criteria – with better balance 

sheets and higher ROEs than the broader market at large. 
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Investment Manager’s Report (continued) 

 

1st October 2019 to 31st March 2020 

 

Outlook (continued) 

 

While we aren't able to do our "boots on the ground" research for the time being, we still have our ears to the ground. We 

have ramped up talking to our network of contacts, industry experts and company representatives. And while we are working 

in BCP (business continuity plan) mode, with many of us working from home, our processes and operations continue to work 

well. 

 

Thus we remain confident in fundamental, long-term changes playing out in emerging markets and our strategies are focused 

on quality companies associated with them. 

 

 

 
2BHistorical performance is no indicator of current or future performance. 

The performance data does not take account of any commissions and costs charged when subscribing and redeeming shares. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
 

As at 31 March 2020 

 
 

 
 

* As at 30 September 2019 

** Class reopened as at 8 January 2020 

*** Class reopened as at 11 October 2019 
 

 

USD USD

Assets Note 2020 2019*

Cash and cash equivalents 8 55,327,435 46,466,971

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Investments in transferable securities 6,9 1,813,745,497 1,666,688,649

Investments in financial derivative assets 6,9 30,905,977 36,298,687

Due from broker 8 18,215,283 - 

Subscriptions receivable 281,456 2,857,060

Interest, dividend and other receivables 5,595,969 3,312,586

Total assets 1,924,071,617 1,755,623,953

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Bank overdraft 8 19,738,256 11,233,577

Due to broker 8 439,125 16,137

Redemption payable 268,526 7,062,643

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13 2,670,240 1,777,141

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares) 23,116,147 20,089,498

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 1,900,955,470 1,735,534,455

Net assets per Class (USD) I-A1-acc Shares USD 133.18 152.31

Number of Class (USD) I-A1-acc Shares in issue 388,839.87 369,799.89

Net assets per Class (USD) I-A2-acc Shares USD 125.23 143.19

Number of Class(USD) I-A2-acc Shares in issue 158,499.00 158,498.79

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-A2-acc Shares EUR 90.61 104.27

Number of Class (EUR) I-A2-acc Shares in issue 121,128.38 104,710.92

Net assets per Class (USD) I-A3-acc Shares USD 81.18 92.80

Number of Class (USD) I-A3-acc Shares in issue 3,578,403.91 3,499,400.78

Net assets per Class (EUR) I-B-acc Shares EUR 152.10 174.42

Number of Class (EUR) I-B-acc Shares in issue 1,024,746.72 1,100,659.77

Net assets per Class (USD) I-B-acc Shares USD 195.09 222.28

Number of Class (USD) I-B-acc Shares in issue 3,941,299.81 3,549,530.88

Net assets per Class (USD) K-1-acc Shares USD                               -   7,094,682.60

Number of Class K-1 USD Shares in issue                               -   0.10

Net assets per Class (GBP) P-acc Shares GBP 137.70 159.22

Number of Class (GBP) P-acc Shares in issue 8,890.08 6,740.35

Net assets per Class (USD) P-acc Shares USD 118.92 136.67

Number of Class (USD) P-acc Shares in issue 215,220.36 264,071.31

Net assets per Class (SGD) P-acc Shares SGD 120.46 134.51

Number of Class (SGD) P-acc Shares in issue 8,125.18 10,725.31

Net assets per Class (GBP) Q-acc Shares GBP 139.80 160.90

Number of Class (GBP) Q-acc Shares in issue 12,611.62 17,650.16

Net assets per Class (USD) F-acc Shares USD 128.14 146.47

Number of Class(USD) F-acc Shares in issue 960,423.51 866,100.49

Net assets per Class (USD) Q-acc Shares USD 107.82 123.33

Number of Class (USD) Q-acc Shares in issue 716,141.63 755,346.46

 Net assets per Class (GBP) I-B-acc Shares GBP 103.17 118.28

 Number of Class(GBP) I-B-acc Shares in issue 400,000.00 400,000.00

 Net assets per Class (SGD) Q-acc Shares SGD 100.13 111.24

 Number of Class (SGD) Q-acc Shares in issue 2,628.38 7,550.23

Net assets per Class (USD) I-A3-PF-acc Shares** USD 77.23                          -   

Number of Class (USD) I-A3-acc Shares in issue 2,990,757.31                          -   

Net assets per Class (EUR) Q-acc Shares*** EUR 84.04                          -   

Number of Class (EUR) Q-acc Shares in issue 805,184.06                          -   
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
 
* For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 

 

For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
* For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2020 

 

USD USD

Income Note 2020 2019*

Interest income 3 23,569 63,359

Dividend income 4 20,525,383 9,735,465

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 (340,645,362) 67,806,522

Net gain on foreign exchange 646,947 360,501

Net investment (loss)/income (319,449,463) 77,965,847

Expenses

Operating expenses:

Investment manager's fee 13 (2,782,771) (2,736,880)

Other fees (2,045,501) (3,061,752)

Operating expenses before finance costs (4,828,272) (5,798,632)

Net (loss)/gain from operations before finance costs (324,277,735) 72,167,215

Withholding tax (2,574,983) (788,867)

Interest expense 3 (12,982) (17,296)

Total finance costs and other charges (2,587,965) (806,163)

Change in net assets attributable to holders redeemable particiapting shares (326,865,700) 71,361,052

USD USD

2020 2019*

Balance at the beginning of the period 1,735,534,455 1,751,376,642

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period (326,865,700) 71,361,052

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the period 653,913,757 238,609,674

Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the period (162,984,497) (282,624,345)

Anti-dilution levy 1,357,455 860,601

Balance at the end of the period 1,900,955,470 1,779,583,624
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Statement of Cash Flows 

 
 For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 
 

* For period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

USD USD

Operating activities 2020 2019*

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares during the period (326,865,700) 71,361,052

Adjustments for:

Net loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 340,645,362 (67,806,522)

Net (receipt)/payment from trading activities (482,309,498) 49,382,444

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest, dividend and other receivables (17,923,062) (2,208,364)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (5,478,032) (2,915,002)

Cash flows (used in)/provided by operating activities (491,930,930) 47,813,608

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 653,913,757 238,609,674

Payments on redemption of shares (162,984,497) (282,624,345)

Anti-dilution levy 1,357,455 860,601

Cash flows provide by/(used in) financing activities 492,286,715 (43,154,070)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the period 355,785 4,659,538

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 35,233,394 44,914,673

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 35,589,179 49,574,211

Cash represented by

Cash and cash equivalents 55,327,435 56,694,954

Bank overdraft (19,738,256) (7,120,743)

Supplementary information

Interest received 23,569 63,359

Dividend received 20,525,383 13,117,397

Interest paid 12,982 18,823

Withholding tax paid 2,707,185 788,867
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2020 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 
 

 
 

Financial derivative instruments 

 

 
 

 
 

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f  Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Eq u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  U S D N e t  A s s e t s

In v e s t m e n t  t y p e  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n

B ra z i l

Banco Bradesco S a -P re f 6,417,130                                                                                         25,697,719                                                            1.35                                                                                  

C h i n a

Kweichow Mout a i Co Lt d-A 239,227                                                                                             37,470,386                                                           1.97                                                                                  

P ing An Insurance  Group Co-H 8,322,000                                                                                       81,760,866                                                            4.30                                                                                 

Tencent  Holdings Lt d 2,921,900                                                                                        143,326,114                                                          7.54                                                                                 

J iangsu Hengrui Medic ine  C-A 5,641,530                                                                                        73,196,488                                                            3.85                                                                                 

China  J inmao Holdings Group 76,036,000                                                                                   49,245,987                                                           2.59                                                                                 

Gree  Elec t ric  Appliances I-A 7,820,852                                                                                       57,555,720                                                           3.03                                                                                 

China  Merchant s Bank-H 14,440,000                                                                                    65,205,331                                                            3.43                                                                                 

Hu n g a ry

Ot p Bank P lc 1,248,968                                                                                        36,093,443                                                           1.90                                                                                  

In d i a

Hdfc  Bank Limit ed 5,344,258                                                                                       60,887,506                                                           3.20                                                                                 

Ta t a  Consult ancy S vcs Lt d 2,827,765                                                                                       68,257,718                                                            3.59                                                                                 

In d o n e s i a

Bank Mandiri P e rse ro Tbk P t 146,833,300                                                                                42,132,425                                                            2.22                                                                                 

Ast ra  Int e rna t iona l Tbk P t 123,753,300                                                                                29,591,531                                                             1.56                                                                                  

Ko re a ,  R e p u b l i c  Of

Lg Household & Hea lt h Ca re 48,887                                                                                                 44,977,566                                                           2.37                                                                                 

S amsung Elec t ronic s Co Lt d 3,541,301                                                                                         138,905,921                                                         7.31                                                                                  

S k Hynix Inc 1,286,738                                                                                        88,048,035                                                           4.63                                                                                 

Ma l a y s i a

Cimb Group Holdings Bhd 26,841,517                                                                                     22,367,931                                                            1.18                                                                                   

Me x i c o

Grupo Financ ie ro Banort e -O 9,936,400                                                                                       27,531,400                                                            1.45                                                                                  

R u s s i a n  Fe d e ra t i o n

S be rbank 17,625,291                                                                                     42,230,571                                                            2.22                                                                                 

S o u t h  A f r i c a

Naspe rs Lt d-N S hs 472,964                                                                                             67,626,702                                                           3.56                                                                                 

Ta i w a n

Ta iwan S emiconduc t or Manufac 17,253,000                                                                                    156,319,032                                                         8.22                                                                                 

U n i t e d  Ki n g d o m

Lukoil P jsc -S pon Adr 918,637                                                                                              55,118,220                                                             2.90                                                                                 

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Of  A m e r i c a

Alibaba  Group Holding-S p Adr 963,905                                                                                             187,460,244                                                        9.86                                                                                 

Ta l Educa t ion Group- Adr 1,649,000                                                                                        87,825,740                                                           4.62                                                                                 

Va le  S a -S p Adr 3,674,581                                                                                        30,462,276                                                           1.60                                                                                  

P e t roleo Bra sil-S p P re f  Adr 2,427,830                                                                                       13,086,004                                                            0.69                                                                                 

P e t roleo Bra sile iro-S pon Adr 2,319,600                                                                                        12,757,800                                                            0.67                                                                                 

Banco Bradesco-Adr 781,965                                                                                              3,174,778                                                                0.17                                                                                  

Yandex Nv-A 970,400                                                                                             33,042,120                                                            1.74                                                                                  

Mercadolibre  Inc 66,294                                                                                                 32,389,923                                                           1.70                                                                                  

To t a l  e q u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s  1, 8 13 , 7 4 5 , 4 9 7                 9 5 . 4 2                                  

To t a l  t ra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 1, 8 13 , 7 4 5 , 4 9 7                 9 5 . 4 2                                  

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t
Wa rra n t s D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  U S D A s s e t s

Lu x e m b o u rg

Merrill-Cw21 Kwe ichow Mout 01/ 04/ 2021 197,317                                                                                               30,905,977                                                           1.62                                                                                  

To t a l  i n v e s t m e n t  i n  w a rra n t s  19 7 , 3 17                                          3 0 , 9 0 5 , 9 7 7                      1. 6 2                                     

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s  19 7 , 3 17                                          3 0 , 9 0 5 , 9 7 7                      1. 6 2                                     

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o f  l o s s 1, 8 4 4 , 6 5 1, 4 7 4                 9 7 . 0 4                                  

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f  N e t

i n  U S D A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 1, 8 4 4 , 6 5 1, 4 7 4                 9 7 . 0 4                                  

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 5 6 , 3 0 3 , 9 9 6                      2 . 9 6                                    

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  1, 9 0 0 , 9 5 5 , 4 7 0                10 0 . 0 0                                

% o f  To t a l  

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  a s s e t s A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 1, 8 13 , 7 4 5 , 4 9 7                 9 4 . 2 7                                  

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 3 0 , 9 0 5 , 9 7 7                      1. 6 1                                     

D e p o s i t s 5 5 , 3 2 7 , 4 3 5                      2 . 8 8                                    

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 2 4 , 0 9 2 , 7 0 8                      1. 2 5                                     

To t a l  a s s e t s 1, 9 2 4 , 0 7 1, 6 17                 10 0 . 0 0                                
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Schedule of Investments as at 30 September 2019 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

 

Transferrable securities admitted to official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market 

 

 
 

Financial derivative instruments 

 

 

S e c u rit y /D e s c rip t io n N u mb e r o f F a ir va lu e % o f

E q u it y  in ve s t me n t s S h a re s /C o n t ra c t s in  U S D N e t  A s s e t s

B ra z il

Ba nc o  Bra de sc o  S a -P re f 7 ,595 ,152                                                           61,849 ,416                                           3 .56                                                       

C h in a

J ia ngsu  He ngru i Me d ic ine  C-A 5 ,334 ,166                                                           60 ,288 ,092                                         3 .47                                                       

Kwe ic how Mou ta i Co  Ltd -A 163 ,027                                                               26 ,263 ,736                                         1.51                                                         

Ho n g  Ko n g

China  J inma o  Ho ld ings  G roup 61,684 ,000                                                         35 ,329 ,382                                         2 .04                                                       

Cnooc  Ltd 33 ,906 ,000                                                        51,727 ,908                                          2 .98                                                       

P ing  An  In su ra nc e  G roup  Co-H 6 ,584 ,500                                                          75 ,635 ,154                                          4 .36                                                       

Te nc e n t  Ho ld ings  Ltd 1,891,200                                                            79 ,658 ,423                                         4 .59                                                       

Hu n g a ry

O tp  Ba nk P lc 1,450 ,840                                                           60 ,394 ,422                                         3 .48                                                       

In d ia

Axis  Ba nk Ltd 4 ,384 ,369                                                          42 ,378 ,208                                         2 .44                                                       

Hd fc  Ba nk Limite d 3 ,639 ,406                                                          63 ,034 ,634                                         3 .63                                                       

P owe r G rid  Corp  O f Ind ia  Ltd 12 ,231,994                                                          34 ,356 ,140                                          1.98                                                        

In d o n e s ia

Astra  In te rna t iona l Tbk P t 68 ,536 ,800                                                        31,866 ,353                                          1.84                                                        

Ba nk Ma nd iri P e rse ro  Tbk P t 113 ,963 ,900                                                       55 ,998 ,464                                         3 .23                                                       

Ko re a ,  R e p u b lic  O f

Lg  House ho ld  & He a lth  Ca re 31,315                                                                  34 ,217 ,034                                          1.97                                                        

S a msung  E le c tron ic s  Co  Ltd 2 ,884 ,825                                                          118 ,296 ,757                                         6 .82                                                       

S k Hyn ix Inc 974 ,826                                                              66 ,990 ,509                                         3 .86                                                       

S k Innova tion  Co  Ltd 217 ,694                                                               30 ,211,264                                           1.74                                                        

Ma la ys ia

Cimb  G roup  Ho ld ings  Bhd 29 ,771,888                                                         35 ,766 ,085                                         2 .06                                                       

Me xic o

G rupo  Fina nc ie ro  Ba no rte -O 8 ,716 ,400                                                           46 ,826 ,811                                           2 .70                                                       

N e t h e rla n d s

P rosus 380 ,226                                                              27 ,918 ,083                                          1.61                                                         

R u s s ia n  F e d e ra t io n

S be rba nk 18 ,371,312                                                           64 ,475 ,497                                         3 .72                                                       

S o u t h  A fric a

Na spe rs  Ltd -N S hs 389 ,331                                                               58 ,930 ,527                                         3 .40                                                       

Ta iw a n

Ta iwa n  S e mic onduc to r Ma nufa c 15 ,879 ,000                                                         139 ,215 ,394                                         8 .02                                                       

Th a ila n d

Ba ngkok Ba nk P ub lic  Co-Nvdr 7 ,150 ,100                                                            40 ,543 ,912                                          2 .34                                                       

U n it e d  Kin g d o m

Luko il P jsc -S pon  Adr 749 ,096                                                              61,980 ,203                                          3 .57                                                       

U n it e d  S t a t e s  O f A me ric a

Aliba ba  G roup  Ho ld ing -S p  Adr 772 ,536                                                              129 ,191,194                                           7 .44                                                       

Ba nc o  Bra de sc o -Adr 763 ,277                                                              6 ,213 ,075                                             0 .36                                                       

P e tro le o  Bra s ile iro -S pon  Adr 1,043 ,900                                                           15 ,105 ,233                                           0 .87                                                       

P e tro le o  Bra s il-S p  P re f  Adr 1,152 ,200                                                            15 ,139 ,908                                           0 .87                                                       

Ta l E duc a tion  G roup - Adr 1,855 ,000                                                           63 ,515 ,199                                           3 .66                                                       

Va le  S a -S p  Adr 2 ,901,881                                                            33 ,371,632                                          1.92                                                        

To t a l  e q u it y  in ve s t me n t s  1,6 6 6 ,6 8 8 ,6 4 9                   9 6 .0 3                                

To t a l  t ra n s fe rra b le  s e c u rit ie s  a d mit t e d  t o  o ffic ia l  s t o c k e xc h a n g e  l is t in g  o r t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u la t e d  ma rke t 1,6 6 6 ,6 8 8 ,6 4 9                   9 6 .0 3                                

S e c u r i t y / D e s c r i p t i o n N u m b e r  o f Fa i r  v a l u e % o f
Wa rra n t s D a t e  o f  Ma t u r i t y S h a re s / C o n t ra c t s i n  U S D N e t  A s s e t s

Lu x e m b o u rg

Merrill-Cw19 Kwe ichow Mout 15/ 10/ 2019 225,317                                                                                              36,298,687                                                            2.09                                                                                  

To t a l  i n v e s t m e n t  i n  w a rra n t s  3 6 , 2 9 8 , 6 8 7                       2 . 0 9                                     

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s  3 6 , 2 9 8 , 6 8 7                       2 . 0 9                                     

To t a l  f i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  a t  f a i r  v a l u e  t h ro u g h  p ro f i t  o f  l o s s 1, 7 0 2 , 9 8 7 , 3 3 8                 9 8 . 12                                   

Fa i r  v a l u e % o f

i n  U S D N e t  A s s e t s

To t a l  n e t  i n v e s t m e n t s 1, 7 0 2 , 9 8 7 , 3 3 6                 9 8 . 12                                   

Ot h e r  a s s e t s  i n  e x c e s s  o f  o t h e r  l i a b i l i t i e s 3 2 , 5 4 7 , 119                        1. 8 8                                     

To t a l  n e t  a s s e t s  1, 7 3 5 , 5 3 4 , 4 5 5                 10 0 . 0 0                                

% o f

To t a l  A s s e t s

A n a l y s i s  o f  t o t a l  n e t  a s s e t s A s s e t s

Tra n s f e rra b l e  s e c u r i t i e s  a d m i t t e d  t o  o f f i c i a l  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e  l i s t i n g  o r  t ra d e d  o n  a  re g u l a t e d  m a rk e t 1, 6 6 6 , 6 8 8 , 6 4 9                 9 4 . 9 3                                  

Fi n a n c i a l  d e r i v a t i v e  i n s t ru m e n t s 3 6 , 2 9 8 , 6 8 7                       2 . 0 7                                     

D e p o s i t s 4 6 , 4 6 6 , 9 7 1                       2 . 6 5                                     

Ot h e r  a s s e t s 6 , 16 9 , 6 4 6                          0 . 3 5                                     

To t a l  a s s e t s 1, 7 5 5 , 6 2 3 , 9 5 3                 10 0 . 0 0                                
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 1. Organisation  

 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC (the “Company”) was incorporated on 1 December 2009 as an open-ended investment 

company with variable capital organised under the laws of Ireland under the registration number 478169 and has been 

authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) pursuant to the provisions of the European 

Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 as amended and the 

Central Bank of Ireland UCITS Regulations, and with effect from 1 November 2015, the Central Bank (Supervision and 

Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 

2015 (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations”). The Company is structured as an umbrella fund consisting of different 

sub-funds, each comprising one or more share classes. 

 

UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. acts as Management Company for the Company. As at 31 March 2020, the 

Company had no employees. The investment activities of the Company are managed by UBS Asset Management (UK) 

Ltd. (the “Investment Manager”). The registered office of the Company is situated at 32 Molesworth Street, Dublin 2, 

Ireland. 

The sub-funds which were active at 31 March 2020 and approved by the Central Bank of Ireland are as follows: 

Sub-Fund Launched on 

Commencement of 

operations 

       
  

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund 29 October 2010 29 October 2010 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund 28 August 2012 28 August 2012 

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund 1 January 2010 1 January 2010 

 

2. Significant accounting policies  

(a) Statement of compliance 

The unaudited financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34 (“IAS 34”), 

Interim Financial Reporting as adopted by the European Union. The financial statements were authorized for issue 

on 22 May 2020. 

The unaudited financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the annual financial 

statements and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended 30 

September 2019 (approved on 27 January 2020). 

(b) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company are presented in United States Dollars (USD) and rounded to the nearest 

USD. They are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss and derivative financial instruments. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost 

of redemption amount (redeemable participating shares).  

 

Going concern 

The Directors have made an assessment of each sub-fund’s ability to continue as a going concern and are satisfied 

that the sub-funds have the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is 

not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast doubt upon any sub-fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Therefore the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis. 

 

Use of judgements and estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU, requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 

income, expenses, assets and liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 

and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 

basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC  

Semi-Annual Report as of 31 March 2020 

 

 

 50 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(b) Basis of preparation (continued) 

Use of judgements and estimates (continued) 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period and 

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information about assumptions and estimation 

uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial period, as well 

as critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 

in the financial statements are included in notes 6 and 9. 

 

An investment entity is an entity that has the follow three essential criteria elements: 

 

 obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with investment 

management services; 

 commits to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, 

investment income, or both; and 

   measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.  

 

If the essential criteria is met, then the entity considers if it has the ‘typical’ characteristics of an investment entity, 

as set out below.  

 

The following are the typical characteristics of an investment entity: 

 

   it has more than one investment; 

   it has more than one investor; 

   it has investors that are not related parties of the entity; and 

   it has ownership interests in the form of equity or similar interests. 

 

The Directors are satisfied that the Company meets the essential elements of an investment entity and also has the 

majority of the typical characteristics of an investment entity in accordance with IFRS 10. 

 

 (c) Foreign currency translation 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. If 

indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed, then management uses its judgement to determine the 

functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and 

conditions. The majority of the Company’s investments and transactions are denominated in USD. Investor 

subscriptions and redemptions are determined based on net asset value and received and paid in USD. The expenses 

(including management fees, depositary fees and administration fees) are denominated and paid in USD. Accordingly, 

management has determined that the functional currency of the Company is USD. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting currency at exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions. For practical reasons, a rate that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction is often used, 

for example, an average rate might be used for all transactions in each foreign currency occurring during the period. 

However, if exchange rates fluctuate significantly, the use of the average rate for the period will be inappropriate. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional 

currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised 

gains and losses on disposals or settlements of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at 

fair value are translated to USD at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. For income and 

expenses that are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the use of average exchange rate is permitted 

under IFRS if they are a reasonable approximation of the actual. Foreign currency exchange differences relating to 

investments at fair value through profit and loss and derivative financial instruments are included in the net gains on 

foreign exchange.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued) 

The Company operates a number of sub-funds, each with its separately determined functional currency as stated 

below. 

 Functional Currency Reporting Currency 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC USD  USD 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy GBP GBP 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund  EUR EUR 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund  EUR EUR 

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund  USD USD 

 

The financial statements of each sub-fund are presented in the currency that it is primarily exposed to with the 

Company financial statements being presented in USD (“United States Dollars”). The difference arising from 

translation of the primary statements at different exchange rates, for the purpose of producing the financial statements 

of the Company, is included as a foreign currency translation adjustment in other comprehensive income in the 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares. 

The following exchange rates were used for the conversion of the financial statements into USD as at 31 March 2020 

and 30 September 2019:  

Closing Rates Average Rates 

 31 March 2020 30 September 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 30 September 2019 31 March 2019 

GBP 1.2400 1.2323 1.3031 1.2832 1.2766 1.2945 

EUR 1.0973 1.0902 1.1229 1.1046 1.1279 1.1138 

 

(d)  New Standards, amendments and interpretations  

 

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (effective 1 January 2019) 

 

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” was issued by the IASB on 7 June 2017 and is effective for 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier adoption permitted. IFRIC 23 is an interpretation which 

clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over tax 

treatments. 

 

IFRIC 23 was developed as an interpretation of IAS 12 and so it relates only to income taxes within the scope of that 

standard. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that this update will have on its financial statements. 

 

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that may be relevant to the Company have 

been issued to date and are not effective for the interim period ended 31 March 2020, and have not been applied nor 

early adopted, where applicable, in preparing these financial statements: 
 

 
 

*Annual beginning periods on or after. 

 

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that would 

be expected to have a significant impact on the Company. 

Standards Narrative Effective date*

IFRS 7 / IFRS 9 (amendments)

Financial Instruments - Pre-replacement issues in the context of the 

IBOR reform (amendment to IFRS 9) 1 January 2020

IAS 1 / IAS 8 (amendments) Definition of Material used in Conceptual Framework 1 January 2020

IFRS 10 / IAS 28 (amendments)

Sale or contribution of assets between an Investor and its 

Associate of Joint Venture (Amendments) Not Specified
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(e)  Financial instruments 

(i)  Classification  

On initial recognition the Company classifies financial assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through 

profit or loss (FVTPL). A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions 

and is not designated as at FVTPL:  

 

 It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to oldest contractual cashflows; and 

 Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

(“SPPI”). 

 

Business model assessment 

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held the Company 

considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including: 

 The documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the 

investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, 

matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows 

or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

 How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management; 

 The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 

model) and how those risks are managed; 

 How the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets 

managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

 The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and 

expectations about future sales activity. 

 

The Company has determined that it has two business models. 

 Held-to-collect business model: this includes interest, dividend receivables, due from brokers, deposits with 

credit institutions and receivables. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.  

 Other business model: this includes transferable securities and derivatives. These financial assets are managed 

and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place. 

 
Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI 

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 

‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal 

amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk 

and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual terms of the 

instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the 

timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, 

the Company considers: 

 Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

 Leverage features; 

 Prepayment and extension features; 

 Terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features; and 

 Features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates). 

 

The company has determined that the only financial assets classified at amortised cost are cash and cash equivalents 

due to the related contractual cashflows being solely payments of principal and interest.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(e)  Financial instruments (continued) 

(i)  Classification (continued) 

Reclassifications 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company were to change its 

business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets would be reclassified on 

the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

The Company is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’ 

performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash flows of the Company’s debt securities are solely principle 

and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held 

both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. Consequently, all investments are measured at fair value 

through profit or loss. 
  

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

The Company’s policy requires the Investment Manager and the Board of Directors to evaluate the information 

about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis with other related financial information. 

(ii) Recognition 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments. Transactions are recognised using trade date accounting. From this date any gains 

and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or liabilities are recorded. 

(iii) Measurement  

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value (transaction price). Transaction costs on financial assets 

and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are expensed immediately to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair 

value with changes in their fair value recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Financial assets 

classified as receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, 

if any. Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities arising from the redeemable shares issued by the Company 

are carried at the redemption amount representing the investors’ right to a residual interest in the Company’s assets. 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 

valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market 

conditions existing at each reporting date. 

Valuation techniques used for non-standardised financial instruments such as OTC options and forward currency 

contracts, include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are 

substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques 

commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible 

on entity-specific inputs. 

(iv)  Fair value measurement principles 

IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value 

measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other IFRSs. It unifies the definition of fair 

value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. It replaces and expands the disclosure requirements about 

fair value measurements in other IFRSs, including IFRS 7.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(e)    Financial instruments (continued) 

(iv)  Fair value measurement principles (continued) 

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices at the reporting date without any 

deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets and financial liabilities are priced at current mid-price. 

The Company’s financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position and it is 

usually possible to determine their fair values within a reasonable range of estimates. For the majority of the 

Company’s financial instruments, quoted market prices are readily available.  

For certain other financial instruments, including amounts due from/to brokers, accounts payable and accrued 

expenses, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial 

instruments. 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities not classified as FVTPL at the reporting date 

approximated their fair values. 

                (v) Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the flows from the financial asset expire 

or are extinguished or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in accordance with 

IFRS 9. 

The Company uses the first in first out (the “FIFO”) method to determine realised gains and losses on derecognition. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the Company’s obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or the obligation expires. 

(vi)  Specific instruments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held 

for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes. Cash and 

cash equivalents are valued at face value plus any accrued interest, where applicable. 

 

Forward contracts 

 

Forward contracts, (“Forwards”) are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument or 

currency amount at a specified future date for a specified price. Forward contracts may be settled in cash or in 

another financial asset. Forwards are individually traded over-the-counter contracts. Forward contracts result in 

credit exposure to the counterparty to the extent that the counterparty does not meet its obligations under the 

contract. 

 

Forwards result in exposure to market risk based on changes in market prices relative to contracted amounts. 

Market risks arise due to the possible movement in foreign currency exchange rates and securities values 

underlying these instruments. In addition, due to the low margin deposits normally required in relation to nominal 

contract sizes, a high degree of leverage may be typical of a forward trading account. As a result, a relatively small 

price/rate movement in the underlying security/currency of a forward may result in substantial losses to the 

Company.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(e)    Financial instruments (continued) 

(vi)  Specific instruments (continued) 

Forward contracts (continued) 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 

liabilities. The Company’s principal liability is its obligation to redeem shares at fair value on any dealing day at 

the request of a shareholder. Nominal amounts are the underlying reference amounts to foreign currencies upon 

which the fair value of the forward contracts traded by the Company are based. While nominal amounts do not 

represent the current fair value and are not necessarily indicative of the future cash flows of the forward contracts, 

the underlying price changes in relation to the variables specified by the nominal amounts affect the fair value of 

these derivative financial instruments. 

 

Equity swaps 
 

Equity swaps allow a direct exposure to the market, to a sector or to an individual security. Unlike a forward 

contract, the contract has no final maturity, the position being closed out at the discretion of the position taker. 

Equity swaps are used to gain exposure to share price movements without buying the shares themselves. An equity 

swap on a company’s shares will specify the price of the shares when the contract commences. The swap contract 

is an agreement to pay out cash on the difference between the starting share price and when the swap contract is 

closed.  

 

Daily fluctuations in the value of a swap contract are recorded for financial reporting purposes as unrealised gains 

or losses and are recorded as a realised gain or loss when the position is closed.  

 

Futures 

 

Futures are commitments either to purchase or to sell a designated financial instrument or currency at a specified 

future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another financial asset. Futures are standardised 

exchange-traded contracts. Initial margin requirements for futures are met in cash or other instruments, and changes 

in the futures contract values are settled daily. Futures contracts have little credit risk as counterparties are futures 

exchanges. 

 

Futures result in exposure to market risk based on market prices relative to contracted amounts. Market risks arise 

due to the possible movement in foreign currency exchange rates. In addition, due to the low margin deposits 

normally required in relation to nominal contract sizes, a high degree of leverage may be typical of a futures trading 

account. As result, a relatively small price movement in the underlying security of a futures contract may result in 

substantial losses to the Company. Certain futures exchanges do not permit trading in particular futures contracts 

at prices that represent a fluctuation in price during a single day’s trading beyond certain set limits. If prices 

fluctuate during a single day’s trading beyond those limits, the Company could be prevented from promptly 

liquidating unfavourable positions and thus could be subject to substantial losses.  
 

The changes in value of open future contracts are recognised as unrealised gains or losses by marking-to-market 

the value of the contract at the reporting date. When the contract is closed, the difference between the proceeds 

from (or cost of) the closing transactions and the original transaction is recorded in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

 

Swap contracts 

 

Credit default swaps are contracts in which the Company pays or receives premium flows in return for the 

counterparty accepting or selling all or part of the risk of default or failure to pay off a reference entity for which the 

swap is written, where the Company has bought protection the maximum potential loss is the value of the premium 

flows the Company is contracted to pay until maturity of the contract.  

 

Where the Company has sold protection the maximum potential loss is the nominal value of the protection sold.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(e)    Financial instruments (continued) 

(vi)  Specific instruments (continued) 

 

Swap contracts (continued) 
 

Interest rate swaps are contracts in which the Company exchanges interest rate cash flows for cash flows based on 

the return of an equity of a fixed income instrument, a securities index or another stream of cash flows. 

 

These contracts allow the Company to manage its interest rate exposures. Interest rate swap returns are based on 

the movement of interest rates relative to a specified alternative as per the contract. 

 

All swap contracts are stated at market value. The net income or expense in the swap agreements entered into by 

the Company is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The unrealised gain or loss is reported as an 

asset or liability and changes in the market value are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the 

period in which they occur. 

 

Warrants 

 

Warant contracts are options to purchase additional securities from the issuer at a specified price during a specified 

period. Warrants are sometimes used to gain exposure to emerging market equities where custody, liquidity, or 

other issues make ownership of local shares sub-optimal. Risks associated with the use of warrants are generally 

similar to risks associated with the use of purchased options. However, warrants do not have standardised terms, 

and may have longer maturities and may be less liquid than exchange-traded options. In addition, the terms of 

warrants may limit the Company’s ability to exercise the warrants at such times and in such quantities as the 

Company would otherwise wish. Warrants are measured at fair value through profit or loss and are designated as 

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

(f) Interest income 

Interest income and expense, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss, are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest method. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter year) to the carrying amount of the 

financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates future cash flows 

considering all contractual terms of the financial asset, future credit losses are not considered. 

 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of 

the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 

or issue of a financial asset or liability. 
  

(g) Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Gains and losses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include all realised gains/(losses) on 

transferable securities and financial derivative instruments, unrealised gains/(losses) from fair value changes and 

foreign exchange differences. Realised gains and losses are based on the FIFO method. 
 

(h) Transaction costs 
 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial 

asset or a financial liability.  
 

An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of 

the financial instrument. When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially, the sub-fund shall 

measure the instrument at its fair value through profit or loss plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to 

the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(h) Transaction costs (continued) 

 

Transaction costs on the purchase and sale of bonds, forwards and swaps are included in the purchase and sale price 

of the investment. Transaction costs cannot be practically or reliably estimated as they are embedded in the price of 

the investment and cannot be separately verified or disclosed. 
 

Transaction costs on purchases and sales of equities, options and futures are included in net gains/(losses) on 

investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for each sub-fund. Custody transaction costs are separately 

identifiable transaction costs and the total costs incurred by each sub-fund during the period are disclosed in Note 

15. 

 

(i) Expenses 
 

All expenses, including management fees, depositary fees, interest expenses, bank charges, tax expenses and general 

and operating fee expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis. Other 

fees include general and operating fee expenses, bank charges, miscellaneous expenses, commission expenses, 

depositary fees and tax expenses. 
 

(j) Net asset value per share (“NAV per share”)   
 

NAV per share at period end is calculated by dividing the net asset value of the relevant sub-fund at period end by 

the number of redeemable participating shares of the relevant class in issue as at the period end. 
 

 (k) Balance due from/(to) brokers 
 

In accordance with the Company policy of trade date accounting for regular way sale and purchase transactions, 

sales/purchases awaiting settlement represent amounts receivable/payable for securities sold/purchased but not yet 

settled as at the Statement of Financial Position date. Due from/(to) broker accounts include all of the collateral 

amounts. 

 

(l) Foreign exchange gains and losses 
 

Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognised together with other changes in the fair value. Included in the net gains/(losses) on foreign exchange are 

net foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary financial assets and financial liabilities other than those classified 

at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

(m) Dividend policy 
 

Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Dividend income is recognised on a 

gross basis, before withholding tax. Shares of a sub-fund may be issued as accumulating shares or distributing shares. 

The dividend policy and information on the declaration and payment of dividends for each sub-fund will be specified 

in the relevant supplement. The Articles of Association of the Company empower the Directors to declare dividends 

in respect of any Shares in the Company out of the net income of the relevant sub-fund (whether in the form of 

dividends, interests or otherwise) and/or net realised gains (i.e. realised gains net of realised and unrealised losses) 

or net realised and unrealised gains (i.e. realised and unrealised gains net of all realised and unrealised losses) subject 

to certain adjustments.  
 

(n) Redeemable participating shares 
 

All redeemable participating shares issued by the Company provide the investors with the right to require redemption 

for cash at the value proportionate to the investor’s share in the Company’s net assets at the redemption date. In 

accordance with IAS 32 such instruments give rise to a financial liability for the present value of the redemption 

amount. 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC  

Semi-Annual Report as of 31 March 2020 

 

 

 58 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(o) Offsetting 

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position when 

and only when, the Company has legal right to offset the amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to 

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS as adopted by the EU, e.g. for 

gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions, such as gains and losses from financial instruments at 

fair value through profit or loss. 

 

(p) Taxation 

 

The Company is an investment undertaking as defined in section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997. 

Therefore the Company is not liable to tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a 

chargeable event. 

 

Generally a chargeable event arises on redemption, repurchase, cancellation, transfer of shares or on the ending of 

a ‘Relevant Period’. A ‘Relevant Period’ is an eight year period beginning with the acquisition of the shares by the 

Shareholder and each subsequent period of eight years beginning immediately after the preceding Relevant Period. 

 

A gain on a chargeable event does not arise in respect of: 

 

 An exchange by a shareholder, effected by way of an arm’s length bargain where no payment is made to 

the shareholder, of shares in the Company for other shares in the Company; 

 Any transactions (which might otherwise be considered a chargeable event) in relation to shares held in a 

recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Irish Revenue Commissioners; 

 A transfer by a shareholder of the entitlement to shares where the transfer is between spouses and former 

spouses, subject to certain conditions; or 

 An exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction (within the meaning of 

Section 739H of the Taxes Act) of the Company with another investment undertaking.  

 

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Company will be liable to Irish tax on the occurrence of a chargeable 

event. 

Capital gains, dividends and interest received may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country of origin 

and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Company or its shareholders. 

 

3. Interest income and expense 

The following table details the interest income earned and expense incurred by the Company during the period: 

 

 
 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Interest income from financial assets and liabilities 1,978,510                      380                          -                           -                         2,539,146          

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 130,711                         18,104                     15,218                     23,569                    228,682             

Total interest income 2,109,221                      18,484                     15,218                     23,569                    2,767,828          

Interest expense from financial assets and liabilities (1,053,657)                     -                          -                           -                         (1,352,001)         

Interest expenses on cash and cash equivalents (16,932)                          (88,949)                   (19,119)                    (12,982)                  (154,076)            

Total interest expense (1,070,589)                     (88,949)                   (19,119)                    (12,982)                  (1,506,077)         

Net interest income and expenses 1,038,632                      (70,465)                   (3,901)                      10,587                    1,261,751          

31 March 2020
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 3. Interest income and expense (continued) 

 
 

The total interest income and expense detailed are net amounts and correspond to the net interest income and expense 

on the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

4. Dividend income and expense 
 

The following table details the dividend income earned and expense incurred by the Company during the period: 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Interest income from financial assets and liabilities 674,613                         49,149                     -                           -                         929,328             

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 52,781                           254,021                   249,388                   63,359                    704,765             

Total interest income 727,394                         303,170                   249,388                   63,359                    1,634,093          

Interest expense from financial assets and liabilities (94,158)                          -                          -                           -                         (121,888)            

Interest expenses on cash and cash equivalents (10,391)                          (552,577)                 (136,797)                  (17,296)                  (815,531)            

Total interest expense (104,549)                        (552,577)                 (136,797)                  (17,296)                  (937,419)            

Net interest income and expenses 622,845                         (249,407)                 112,591                   46,063                    696,674             

31 March 2019

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy  

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund 

 UBS Global 

Emerging Market 

Opportunity Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Dividend income from equity 

securities designated at fair 

value through profit or loss -                      974,496                   546,223              20,525,383        22,328,691  

Total dividend income -                      974,496                   546,223              20,525,383        22,328,691  

31 March 2020

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy  

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund 

 UBS Global 

Emerging Market 

Opportunity Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Dividend income from equity 

securities designated at fair 

value through profit or loss -                      1,149,001                548,788              9,735,465          11,668,228  

Total dividend income -                      1,149,001                548,788              9,735,465          11,668,228  

31 March 2019

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy  

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund 

 UBS Global 

Emerging Market 

Opportunity Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Dividend expense incurred on 

equity securities held short 

designated at fair value 

through profit or loss -                      (1,323,558)               (554,493)             -                     (2,179,632)   

Total dividend expense -                      (1,323,558)               (554,493)             -                     (2,179,632)   

31 March 2020
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4. Dividend income and expense (continued) 
 

The following table details the dividend income earned and expense incurred by the Company during the period: 

 

 
 

5. Net gains and losses from financial assets and liabilities 

 

The following table details the gains and losses from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss 

during the period: 

  
 

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy  

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS(Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund 

 UBS Global 

Emerging Market 

Opportunity Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Dividend expense incurred on 

equity securities held short 

designated at fair value 

through profit or loss -                      (1,228,826)               (457,864)             -                     (1,920,128)   

Total dividend expense -                      (1,228,826)               (457,864)             -                     (1,920,128)   

31 March 2019

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy  

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS Global 

Emerging Market 

Opportunity Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Investments in transferable securities

Bonds 628,474              -                        -                    -                             1,016,101 

Equity investments -                      (19,642,032)          (11,085,040)      (339,750,621)       (373,690,853)

Investments in Collective investment scheme -                      (14,838)                 (1,654)               -                                (18,217)

628,474              (19,656,870)          (11,086,694)      (339,750,621)       (372,692,969)

Derivative financial instruments:

Contact for difference -                      -                        -                    -                     (5,561)             

Equity option -                      -                        -                    -                     (64,000)           

Equity swaps -                      27,456,398           10,726,978       -                     40,302,282     

Forwards (69,264,123)        2,711,020             395,869            -                     (85,444,533)    

Futures -                      (509,190)               480,269            -                     (31,945)           

Rights -                      15,047                  -                    -                     16,620            

Warrants -                      -                        -                    (894,741)            (894,741)         

(69,264,123)        29,673,275           11,603,116       (894,741)            (46,121,878)    

(68,635,649)        10,016,405           516,422            (340,645,362)     (418,814,847)  

31 March 2020

Net gain/(loss) from investments in  transferable securities 

Net gain/(loss) from derivative financial instruments

Net gain/(loss) from financial assets and liabilities at fair 

value through profit  or loss
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5. Net gains and losses from financial assets and liabilities 

 

The following table details the gains and losses from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss 

during March 2019: 

 
6. Fair value estimation 

 
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date by the level 

in the fair value hierarchy into which each financial instruments’ fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts 

are based on the values recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. All fair value measurements noted are 

recurring. 

 
 All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 

approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

  

 All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 

approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2.

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy  

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection-Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection-Global 

Equity Long 

Short Fund 

 UBS Global 

Emerging Market 

Opportunity Fund 

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Investments in transferable securities

Bonds (56,862)               -                        -                    -                                (73,608)

Equity investments -                      (4,350,854)            (3,966,439)        64,365,708              54,897,302 

Investments in Collective investment scheme -                      (27,113)                 -                    -                                (30,865)

(56,862)               (4,377,967)            (3,966,439)        64,365,708              54,792,829 

Derivative financial instruments

Equity swaps -                      11,900,793           2,543,147         -                           16,442,981 

Forwards (2,046,257)          (1,782,723)            (2,737,747)        -                           (7,794,983)

Futures -                      (442,542)               704,699            -                                298,440 

Right -                      55,904                  -                    -                                  63,641 

Warrants -                      -                        -                    3,440,814                  3,440,814 

(2,046,257)          9,731,432             510,099            3,440,814                12,450,893 

(2,103,119)          5,353,465             (3,456,340)        67,806,522        67,243,722     

31 March 2019

Net gain/(loss) from derivative financial instruments

Net gain/(loss) from financial assets and liabilities at fair 

value through profit  or loss

Net gain/(loss) from investments in  transferable securities 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Bonds 296,051,753 - - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Forwards - 28,588,929 - - (56,920,586) -

Total 296,051,753 28,588,929 - - (56,920,586) -

31 March 2020

Assets Liabilities

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Bonds 357,245,672 - - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Forwards - 5,072,176 - - (18,622,160) -

Total 357,245,672 5,072,176 - - (18,622,160) -

Assets Liabilities

31 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy
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 6. Fair value estimation (continued) 

  

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a 

reasonable approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 
 

   

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a 

reasonable approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

 

 

 

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 

approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 119,542,094 - - - - -

Funds - 15,864,343 - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Forwards - 1,747,987 - - (1,019,006) -

Equity swaps - 3,962,380 - - (6,106,492) -

Futures - - - (165,719) - -

Total 119,542,094 21,574,710 - (165,719) (7,125,498) -

31 March 2020

Assets Liabilities

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 141,999,273 - - - - -

Funds - 17,978,119 - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Forwards - 1,096,766 - (1,093,165) -

Equity swaps - 1,944,532 - - (5,134,078) -

Futures 93,520 - - - - -

Total 142,092,793 21,019,417 - - (6,227,243) -

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

30 September 2019

Assets Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 57,401,181 - - - - -

Funds - 5,778,555 - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Forwards - 298,491 - - (1,064,223) -

Equity swaps - 1,355,688 - - (4,973,832) -

Futures - - - (134,801) - -

Total 57,401,181 7,432,734 - (134,801) (6,038,055) -

31 March 2020

Assets Liabilities

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund
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6. Fair value estimation (continued) 

   

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 

approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

  

 

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 
approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

 

 

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 

approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 57,662,305 - - - - -

Funds - 3,221 - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Forwards - 49,447 - - (1,045,077) -

Equity swaps - 1,982,899 - - (2,393,029) -

Futures 40,223 - - (104,260) - -

Total 57,702,528 2,035,567 - (104,260) (3,438,106) -

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

30 September 2019

Assets Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

USD USD USD USD USD USD

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 1,813,745,497 - - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Warrants 30,905,977 - - - - -

Total 1,844,651,474 - - - - -

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

31 March 2020

Assets Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

USD USD USD USD USD USD

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 1,666,688,649 - - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Warrants 36,298,687 - - - - -

Total 1,702,987,336 - - - - -

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Assets Liabilities

30 September 2019
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6. Fair value estimation (continued) 

 

 

All other assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at values that reflect a reasonable 

approximation of their fair value and are classified as level 2. 

 

 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

USD USD USD USD USD USD

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Equity investments 2,007,896,505 - - - - -

Bonds 391,082,967 - - - - -

Funds 23,747,670 - - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Equity swaps - 7,227,336 - - (12,786,965) -

Contract for difference - 4,430 - - -

Warrants 30,905,977 - - - - -

Futures - - - (329,746) - -

Forwards - 37,694,340 - - (72,864,504) -

Total 2,453,633,119 44,926,107 - (329,746) (85,651,468) -

31 March 2020

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC

Assets Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

USD USD USD USD USD USD

Investments in transferable securities

Classified at FVTPL

Bonds 440,233,842 - - - - -

Equity investment 1,884,359,703 - - - - -

Funds - 19,603,255 - - - -

Investment in financial derivative instruments

Equity swap - 4,281,685 - - (8,206,052) -

Warrants 36,298,687 - - - - -

Futures 145,807 - - (113,664) -

Forwards - 7,500,044 - - (25,279,200) -

Total 2,361,038,039 31,384,984 - (113,664) (33,485,252) -

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC

Assets Liabilities

30 September 2019
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6. Fair value estimation (continued) 

 

The fair value hierarchy is as follows: 
 

● Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
● Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); 
● Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement of an instrument is 

categorised in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input, 1 being the highest 

level that is significant to the fair value measurement of that instrument in its entirety. For this 

purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If 

a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on 

unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a 

particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors 

specific to the asset or liability.  

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Company. The Company 

considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and 

verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. 
 

Investments, whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1, 

include active listed equities, exchange traded derivatives, options, US government treasury bills and certain non-US 

sovereign obligations. The Company does not adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market 

prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2. These 

include, fund of funds investments, investment-grade corporate bonds and certain non-US sovereign obligations, and 

over-the counter derivatives. As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are 

subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are 

generally based on available market information.  

 

At period end the Company held no assets classified as level 3 investments. There were no level 3 investments held at 

the end of the last period 31 March 2019. No investments have been transferred between levels. 

 

7. Share capital 
 

The authorised share capital of the Company is 500,000,000,000 shares of no par value and 300,000 redeemable non-

participating shares of no par value each. The minimum issued share capital of the Company is 2 redeemable non-

participating shares of no par value each. The 2 redeemable non-participating shares of no par value each are held by the 

Investment Manager. Non-participating shares do not entitle the holders to any dividends and on a winding up entitle 

the holders to receive the amount paid up thereon but do not otherwise entitle them to participate in the net assets of the 

Company. 

 

The Company is a daily dealing fund therefore an investor can subscribe and/or redeem as they wish. Both the fund and 

the investor have an option to redeem shares. No premium is payable on the redemption of shares. 

 

The Directors reserve the right to impose “an anti-dilution levy” representing a provision for market spreads (the 

difference between the prices at which assets are valued and/or bought or sold) and other dealing costs relating to the 

acquisition or disposal of assets and top reserve the value of the underlying assets of the sub-fund. 

 

Authorised share capital 
All amounts stated in USD 

Number of shares 
 

Redeemable participating shares of no par value  500,000,000,000 

Redeemable non-participating shares of no par value 300,000 
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7. Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Number of shares  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

Class J-acc

Class I-A1-

acc Class I-B-acc Class Q-acc Class I-A1-acc Class Q-acc

Class U-B-

acc

Class I-A1-

acc

GBP GBP USD GBP EUR EUR GBP SEK

Opening balance 210,917 434,040 163,321 54,880 87,705 117,119 1,096 170,057

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 106 153,349 9,024 180,838 - 2,242 98 32,448

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (603) (99,104) - (27,142) (25,366) (73,126) (358) (29,711)

Closing balance 210,420 488,285 172,345 208,576 62,339 46,235 836 172,794

31 March 2020

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy

Class I-A3-acc Class P-acc

Class I-A3-

acc

Class I-A1-

acc

SEK SEK EUR USD

Opening balance 1,307,584 1,146,816 89 110,000

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 40,749 396,988 10,008 130,469

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (59,093) (171,490) (89) (237,370)

Closing balance 1,289,240 1,372,314 10,008 3,099

Class J-acc

Class I-A1-

acc Class I-B-acc Class I-B-acc Class Q-acc

Class I-A1-

acc Class Q-acc

Class U-B-

acc

GBP GBP GBP USD GBP EUR EUR GBP

Opening balance 210,453 266,558 409,521 - 43,725 81,854 100 150

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 584 234,987 - 163,321 18,248 28,019 187,647 968

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (120) (67,505) (409,521) - (7,093) (22,168) (70,628) (22)

Closing balance 210,917 434,040 - 163,321 54,880 87,705 117,119 1,096

30 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy

Class I-A1-

acc Class I-A3-acc Class P-acc

Class I-A3-

acc

Class I-A1-

acc

SEK SEK SEK EUR USD

Opening balance - - - - -

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 170,057 1,370,716 1,157,588 89 110,000

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period - (132) (10,772) - -

Closing balance 170,057 1,370,584 1,146,816 89 110,000

Class I-B-acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc 

Class P-PF-

acc

EUR EUR CHF (hedged) EUR GBP (hedged) SGD (hedged) USD (hedged) AUD (hedged)

Opening balance 373,684 382,717 12,287 194,856 7,632 36,155 345,431 16,401

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 8,425 115,554 - 6,973 - - 58 -

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (55,035) (117,010) (104) (49,360) (2,232) (5,910) (89,203) (3,337)

Closing balance 327,074 381,261 12,183 152,469 5,400 30,245 256,286 13,064

31 March 2020

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Class I-B-acc 

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class K-1 PF-

acc

Class I-A1 

PF-acc 

Class F-PF-

acc

CHF (hedged) USD (hedged) GBP (hedged) CHF (hedged) EUR EUR USD (hedged)

Opening balance 47,153 149,517 11,093 10,495 0.5 50,181 1,500

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 19,725 764 - 90 - 202 -

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period - (102,291) (192) (800) - (10,400) (1,500)

Closing balance 66,878 47,990 10,901 9,785 0.5 39,983 -
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7. Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Number of shares (continued) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Class I-B-acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc 

Class P-PF-

acc

EUR EUR CHF (hedged) EUR GBP (hedged) SGD (hedged) USD (hedged) AUD (hedged)

Opening balance 478,499 392,803 19,038 273,509 18,969 48,725 623,556 33,035

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 8,521 163,267 402 6,047 - - 20,045 -

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (113,336) (173,353) (7,153) (84,700) (11,337) (12,570) (298,170) (16,634)

Closing balance 373,684 382,717 12,287 194,856 7,632 36,155 345,431 16,401

30 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Class I-B-acc 

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class K-1 PF-

acc

Class I-A1 

PF-acc 

Class F-PF-

acc

CHF (hedged) USD (hedged) GBP (hedged) CHF (hedged) EUR EUR USD (hedged)

Opening balance 36,393 29,781 18,860 11,163 0.5 63,881 1,500

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 35,247 129,031 - 1,340 - - -

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (24,487) (9,295) (7,767) (2,008) - (13,700) -

Closing balance 47,153 149,517 11,093 10,495 0.5 50,181 1,500

Class I-B-acc Class U-B-acc

Class I-A1-PF-

acc Class Q-PF-acc

EUR EUR EUR EUR

Opening balance 5,310 601 6,568 8,056

316 - 2,650 4,464

(692) - (2,149) (1,940)

Closing balance 4,934 601 7,069 10,580

31 March 2020

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the period

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during the period

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

Class I-B-acc Class UB-B-acc

Class I-A1-PF-

acc Class Q-PF-acc

EUR EUR CHF EUR

Opening balance 8,938 597 5,408 36,136

425 4 6,600 3,557

(4,053) - (5,440) (31,637)

Closing balance 5,310 601 6,568 8,056

30 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the period

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during the period

Class I -A1-

acc

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A3-

acc Class I -B-acc Class I -B-acc Class P-acc Class P-acc

USD USD EUR USD EUR USD GBP USD

Opening balance 369,800 158,499 104,711 3,499,401 1,100,660 3,549,531 6,740 264,071

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 84,977 - 29,101 175,228 74,378 518,159 2,745 43,952

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (65,937) - (12,684) (96,225) (150,291) (126,390) (595) (92,803)

Closing balance 388,840 158,499 121,128 3,578,404 1,024,747 3,941,300 8,890 215,220

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

31 March 2020

Class P-acc Class Q-acc Class F-acc Class Q-acc Class Q-acc Class I -B-acc

Class I -A3-

PF-acc Class Q-acc

SGD GBP USD USD SGD GBP USD EUR

Opening balance 10,725 17,650 866,100 755,346 7,550 400,000 - -

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 93 2,955 313,576 171,286 - - 2,990,757 880,581

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (2,693) (7,993) (219,252) (210,489) (4,922) - - (75,397)

Closing balance 8,125 12,612 960,424 716,143 2,628 400,000 2,990,757 805,184



Notes to the Financial Statements 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC  

Semi-Annual Report as of 31 March 2020 

 

 

 68 

7. Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Number of shares (continued) 

 

 
 

 
 

Issued and fully paid 
Capital in amounts 

  
 

 
 

 

Class I -A1-

acc

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A3-

acc Class I -B-acc Class I -B-acc Class P-acc Class P-acc

USD USD EUR USD EUR USD GBP USD

Opening balance 506,871 691,552 123,897 1,696,120 1,700,929 2,892,947 6,772 433,404

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 260,335 - 18,989 2,703,728 189,021 1,579,134 6 89,265

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (397,406) (533,053) (38,175) (900,447) (789,290) (922,550) (38) (258,598)

Closing balance 369,800 158,499 104,711 3,499,401 1,100,660 3,549,531 6,740 264,071

30 September 2019

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Class P-acc Class Q-acc Class F-acc Class Q-acc Class Q-acc Class I -B-acc

SGD GBP USD USD SGD GBP

Opening balance 24,120 18,890 1,054,110 1,817,614 - -

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 7,168 1,709 168,818 526,574 11,186 400,000

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares during 

the period (20,563) (2,949) (356,828) (1,588,842) (3,636) -

Closing balance 10,725 17,650 866,100 755,346 7,550 400,000

Class J-acc

Class I-A1-

acc Class I-B-acc Class Q-acc Class I-A1-acc Class Q-acc Class U-B-acc Class I-A1-acc

GBP GBP USD GBP EUR (hedged) EUR (hedged) GBP SEK (hedged)

Opening balance 32,474,134 54,745,260 13,302,069 5,479,363 7,608,470 9,399,868 108,373,312 10,073,959

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 16,601 19,541,918 703,218 18,206,189 - 172,288 9,573,836 1,941,092

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (93,661) (12,178,602) - (2,635,280) (1,996,395) (5,763,840) (33,998,448) (1,524,264)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (5,149,732) (10,479,762) (2,064,402) (3,600,393) (1,082,987) (702,060) (14,516,114) (2,062,167)

Closing balance 27,247,342 51,628,814 11,940,885 17,449,879 4,529,088 3,106,256 69,432,586 8,428,620

Closing balance (USD) 33,785,342 64,017,148 14,806,100 21,636,977 5,615,843 3,851,602 86,092,935 10,451,067

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy

31 March 2020

Class I-A3-

acc Class P-acc

Class I-A3-

acc Class I-A1-acc Total

SEK (hedged) SEK (hedged) EUR (hedged) USD (hedged) GBP

Opening balance 73,182,006 63,940,908 7,476 8,801,806 387,388,631

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 2,247,815 21,821,407 808,514 10,057,837 85,090,715

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (3,072,739) (8,712,848) (7,113) (16,645,163) (86,628,353)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (12,913,043) (14,313,329) (104,395) (2,004,330) (68,992,714)

Closing balance 59,444,039 62,736,138 704,482 210,150 316,858,279

Closing balance (USD) 73,707,636 77,789,674 873,522 260,575 392,888,423

Class J-acc

Class IA-1-

acc Class I-B-acc Class I-B-acc Class Q-acc

Class IA-1-

acc Class Q-acc Class U-B-acc

GBP GBP GBP USD GBP EUR (hedged) EUR (hedged) GBP

Opening balance 32,755,023 34,235,675 51,461,535 - 4,449,958 7,376,933 8,346 14,968,385

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 91,851 30,536,226 - 12,953,943 1,881,567 2,434,875 15,407,729 95,009,086

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (18,453) (8,617,236) (49,465,779) - (711,896) (1,959,080) (5,850,054) (2,223,999)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (354,287) (1,409,405) (1,995,756) 348,126 (140,266) (244,258) (166,153) 619,840

Closing balance 32,474,134 54,745,260 - 13,302,069 5,479,363 7,608,470 9,399,868 108,373,312

Closing balance (USD) 40,017,874 67,462,584 - 16,392,139 6,752,219 9,375,918 11,583,457 133,548,432

30 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy
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7.     Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Capital in amounts (continued) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Class IA-1-

acc

Class I-A3-

acc Class P-acc

Class I-A3-

acc Class I-A1-acc Total

SEK (hedged) SEK (hedged) SEK (hedged) EUR (hedged) USD (hedged) GBP

Opening balance - - - - - 145,255,855

Issues of redeemable participating shares during the 

period 10,435,511 77,125,592 68,101,285 7,965           9,075,749      323,061,379

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period - (7,615) (621,124) - - (69,475,236)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (361,552) (3,935,971) (3,539,253) (489)            (273,943)        (11,453,366)

Closing balance 10,073,959 73,182,006 63,940,908 7,476 8,801,806 387,388,632

Closing balance (USD) 12,414,141 90,182,187 78,794,381 9,213 10,846,465 477,379,011

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy (continued)

30 September 2019

Class I-B-acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc Class P-PF-acc

EUR EUR CHF (hedged) EUR GBP (hedged) SGD (hedged) USD (hedged) AUD (hedged)

Opening balance 59,713,096 45,397,856 1,056,284 18,646,331 848,877 2,466,745 32,652,200 973,378

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 1,401,295 13,838,188 - 687,897 - - 5,472 -

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period (8,937,745) (13,990,827) (8,841) (4,772,680) (247,407) (402,806) (8,535,359) (188,483)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares 2,791,307 2,140,168 70,342 668,052 24,994 38,192 1,356,854 (52,070)

Closing balance 54,967,953 47,385,385 1,117,785 15,229,600 626,464 2,102,131 25,479,167 732,825

Closing balance (USD) 60,313,586 51,993,613 1,226,490 16,710,678 687,387 2,306,564 27,957,016 804,093

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity O pportunity Long Short Fund

31 March 2020

Class I-B-acc 

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class K-1 PF-

acc

Class I-A1 PF-

acc 

Class F-PF-

acc Total

CHF (hedged) USD (hedged) GBP (hedged) CHF (hedged) EUR EUR USD (hedged) EUR

Opening balance 4,418,963 14,382,662 1,274,553 842,224 1,324,557 4,610,080 149,457 188,757,263

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 1,955,781 76,555 - 7,194 - 18,385 - 17,990,767

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period - (9,694,575) (23,835) (66,682) - (954,770) (158,019) (47,982,030)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares 364,679 108,111 60,468 58,444 60,153 176,900 8,562 7,875,156

Closing balance 6,739,423 4,872,753 1,311,186 841,180 1,384,710 3,850,595 - 166,641,156

Closing balance (USD) 7,394,831 5,346,629 1,438,699 922,986 1,519,373 4,225,064 - 182,847,009

Class I-B-acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc Class P-PF-acc

EUR EUR CHF (hedged) EUR GBP (hedged) SGD (hedged) USD (hedged) AUD (hedged)

Opening balance 72,940,984 44,778,601 1,527,238 25,343,512 2,001,752 2,991,274 52,047,016 1,867,429

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 1,279,918 18,772,083 31,521 558,622 - - 1,734,919 -

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period (17,481,055) (19,828,274) (599,002) (7,741,954) (1,232,034) (819,375) (25,808,184) (968,985)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares 2,973,249   1,675,446   96,527          486,151     79,159       294,846       4,678,449    74,934          

Closing balance 59,713,096 45,397,856 1,056,284 18,646,331 848,877 2,466,745 32,652,200 973,378

Closing balance (USD) 65,009,217 49,492,743 1,151,561 20,328,230 925,446 2,689,245 35,597,429 1,061,177

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

30 September 2019
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7.     Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Capital in amounts (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Class I-B-acc 

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class P-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class Q-PF-

acc

Class K-1 PF-

acc

Class I-A1 PF-

acc Class F-PF-acc

CHF (hedged) USD (hedged) CAD GBP (hedged) CHF (hedged) EUR EUR USD

Opening balance 3,134,724 2,510,498 178 2,040,329 829,659 1,278,717 5,634,370 132,182

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 3,234,726 11,211,540 - - 105,100 - - -

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period (2,229,639) (832,083) - (863,293) (147,178) - (1,255,252) -

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares 279,152      1,492,707   (178)             97,517       54,642       45,840         230,961       17,275          

Closing balance 4,418,963 14,382,662 - 1,274,553 842,223 1,324,557 4,610,079 149,457

Closing balance (USD) 4,817,553 15,679,979 - 1,389,518 918,191 1,444,032 5,025,908 162,938

30 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund (continued)

Total

EUR

Opening balance 219,058,463

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 36,928,428

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period (79,806,308)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares 12,576,680

Closing balance 188,757,263

Closing balance (USD) 204,263,567

Class I-B-acc 

Class U-B-

acc

 Class Q-PF-

acc

Class I-A1-

PF-acc Total

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Opening balance 807,056 67,171,763 876,048 773,501 69,628,368

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 49,934 - 510,556 312,647 873,137

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period (109,379) - (222,945) (259,378) (591,702)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares 3,484 106,447 (17,906) 4,345 96,370

Closing balance 751,095 67,278,210 1,145,753 831,115 70,006,173

Closing balance (USD) 824,140 73,821,016 1,257,177 911,941 76,814,274

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

31 March 2020

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

Class I-B-acc

Class U-B-

acc

Class I-A1-

PF-acc

 Class Q-PF-

acc 

 Class Q-PF-

acc Total

EUR EUR EUR EUR GBP EUR

Opening balance 1,364,060 67,019,002 643,211 3,972,530 76 72,998,879

Issues of redeemable participating shares 

during the period 61,487 399,592 770,871 361,784 - 1,593,734

Redemptions of redeemable participating 

shares during the period (585,797) - (609,420) (3,250,454) - (4,445,671)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable 

to holders of redeemable shares (32,694) (246,831) (31,161) (207,812) (76) (518,574)

Closing balance 807,056 67,171,763 773,501 876,048 - 69,628,368

Closing balance (USD) 879,853 73,230,656 843,270 955,068 - 75,908,847

30 September 2019
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7.     Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Capital in amounts (continued) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Class I -A1-

acc 

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A3-

acc Class I -B-acc Class I -B-acc Class P-acc Class P-acc

USD USD EUR USD EUR USD GBP USD

Opening balance 56,324,754 22,694,962 11,902,612 324,743,446 209,294,203 788,981,600 1,322,515 36,091,355

Issues of redeemable participating shares during 

the period 14,139,936 - 2,812,707 17,456,530 15,535,149 125,348,559 620,470 6,646,496

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (11,020,035) - (1,469,440) (8,708,602) (29,354,545) (29,186,864) (96,377) (13,280,128)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (7,659,244) (2,845,858) (1,203,697) (42,984,303) (24,451,855) (116,244,075) (328,700) (3,862,896)

Closing balance (USD) 51,785,411 19,849,104 12,042,182 290,507,071 171,022,952 768,899,220 1,517,908 25,594,827

31 March 2020

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Class P-acc Class Q-acc Class F-acc Class Q-acc Class Q-acc Class I -B-acc

Class I -A3-

PF-acc Class Q-acc

SGD GBP USD USD SGD GBP USD EUR

Opening balance 1,045,697 3,499,575 126,858,608 93,154,805 607,349 58,303,506 - -

Issues of redeemable participating shares during 

the period 9,869 620,809 49,555,199 23,567,827 - - 299,642,218 97,957,988

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (273,426) (1,559,481) (32,838,858) (26,954,322) (430,751) - - (7,069,234)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (92,292) (374,757) (20,509,578) (12,554,759) 8,180 (7,131,967) (68,663,475) (16,641,916)

Closing balance (USD) 689,848 2,186,146 123,065,371 77,213,551 184,778 51,171,539 230,978,743 74,246,838

Total

USD

Opening balance 1,735,534,455

Issues of redeemable participating shares during 

the period 653,913,757

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (162,984,497)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (325,508,245)

Closing balance (USD) 1,900,955,470

Class I -A1-

acc 

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A2-

acc

Class I -A3-

acc Class I -B-acc Class I -B-acc Class K-1-acc Class P-acc

USD USD EUR USD EUR USD USD GBP

Opening balance 76,599,027 98,206,535 13,966,163 155,599,767 318,494,123 633,200,793 12,727,669 1,331,226

Issues of redeemable participating shares during 

the period 38,589,489 - 2,068,114 249,184,332 34,972,819 345,573,483 - 1,184

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (58,958,525) (73,150,863) (4,378,178) (79,935,981) (148,359,356) (202,054,246) (10,822,368) (7,091)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares 94,763 (2,360,710) 246,513 (504,673) 4,186,617 12,261,570 (1,195,833) (2,804)

Closing balance (USD) 56,324,754 22,694,962 11,902,612 324,343,445 209,294,203 788,981,600 709,468 1,322,515

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

30 September 2019
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7.     Share capital (continued) 

 

Issued and fully paid 

Capital in amounts (continued) 

 

 

Net Asset Value Per Share 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Class P-acc Class P-acc Class Q-acc Class F-acc Class Q-acc Class Q-acc Class I -B-acc

Total

USD SGD GBP USD USD SGD GBP USD

Opening balance 59,346,697 2,353,177 3,641,086 153,032,149 222,478,230 - - 1,750,976,642

Issues of redeemable participating shares during 

the period 12,212,307 689,200 396,763 24,159,247 64,767,632 922,395 52,464,128 826,001,093

Redemptions of redeemable participating shares 

during the period (34,118,321) (2,016,238) (605,646) (51,002,872) (193,895,478) (304,232) - (859,609,395)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets atributable to 

holders of redeemable shares (1,349,328) 19,558 67,372 670,084 (195,579) (10,814) 5,839,378    17,766,114

Closing balance (USD) 36,091,355 1,045,697 3,499,575 126,858,608 93,154,805 607,349 58,303,506 1,735,134,454

30 September 2019

UBS Global Emerging Markets O pportunity Fund (continued)

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency

Class (GBP) J-acc 129.49 153.97 155.65

Class (GBP) I-A1-acc 105.74 126.13 128.45

Class (GBP) I-B-acc - - 125.68

Class (USD) I-B-acc 85.91 100.37 -

Class (GBP) Q-acc 83.66 99.84 101.78

Class (EUR hedged) I-A1-acc 82.13 98.08 101.22

Class (EUR hedged) Q-acc 75.92 90.72 93.72

Class (GBP) U-B-acc 83,188.03 98,912.54 100,079.29

Class (SEK hedged) I-A1-acc 599.25 717.75 -

Class (SEK hedged) I-A3-acc 566.44 678.11 -

Class (SEK hedged) P-acc 561.62 675.54 -

Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc 79.54 94.94 -

Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc 84.09 98.60 -

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Currency Allocation Return Strategy

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency 

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 168.06 159.80 152.67

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 124.29 118.62 114.17

Class (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc 97.40 93.45 91.15

Class (EUR) P-PF-acc 99.89 95.69 92.80

Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc 102.65 98.40 94.13

Class (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc 108.59 102.86 97.57

Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc 109.09 103.05 97.09

Class (AUD hedged) P-PF-acc 100.56 95.93 90.88

Class (CHF hedged) I-B-acc 106.98 101.88 97.87

Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc 111.41 104.87 98.06

Class (GBP hedged) Q-PF-acc 106.45 101.66 96.51

Class (CHF hedged) Q-PF-acc 91.27 87.24 84.45

Class (EUR) K-1-PF-acc 2,769,418.44 2,649,113.22 2,561,271.67

Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc 96.31 91.87 88.33

Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc -   108.64 102.51

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 152.25 152.00 152.47

Class (EUR) U-B-acc 112,027.94 111,850.68 112,187.70

Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc 117.57 117.77 118.82

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 108.29 108.75 109.82

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund
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7.     Share capital (continued) 

 

Net Asset Value Per Share (continued) 

 

 

 

    Net Asset Value  

 

 

 

 

 

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency

Class (USD) I-A1-acc 133.18 152.31 151.41

Class (USD) I-A2-acc 125.23 143.19 142.28

Class (EUR) I-A2-acc 90.61 104.27 97.23

Class (USD) I-A3-acc 81.18 92.80 92.15

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 152.10 174.42 161.52

Class (USD) I-B-acc 195.09 222.28 219.29

Class (USD) K-1-acc                            -   7,094,633.60 7,084,359.04

Class (GBP) P-acc                    137.70 159.22 151.03

Class (USD) P-acc 118.92 136.67 137.19

Class (SGD) P-acc 120.46 134.51 133.42

Class (GBP) Q-acc 139.80 160.9 151.19

Class (USD) F-acc 128.14 146.47 145.45

Class (USD) Q-acc 107.82 123.33 122.63

Class (GBP) I-B-acc 103.17 118.28 -

Class (SGD) Q-acc 100.13 111.24 -

Class (USD) I -A3-PF-acc 77.23 - -

Class (EUR) Q-acc 84.04 - -

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency

Class (GBP) J-acc 27,247,342                 32,474,133                 32,755,023                 

Class (GBP) I-A1-acc 51,628,814                 54,745,260                 34,235,675                 

Class (GBP) I-B-acc -                              -                              51,463,305                 

Class (USD) I-B-acc 11,940,885                 13,302,069                 -                              

Class (GBP) Q-acc 17,449,879                 5,479,363                   4,449,958                   

Class (EUR hedged) I-A1-acc 4,529,088                   7,608,470                   7,376,933                   

Class (EUR hedged) Q-acc 3,106,256                   9,399,868                   8,346                          

Class (GBP) U-B-acc 69,432,586                 108,373,312               14,968,385                 

Class (SEK hedged) I-A1-acc 8,428,620                   10,073,960                 -                              

Class (SEK hedged) I-A3-acc 59,444,039                 73,182,007                 -                              

Class (SEK hedged) P-acc 62,736,138                 63,940,908                 -                              

Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc 704,482                      7,476                          -                              

Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc 210,150                      8,801,806                   -                              

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Currency Allocation Return Strategy

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency 

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 54,967,953                   59,713,096                   72,940,984 

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 47,385,385                   45,397,856                   44,778,601 

Class (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc 1,117,785                     1,056,284                     1,527,238 

Class (EUR) P-PF-acc 15,229,600                   18,646,331                   25,343,512 

Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc 626,464                        848,877                     2,001,752 

Class (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc 2,102,131                     2,466,745                     2,991,274 

25,479,167                   32,652,200                   52,047,016 

Class (AUD hedged) P-PF-acc 732,825                        973,378                     1,867,429 

Class (CHF hedged) I-B-acc 6,739,423                     4,418,963                     3,134,724 

Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc 4,872,753                   14,382,662                     2,510,498 

Class (CAD) P-PF-acc                                  -                                    -                                 178 

Class (GBP hedged) Q-PF-acc 1,311,186                     1,274,553                     2,040,329 

Class (CHF hedged) Q-PF-acc 841,180                        842,223                        829,659 

Class (EUR) K-1 PF-acc 1,384,710                     1,324,557                     1,278,717 

Class (EUR) I-A1 PF-acc 3,850,594                     4,610,079                     5,634,370 

                                 -                          149,457                        132,182 

Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc

Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund
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7.    Share capital (continued) 

 

    Net Asset Value (continued) 

   

 

 

 

 

Aggregate Fees, Investor Type and Minimum Investment Required  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency

Class (EUR) I-B-acc                        751,095                        807,056                     1,364,060 

Class (EUR) U-B-acc                   67,278,210                   67,171,763                   67,019,002 

Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc                     1,145,753                        773,501                        643,211 

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc                        831,115                        876,048                     3,972,530 

Class (GBP) Q-PF-acc                                  -                                    -                                   76 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund

31 March 2020 30 September 2019 30 September 2018

Class Currency Class Currency Class Currency

Class (USD) I-A1-acc                   51,785,411                   56,324,754                   76,599,027 

Class (USD) I-A2-acc                   19,849,104                   22,694,962                   98,206,535 

Class (EUR) I-A2-acc                   12,042,182                   11,902,612                   13,966,163 

Class (USD) I-A3-acc                 290,507,071                 324,743,445                 155,999,767 

Class (EUR) I-B-acc                 171,022,952                 209,294,203                 318,494,123 

Class (USD) I-B-acc                 768,899,220                 788,981,600                 633,200,793 

Class (USD) K-1-acc                               (19)                        709,469                   12,727,669 

Class (GBP) P-acc                     1,517,908                     1,322,516                     1,331,226 

Class (USD) P-acc                   25,594,827                   36,091,355                   59,346,697 

Class (SGD) P-acc                        689,848                     1,045,697                     2,353,177 

Class (GBP) Q-acc                     2,186,146                     3,499,575                     3,641,086 

Class (USD) F-acc                 123,065,371                 126,858,608                 153,032,149 

Class (USD) Q-acc                   77,213,551                   93,154,805                 222,478,230 

Class (GBP) I-B-acc                        184,778                   58,303,506  - 

Class (SGD) Q-acc                   51,171,539                        607,349  - 

Class (USD) I -A3-PF-acc                 230,978,743  -  - 

Class (EUR) Q-acc                   74,246,838  -  - 

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Minimum

Aggregate Fees Investor Type
Investment required

Class (GBP) J-acc 0.15% EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP) I-A1-acc 0.80% EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD hedged) I-B-acc 0.15% EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP) Q-acc 0.90% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR hedged) I-A1-acc 0.80% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR hedged) Q-acc 0.90% EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP) U-B-acc 0.15% EUR 1,000,000

Class (SEK hedged) I-A1-acc 0.80% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (SEK hedged) I-A3-acc 0.70% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (SEK hedged) P-acc 1.65% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc 0.70% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc 0.80% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Institutional 

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection  - Currency Allocation Return Strategy
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7.    Share capital (continued) 

 

Aggregate Fees, Investor Type and Minimum Investment Required (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Investors with existing investment management mandates with a UBS group company or proprietary capital to a UBS        

AG group company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minimum

Aggregate Fees Investor Type
Investment required

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.17% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 0.92% EUR 1,000,000

Class (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) P-PF-acc 1.67% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (AUD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (CHF hedged) I-B-acc 0.17% EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.92% EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.92% EUR 1,000,000

Class (CHF hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.92% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) K-1 PF-acc 1.37% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) I-A1 PF-acc 0.82% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc 0.72% EUR 1,000,000

Are reserved for professionals of the financial sectors

Are reserved for professionals of the financial sectors

Available to UBS AG or a subsidiary

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Are reserved for professionals of the financial sectors

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Are reserved for professionals of the financial sectors

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection  - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Minimum

Aggregate Fees Investor Type
Investment required

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.22% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) U-B-acc 0.22% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc 0.87% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 0.97% EUR 1,000,000

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Are reserved for professionals of the financial sectors

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund

Minimum

Aggregate Fees Investor Type
 Investment required

Class (USD) I-A1-acc 0.93% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) I-A2-acc 0.88% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) I-A2-acc 0.88% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) I-A3-acc 0.83% Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.18% EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) I-B-acc 0.18% EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) K-1-acc 1.38% Private/Institutional EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP) P-acc 1.90% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) P-acc 1.90% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (SGD) P-acc 1.90% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP) Q-acc 0.96% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) F-acc 0.83% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) Q-acc 0.96% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (GBP) I-B-acc 0.18% Wholesale/Retail EUR 1,000,000

Class (SGD) Q-acc 0.96% EUR 1,000,000

Class (USD) I -A3-PF-acc 0.23% EUR 1,000,000

Class (EUR) Q-acc 0.96% EUR 1,000,000

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

Investors with existing investment management mandates*

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund
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7.    Share capital (continued) 

    
The rights attaching to the redeemable participating shares issued in the Company or any class may, whether or not the 

Company is being wound up, be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of the shareholders of three-quarters of 

the issued shares of the Company or the relevant class, or with the sanction of an ordinary resolution passed at a general 

meeting of the Shareholders of the Company or the relevant class. 

The rights attaching to the shares shall not be deemed to be varied by the creation, allotment or issue of any further shares 

ranking pari passu with shares already in issue. 
 

Redeemable participating shares may be redeemed on redemption days as set out in the prospectus and will be redeemed 

at the net asset value per share quoted on that day, calculated in accordance with the prospectus. 

 

8. Cash and cash equivalents and balances due from/to brokers 
 

Due from/to brokers as at 31 March 2020 and 30 September 2019: 

 

 
 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020 and 30 September 2019: 

 

 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Opportunity 

Long Short Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Balance due from Broker -                                  4,623,029                603,733                      18,215,283            23,950,348   

Balance due to Broker 14                                   184,059                   3,575,213                   439,125                 4,564,003     

31 March 2020

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Opportunity 

Long Short Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

Balance due from Broker -                                  2,287,124                222,355                      -                         2,735,834     

Balance due to Broker 19                                   869,502                   521,632                      16,137                   1,532,774     

30 September 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Opportunity 

Long Short Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

JP Morgan Chase Bank, NA 50,757,674                     28,440,021              17,290,239                 55,327,435            168,858,393 

Morgan Stanley -                                  -                           -                             -                         -                

UBS AG -                                  994,387                   28,144                        -                         1,121,972     

Bank of New York -                                  -                           -                             -                         4,515,483     

Merril Lynch -                                  2,868,121                100,366                      -                         3,257,172     

Base total 50,757,674                     32,302,529              17,418,749                 55,327,435            177,753,020 

.

JP Morgan Chase Bank, NA (791,079)                         (2,318,095)               (268,881)                    (19,738,256)           (23,557,713)  

UBS AG -                                  -                           (2)                               -                         (2)                  

Merril Lynch -                                  (594,067)                  (2,722,319)                 -                         (3,638,905)    

Goldman Sachs -                                  -                           -                             -                         (82,878)         

Morgan Stanley -                                  (267,031)                  -                             -                         (293,000)       

Base total (791,079)                         (3,179,193)               (2,991,202)                 (19,738,256)           (27,572,498)  

31 March 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC  

Semi-Annual Report as of 31 March 2020 

 

 

 77 

8. Cash and cash equivalents and balances due from/to brokers (continued) 

 

 
 

When cash is pledged as collateral, it is derecognised from cash and cash equivalents and subsequently recognised in 

the balances due from broker account. Cash is held with J.P. Morgan Bank, UBS AG, Bank of America Merril Lynch 

and Morgan Stanley.  

 

The credit ratings of the banks as classified by Moody’s are as follows:  

J.P. Morgan (A3), UBS AG (Baa1), Morgan Stanley (A3), Bank of America Merrill Lynch (Baa1). There are no 

restrictions on the cash and cash equivalents amounts held with these brokers. 

 

9. Financial instruments and associated risks 
 

The Company maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments as dictated by its 

investment management strategy.  
 

The Company’s investing activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with the financial instruments 

and markets in which it invests. The most significant types of financial risk to which the Company is exposed are market 

risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. 
 

The Company employs financial derivative techniques and instruments for the purposes of investment and/or efficient 

portfolio management subject to the limits laid down by the Central Bank of Ireland and subject to the terms of the 

supplement for the relevant sub-fund. These financial derivative techniques and instruments may include, but are not 

limited to, warrants, exchange traded futures and options, forward currency contracts and swap agreements. The 

Manager uses a risk management process to measure, monitor and manage risks attached to the financial derivative 

positions and details of this process have been provided to the Central Bank of Ireland.  
 

The Manager employs a risk management process which enables it to measure, monitor and manage the risks within the 

sub-funds. The Company must calculate its global exposure on at least a daily basis. Global exposure is calculated using 

VaR for UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Currency Allocation Return Strategy, UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity 

Opportunity Long Short Fund and UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund. Global exposure is 

calculated using the commitment approach for the UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund. Any techniques 

or instruments including repurchase agreements which are used by the sub-funds to generate additional leverage or 

exposure to market risk are taken into account when calculating the global exposure of the sub–fund. Leverage is 

calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used by the sub-fund. Through regular monitoring and review 

of risks related to the specific sub-funds, the Manager aims to quantify and analyse the current risk against the expected 

risk profile of the portfolio and performance targets of the sub-funds. Methods of measuring risk include, but are not 

limited to, VaR analysis, stress testing, sensitivity measures, leverage and relative risk. An ex-ante tracking error model 

is also used by the Manager to control risk. All sub-funds remain within the allotted parameters. 
 

The Board of Directors issues a risk management statement (Financial Derivative Instrument Report) to the Central 

Bank of Ireland on an annual basis. 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Opportunity 

Long Short Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC

GBP EUR EUR USD USD

JP Morgan 44,215,399                     3,177,366                13,118,859                 46,466,971            149,823,157 

Morgan Stanley Intl -                                  -                           -                             -                         -                

UBS AG -                                  621,432                   28,519                        -                         708,577        

Merril Lynch -                                  5,570,868                842,877                      -                         6,992,265     

Base total 44,215,399                     9,369,666                13,990,255                 46,466,971            157,523,999 

JP Morgan (2,926)                             (3,923,090)               (62,525)                      (11,233,577)           (15,582,300)  

Merril Lynch -                                  -                           (1)                               -                         (2)                  

UBS AG -                                  (968,347)                  (70,067)                      -                         (1,132,079)    

Base total (2,926)                             (4,891,437)               (132,593)                    (11,233,577)           (16,714,381)  

30 September 2019
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 
 

Asset allocation is determined by the Company’s Investment Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to 

achieve the investment objectives. Divergence from target asset allocations and the composition of the portfolio is 

monitored by the Company’s Investment Manager. The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the 

reporting date and the risk management policies employed by the Company are discussed below. However, these are 

not all the risks involved. Investors should refer to the prospectus to see the full list of risks. 
 

(a)   Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in currency risk, price risk and interest rates risk will affect the positions held by the 

Company. 
 

The Company is exposed to market risk on investments in that the Company may not be able to readily dispose of its 

holdings when it chooses and also that the price obtained on disposal is below that at which the investment is included in 

the Company’s financial statements. All trading financial instruments are recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

and all changes in market conditions directly affect net income. 
 

The Investment Manager uses financial derivative instruments which may give rise to leverage within the portfolio, 

subject to the limits set out in the prospectus, to increase the potential overall return on capital. Leverage may be 

created through the use of financial derivative instruments, subject to UCITS Regulations. The leverage created 

through the use of financial derivative instruments will be measured using either the commitment approach or VaR 

depending on the risk profile of the strategies pursued by each sub-fund.  
 

The commitment approach calculates leverage by measuring the market value of the underlying exposures of 

financial derivative instruments. An overall risk monitoring structure is in place which sets risk and leverage limits 

for the Company, and prescribes action to be taken upon these limits being breached. 

 

In pursuing each sub-fund's investment objectives, the Investment Manager seeks to allocate risk capital in the most 

appropriate way, given prevailing market opportunities, in order to achieve the desired compensation for the risk 

capital being expended. 

 

Risk management is therefore at the forefront in setting investment strategy. Before entering into an investment, a 

decision maker will always take note of the investment’s market price. Price is a required data point in assessing 

attractiveness. Similarly, the attractiveness of an investment cannot be estimated without a thorough analysis of the 

investment’s potential risk. 

 

Efficient risk capital allocation involves expending appropriate amounts of a Company’s risk budget when it is 

desirable to do so in response to conditions in the market environment. It also involves separating and diversifying 

the decision dimensions available to the Investment Manager. The output of the Company’s risk capital allocation 

system parallels investment decision-making by embodying and visually representing these characteristics.The 

Investment Manager is able to use the risk capital allocation system to test and evaluate potential changes to 

investment strategy. 

 

Currency risk 

 

The Company may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than 

its functional currency. Consequently, the Company is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency 

relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that portion 

of the Company’s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. 

 

The Company’s foreign currency exchange rate risk is managed on a daily basis by the Investment Manager . 

 

The Company may employ strategies aimed at hedging against currency risk at the class level. When the 

Company enters into such currency transactions as part of the sub-fund's investment policy, the hedging 

transactions at the share class level will be considered distinct from the tactical currency transactions of the 

relevant sub-fund. 

 

The Investment Manager may utilise hedging strategies in order to hedge the exposure of classes that are 

denominated in currencies other than the base currency of the relevant sub-fund. The hedging will typically be 

undertaken by means of forward contracts but may also include currency options.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 

(a) Market risk (continued) 

Global Exposure  
 
Risk management 

 

VaR models  
 

When global exposure is monitored using a VaR model, the following inputs are used for the models: 

 

 

 
 

Although VaR is an important tool for measuring market risk, the assumptions on which the model is based give 

rise to some limitations, including the following:  

 

- A 20-day holding period assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of positions within that period. This may 

not be the case for certain highly illiquid assets or in situations in which there is severe general market illiquidity.  

- A 99% confidence level does not reflect losses that may occur beyond this level, meaning that within the model 

used there is a 1% probability that losses could exceed the VaR.  
 

- VaR is calculated on an end-of-day basis and does not reflect exposures that may arise on positions during the 

trading day.  
 

- The use of historical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future outcomes may not always cover 

all possible scenarios, especially those of an exceptional nature.  
 

- The VaR measure is dependent on the sub-fund’s position and the volatility of market prices. 
 

- The VaR of an unchanged position reduces if market price volatility declines, and vice versa.  

 

The overall structure of VaR limits is subject to review and approval by the board of directors. VaR is measured 

daily. 

 

Price risk 

 

Price risk is the risk that value of an instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether caused 

by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. 

 
Price risk is mitigated by the Company’s Investment Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of instruments 

traded on various markets. 

 

Interest rate risk 

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest 

rates. The Company holds cash and cash equivalents and financial instruments that are interest earning and as a 

result the Company is subject to risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates in relation 

to this financial instrument. 

 

The Company’s hedging transactions using derivative instruments also involve the risk that unanticipated and 

significant changes in interest rates will cause a significant loss of basis in the contract. The counterparties to the 

Company’s derivatives are financial institutions carefully selected by the Investment Manager. The Company’s 

interest rate risk is managed on a daily basis by the Investment Manager. 

VaR model Confidence level Time horizon Length of data history

Mone Carlo VaR 99% 20 days 2 years

Historical VaR 99% 20 days 2 years
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 

(b)      Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or 

commitment that it has entered into with the Company. Credit risk associated with trading and investing activities 

is managed through the Company’s market risk management process discussed above. 

 

The amount of credit exposure is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets on the Statement of 

Financial Position. Substantially all financial instruments are cleared through and/or held in custody by J.P. 

Morgan Bank (Ireland) plc, the Depositary. The Company is therefore subject to credit risk to the extent that the 

Depositary may be unable to fulfill its obligations either to return the Company’s securities or repay amounts owed. 

 

Substantially all of the assets held by the Company are held by J.P. Morgan Bank (Ireland) plc, the Depositary (the 

parent company J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A has a Credit rating of A3 at Moody's). Bankruptcy or insolvency by 

J.P. Morgan Bank (Ireland) plc may cause the Company’s rights with respect to the assets held by the J.P. Morgan 

Bank (Ireland) plc to be delayed or limited. The Company monitors its risk by monitoring the credit ratings of J.P. 

Morgan Chase Bank N.A on a monthly basis, as reported by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch. 

 

The Company will be exposed to the credit risk of the depositary or any depository used by the Depositary 

regarding the cash balances held in unsegregated accounts with same. In the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of 

the Depositary or any depository used by the Depositary, the Company will be treated as a general creditor. 

 
The risk that counterparties to both derivative and other instruments might default on their obligations is monitored 

on an ongoing basis. To manage the level of credit risk, the Company deals with counterparties of good credit 

standing as per credit rating agencies such as Moody's. 

 

The below table states the counterparties used by the Company and also states the collateral and collateral type held 

by counterparty for the sub-funds in relation to out of the money positions. 

  

 
(c)      Liquidity risk 

 

The Company’s liquidity and cash flows are related to its market risks. Liquidity and cash flow risk may result 

from a significant decline in the market value of investments. The performance of the Company will therefore 

depend in part on the ability of the Investment Manager to anticipate and respond to such fluctuations in market 

interest rates and to utilise appropriate strategies to maximise returns while attempting to minimise the associated 

risks. The Company's constitution provides for daily creation and cancellation of shares and it is therefore exposed 

to the liquidity risk associated with meeting shareholder redemptions at any time. 

 

The Company invests in futures, options, and in a number of financial derivative instruments including but not 

limited to: credit default swaps, interest rate swaps, swaptions, currency swaps and total return swaps which are not 

exchange traded. Full details of these instruments can be found in the Risk Management Document, under the 

section titled “Types and Uses of Derivatives to be employed by the Fund”. 

31 March 2020

Counterparties Ratings Collateral type Base value

JP Morgan (cost 7,015,396) A3 USD 7,015,396                       

Morgan Stanley (cost (267,031)) A3 USD (267,031)                        

Total Collateral 6,748,365                       

30 September 2019

Counterparties Ratings Collateral type Base value 

Morgan Stanley (cost 26,412) A3 USD 27,518                            

JP Morgan (cost 2,377,912) Aa1 USD 2,432,312                       

Total Collateral 2,459,830                       
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 

 (c)      Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

Financial liabilities of the Company comprise of investments in financial derivative instruments, redemptions 

payable, amounts due to broker, accounts payable and accrued expenses and net assets attributable to holders of 

redeemable participating shares. Investments in financial derivative instruments, redemptions payable, amounts 

due to broker, accounts payable and accrued expenses are typically settled within 30 days to 1 year from the 

transaction date. 

 

The total net asset value (NAV) of the Company is considered to be a liability of the Company as investors may 

choose to redeem part or all of their outstanding shares at any time. 

 

(d)   Operational risk  

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with   the 

Board of Directors. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the management 

of operational risk, which encompasses the controls and processes at the service providers and the establishment of 

service levels with the service providers, in the following areas: 
 

 requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities; 

 requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions; 

 compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements; 

 documentation of controls and procedures; 

 requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risk faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures 

to address the risks identified; 

 contingency plans; 

 ethical and business standards; and 

 risk mitigation, including insurance if this is effective. 

 

The Directors’ assessment over the adequacy of the controls and processes in place at the service providers with 

respect to operational risk is carried out via regular discussions with the service providers and a review of the service 

providers’ SOC 1/ISAE 3402 reports on the internal controls, if available. 

Substantially all of the assets of the Company are held by J.P. Morgan Bank (Ireland) plc. Bankruptcy or insolvency 

of the Company’s depositary may cause the Company’s rights with respect to the securities held by the depositary to 

be delayed or limited. The Manager monitors credit ratings and the capital adequacy of its depositary and reviews the 

findings documented in the SOC 1/ ISAE 3402 report on the internal controls annually. 

The Company has provided the depositary a general lien over the financial assets held in custody for the purpose of 

covering the exposure from providing depositary services. The general lien is part of the standard contractual terms 

of the custody agreement. 

 

(e) Capital management 

The Company is required to maintain a minimum capital requirement of EUR 300,000, or its foreign currency 

equivalent. If redemptions or decreases in the value of the Company’s investment portfolio cause the value of the 

share capital to fall below the equivalent of EUR 300,000, the Board of Directors will make a decision to seek the 

termination of the Company, the return of assets to shareholders and the revocation of the Company’s authorisation. 

 

The Administrator will notify the Board of Directors if during any particular month, the net asset value of the 

Company falls below this level. As soon as the Board of Directors becomes aware that the capital of the Company 

is below the required level, the Board will inform the depositary and the Central Bank. 
 

(f) Leverage 

The Company may be leveraged. The use of leverage creates special risks and may significantly increase the 

Company’s investment risk. Leverage creates an opportunity for greater yield and total return but, at the same time, 

will increase the Company’s exposure to capital risk and interest costs.  
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 

(f) Leverage (continued) 

Any investment income and gains earned on investments made through the use of leverage that are in excess of the 

interest costs associated therewith may cause the net asset value of the shares to increase more rapidly than would 

otherwise be the case. Conversely, where the associated interest costs are greater than such income and gains, the 

net asset value of the shares may decrease more rapidly than would otherwise be the case.  

 

(g) Depositary 

The Company has appointed J.P. Morgan Bank (Ireland) plc as depositary of all of its assets pursuant to the 

custodian agreement.  
 

In accordance with and subject to the depositary agreement, the depositary provides safe custody for all the assets 

of the Company under the control of its custodial network. The depositary will be obliged, inter alia, to ensure 

that the issue and repurchase of shares in the Company is carried out in accordance with the relevant legislation and 

the Articles of Association. The depositary will carry out the instructions of the Company unless they conflict with 

the UCITS Regulations or the Articles of Association. The depositary is also obliged to enquire into the conduct of 

the Company in each financial period and report thereon to the shareholders. 
 

(h) Use of derivative instruments 

Each sub-fund may invest in derivative instruments. The types and degrees of risk vary depending upon the 

characteristics of the particular instrument and the assets of a Company as a whole. Use of these instruments may 

entail investment exposures that are greater than their cost would suggest, meaning that a small investment in 

derivatives could have a large impact on a Company’s performance. 

 

 10. Taxation  

 

The Company is an investment undertaking as defined in section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997. Therefore, 

the Company is not liable to tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a chargeable event. 

 

Generally a chargeable event arises on redemption, repurchase, cancellation, transfer of shares or the ending of a 

‘Relevant Period’. A ‘Relevant Period’ is an eight year period beginning with the acquisition of the shares by the 

Shareholder and each subsequent period of eight years beginning immediately after the preceding Relevant Period. 

 

A gain on a chargeable event does not arise in respect of: 

 

(i) any transactions in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Revenue 

Commissioners of Ireland; or 

(ii)  an exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the Company with another 

Company; or 

(iii)  certain exchanges of shares between spouses and former spouses; or 

(iv)  an exchange of shares representing one Fund for another Fund of the Company; or 

(v)   shareholders who are neither Irish resident nor Irish ordinarily resident for tax purposes at the time of the chargeable 

event and who have provided the Company with a relevant declaration to that effect; or 

(vi) certain exempted Irish tax resident Shareholders who have provided the Company with the necessary signed 

statutory declarations. 

 

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Company will be liable to Irish tax on the occurrence of a chargeable 

event. 

 

There were no chargeable events for the period under review. 

 

Capital gains, dividends and interest received may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country of origin and 

such taxes may not be recoverable by the Company or its Shareholders. 
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11. Hedge classes 
 

For the benefit of holders of classes of shares that are denominated in a currency other than the base currency, the 

Investment Manager may, but is not obliged to, seek, through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts and/or 

currency futures contracts, to hedge the foreign exchange exposure arising as a result of fluctuations between the 

denominated currency of the class and the base currency. Hedged positions will be kept under review to ensure that over 

hedged positions do not exceed 105% of the net asset value of the class. This review will also incorporate a procedure to 

ensure that positions in excess of 100% will not be carried forward from month to month. 

 

Any financial instruments used to implement such strategies with respect to one or more classes shall be assets/liabilities 

of a sub-fund as a whole but will be attributable to the relevant class(es) and the gains/(losses) on the relevant financial 

instrument and the costs of the relevant financial instruments will accrue solely to the relevant class. Where a class of 

shares is to be hedged this will be disclosed in the supplement for the sub-fund in which such class is issued. Any 

currency exposure of a class may not be combined with or offset against that of any other class of a sub-fund. The currency 

exposure of the assets attributable to a class may not be allocated to other classes. 
 

Investors should also note that, to the extent that hedging is successful, the performance of the class is likely to move in 

line with the performance of the underlying assets and that investors in a hedged class will not benefit if the class 

currency falls against the base currency and/or the currency in which the assets of the Company are denominated and 

that this hedging strategy may substantially limit holders of these shares from benefiting if the base currency falls against 

the denominated currency of the class. Each sub-fund’s currency hedging policy is set out in the relevant supplement. 

 

12. Segregation of liabilities between sub-funds 

 

As a matter of Irish law, the assets of one sub-fund will not be available to meet the liabilities of another. However, the 

Company is a single legal entity which may operate or have assets held on behalf of or be subject to claims in other 

jurisdictions (such as the United Kingdom) which may not necessarily recognise such ring-fencing and, in such 

circumstances, the assets of one sub-fund may be exposed to the liabilities of another. 
 

Shareholders who choose or are obliged under local regulations to pay or receive subscription or redemption monies or 

dividends via an intermediate entity rather than directly to or from the Administrator (e.g. a Paying Agent in a local 

jurisdiction) bear a credit risk against that intermediate entity with respect to (a) subscription monies prior to the 

transmission of such monies to the Administrator for the account of the Company and (b) redemption monies payable 

by such intermediate entity to the relevant Shareholder. 

 

13. Fees and expenses 
 

Manager and Investment Manager’s fees 

The Company has appointed UBS Asset Management (UK) Ltd. as an Investment Manager for the funds UBS (Irl) 

Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund and UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short 

Fund. The Company has appointed UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG and UBS Asset Management (Singapore) 

Ltd. for the funds UBS (Irl) Investor Selection-Currency Allocation Return Strategy and UBS Global Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund respectively. All appointments are in accordance with the relevant Investment Manager Agreement. 

The fees will be accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears out of the assets of the Company with properly vouched 

expenses. UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. was appointed as Manager of the Company on 1 September 2017. 

The Manager is paid out of the aggregate fee rates listed below. The fees charged per sub-fund are as follows: 

 

  

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection -Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection -Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global Equity  

Long Short Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD  USD 

Manager's fee 70,879                         32,318                        9,241                            346,490                  483,640            

Manager's fee payable 35,050                         16,025                        4,601                            182,043                  250,876            

Investment manager's fee 1,093,316                    649,408                      7,017                            2,782,771               4,910,728         

Investment manager's fee payable 557,501                       318,125                      3,674                            1,434,503               2,478,870         

31 March 2020
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13. Fees and expenses (continued) 
 

 

 

The aggregate fees of the Investment Manager and the Administrative Costs equal the percentage of the Net Asset Value 

of the sub-fund as set out in the table below: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection -Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection -Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global Equity  

Long Short Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

 UBS (Irl) 

Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD  USD 

Manager's fee 28,970                         35,805                        11,829                          295,240                  385,022            

Manager's fee payable 28,970                         35,805                        11,829                          295,240                  385,022            

Investment manager's fee 182,179                       785,274                      12,228                          2,736,880               3,880,588         

Investment manager's fee payable 183,014                       785,265                      12,228                          2,746,586               3,879,026         

31 March 2019

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection -Currency Allocation Return Strategy 

Aggregate Fees

Class (GBP) J-acc 0.15%

Class (GBP) I-A1-acc 0.80%

Class (USD hedged) I-B-acc 0.15%

Class (GBP) Q-acc 0.90%

Class (EUR hedged) I-A1-acc 0.80%

Class (EUR hedged) Q-acc 0.90%

Class (GBP) U-B-acc 0.15%

Class (SEK hedged) I-A1-acc 0.80%

Class (SEK hedged) I-A3-acc 0.70%

Class (SEK hedged) P-acc 1.65%

Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc 0.70%

Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc 0.80%

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Aggregate Fees

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.17%

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 0.92%

Class (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67%

Class (EUR) P-PF-acc 1.67%

Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67%

Class (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67%

Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67%

Class (AUD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.67%

Class (CHF hedged) I-B-acc 0.17%

Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.92%

Class (GBP hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.92%

Class (CHF hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.92%

Class (EUR) K-1 PF-acc 1.37%

Class (EUR) I-A1 PF-acc 0.82%

Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc 0.72%

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund

Aggregate Fees

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.22%

Class (EUR) U-B-acc 0.22%

Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc 0.87%

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 0.97%
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13. Fees and expenses (continued) 
 

 

 

Performance fees 

The Investment Manager may be entitled to receive a Performance fee payable out of the individual sub-fund’s assets in 

respect of individual Classes as disclosed in the relevant supplement. 
 

The below shows the sub-funds from which Performance fees were earned for during the period. The method of 

calculation and accrual is also stated. 
   

 

 

The Performance fees will be calculated and accrued as at each Valuation Point. The Performance fees will be calculated 

in respect of each financial period (a “Calculation Period”). However, the first Calculation Period in respect of any Class 

of Shares will be the period commencing on the Business Day immediately following the close of the Initial Offer Period 

for that Class and ending on 31 December in that same year. The first value used in determining the first Performance 

fees shall be the Initial Price. 

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Aggregate Fees

Class (USD) I-A1-acc 0.93%

Class (USD) I-A2-acc 0.88%

Class (EUR) I-A2-acc 0.88%

Class (USD) I-A3-acc 0.83%

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (USD) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (USD) K-1-acc 1.38%

Class (GBP) P-acc 1.90%

Class (USD) P-acc 1.90%

Class (SGD) P-acc 1.90%

Class (GBP) Q-acc 0.96%

Class (USD) F-acc 0.83%

Class (USD) Q-acc 0.96%

Class (GBP) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (SGD) Q-acc 0.96%

Class (USD) I -A3-PF-acc 0.23%

Class (EUR) Q-acc 0.96%

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD  USD 

Performance fee -                              878                          -                           -                         970                         

Performance fee payable -                              878                          -                           -                         970                         

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD  USD 

Performance fee -                              -                           -                           -                         -                          

Performance fee payable -                              -                           -                           -                         -                          

31 March 2020

31 March 2019
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13. Fees and expenses (continued) 

 

Performance fees (continued) 

For each Calculation Period, the Performance fees payable will be equal to 20% of the Net Outperformance of the Net 

Asset Value per Share over the High Water Mark. The “Net Outperformance” is defined as the return on the Net Asset 

Value per Share in excess of the Hurdle Rate, accumulated from the start of the Calculation Period. The Hurdle Rate is 

the appropriate Cash Rate, an appropriate measure of the short term cash returns (EONIA or BBA LIBOR Overnight 

Index or SORA) of the respective currencies (i.e. SORA for SGD, EONIA for EUR, BBA LIBOR for all other 

currencies) and will be reset at the end of every Calculation Period.  

 

The High Water Mark shall be the previous highest Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Class at the end of any 

previous Calculation Period for the relevant Class on which the Performance fees were paid. For the purposes of the first 

calculation of the Performance fees, the starting point for the relevant Net Asset Value per Share is the Initial Price. No 

Performance fees will be paid until the Net Asset Value per Share exceeds the High Water Mark or the Initial Price, as 

appropriate and such fee is only payable on the Net Outperformance of the Net Asset Value per Share over the High 

Water Mark as described above. 

 

Administration fees 
 

The Company shall pay to the Administrator out of the assets of the Company an annual fee, accrued at each Valuation 

Point and payable quarterly in arrears at a rate of 0.075% of Net Asset Value of each sub-fund (before calculation of 

the Investment Manager’s fee or the Administration Fee) subject to a minimum annual fee of EUR 60,000 (plus VAT, 

if any thereon) per sub-fund and to a fee of EUR 3,000 plus VAT, if any, in respect of the preparation by the 

Administrator of each set of financial statements required to be prepared in respect of the Company.  

 

The Administrator shall also be entitled to be repaid out of the assets of the Company all of such government or similar 

fees (including but not limited to filing fees and annual return fees to the extent payable by the Administrator), charges, 

taxes, duties and imposts whatsoever levied on or in respect of the Company or business of the Company as it may 

properly pay. The fees and charges of the Administrator are subject to variation and renegotiation from time to time 

provided that any increase in the Administrator’s fee is subject to prior notification to Shareholders. 

 

 
 

Directors’ fees 
 
The Articles of Association authorise the Directors to charge a fee for their services at a rate determined by the Directors. 

All Directors other than Adrian Waters, Eimear Cowhey and John Donohoe do not receive fees. The fees of any Director 

in any accounting period shall not in any event exceed EUR 50,000 (plus VAT, if any) without the approval of the Board. 

Any increase in Directors’ remuneration above that figure will be notified in advance to Shareholders and Shareholders 

will be given sufficient time to redeem their Shares prior to the implementation of any such increase. All Directors will 

be entitled to reimbursement by the Company of expenses properly incurred in connection with the business of the 

Company or the discharge of their duties. 

 

During the period ended 31 March 2020, Directors fees were EUR38,500 (31 March 2019: EUR50,500). At 31 March 

2020, EUR19,250 (31 March 2019: EUR31,250) was payable. 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD  USD 

Administration fee 151,885                      69,253                     30,000                      742,423                 1,061,180               

Administration fee payable 75,107                        34,338                     15,000                      390,038                 558,819                  

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Currency 

Allocation Return 

Strategy 

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection - Equity 

Opportunity Long 

Short Fund

UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection Global 

Equity Long Short 

Fund

UBS Global 

Emerging Markets 

Opportunity Fund

 UBS (Irl) Investor 

Selection PLC 

GBP EUR EUR USD  USD 

Administration fee 62,526                        76,725                     30,000                      632,656                 833,976                  

Administration fee payable 75,107                        34,338                     15,000                      390,037                 543,312                  

31 March 2020

31 March 2019
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14. Accounting estimates and judgments 

 

As indicated in note 2(e) many of the Company’s financial instruments are measured at fair value on the Statement of 

Financial Position and it is usually possible to determine their fair values within a reasonable range of estimates. For the 

majority of the Company’s financial instruments, quoted market prices are readily available. 

 

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the financial 

instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement (e.g., 

interest rates, volatility, estimated cash flows etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 

15. Transaction costs 
 

The below table shows the transaction costs incurred by the sub-funds during the period. The equity costs comprise trade 

commissions and miscellaneous trade fees required at a country level and are charged separately from the trade price. 

The derivative transaction costs comprise of future and option commissions that are charged separately from the trade 

price and also swap trade fees that are included in the trade price. 
 

 Equities Derivatives Total 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC - Currency Allocation Return Strategy - GBP - - - 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund - EUR 386,483 33,460 419,943 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection PLC – Global Equity Long Short Fund - EUR 89,100 3,930 93,030 

UBS Global Emerging Market Opportunity Fund - USD 2,063,186 - 2,063,186 

UBS IIrl) Investor Selection PLC - USD 2,588,501 41,300 2,629,801 

16. Distributions 

No distributions were made during the period ended 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Nil). 

17. Stock lending 

The Company did not engage in any agreement to lend securities in its portfolio in exchange for a fixed rate of interest. 

 

18. Related parties 

 
(a) Gavin Byrnes is a Managing Director Head of Alternative Products for UBS Asset Management, an entity within 

the UBS Group. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on 1 August 2019. 

 

(b) No present Director or any connected person has any interests beneficial or non-beneficial in the share capital of the 

Company. Fees paid to the Directors are disclosed in Note 13. 

 

 (c)   Other parties considered to be related to the Company are the Investment Manager (Note 14) and the following  

Shareholders who have significant holdings in the sub-funds: 
  

1  Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody S.A., Ref UBS Switzerland 

2. UBS AG London 

3. UBS Europe SE, Luxembourg Branch 

4. J.P. Morgan Plc Ireland 

 

19. Commitments and Contingent liabilities 

 

As at 31 March 2020, the Company did not have any significant commitments or contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).  

 

Following the decision by the people of the United Kingdom to leave the European Union, there remains uncertainty 

about the relationship between the United Kingdom and the European Union post “Brexit”. The impact of this uncertainty 

extends to the financial services market within which the Company operates. As at the date of these financial statements, 

the Directors of the Company continue to monitor the situation as it develops as well as the impact on the Company.  

 

20. Statement of portfolio changes 

 

A statement of changes in the composition of the portfolio during the period is available to shareholders free of charge, 

on request. 
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21.   Significant events during the reporting period 

 

MFD Secretaries Limited, an entity in the Maples Group, was appointed as Company Secretary to the Company on 25 

October 2019. 

 

KPMG resigned as auditor and was replaced by Ernst & Young with effect from 5 February 2020. 

 

There were no other events during the period that require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

  

22. Subsequent Events  

 

Following the decision by the people of the United Kingdom to leave the European Union, there remains uncertainty 

about the relationship between the United Kingdom and the European Union post “Brexit”. The impact of this uncertainty 

extends to the financial services market within which the Company operates. As at the date of these financial statements, 

the Directors of the Company continue to monitor the situation as it develops as well as the impact on the Company. 

 

Following the spread of an unknown virus globally, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 outbreak to 

be a pandemic on 11 March 2020. The identification of the virus during the Reporting Period as a new coronavirus, and 

its subsequent global outbreak, is considered as a significant event. At present it is not possible to assess the detailed 

impact, of this emerging risk, on the portfolios of the Fund but there is growing concern about the impact on the world 

economy and as a result of this uncertainty the values reflected in these financial statements may materially differ from 

the value received upon actual sales of those investments. In the light of significant corrections and heightened volatility 

in the financial markets over the past few weeks, the impact for the Fund might be important in terms of future valuations 

of its asset, nevertheless the Board and the Investment Managers continue to observe the efforts of governments to contain 

the spread of the virus in order to monitor and manage the economic impact on the portfolios and the Fund itself. In 

addition, there is no indication that the going concern assumption of the Fund is inappropriate. 

 

23. Approval of financial statements 

 

 The accounts were approved by the board on 22 May 2020. 
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Soft commissions 

 

The Investment Manager may make use of arrangements to enable it to obtain execution and research services which are 

beneficial to the sub-funds, both from counterparties and third parties. All transactions undertaken and the services provided 

under these arrangements in respect of the sub-funds will be subject to Financial Conduct Authority rules and to the fundamental 

rule of providing best execution to the sub-funds, being the best price available in the market, exclusive of any charges, but 

taking into account any exceptional circumstances such as counterparty risk, order size or client instructions. 

 

There were no soft commissions arrangements during the period 1st October 2019 to 31st March 2020. 

 

Foreign exchange rates 

 

The following foreign exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency USD at 31 March 

2020: 

  
 

31 March 2020 30 September 2019

Australian Dollar 0.6121 0.6745

Brazilian Real 5.1866 4.1654

Canadian Dollar 1.4234 1.3240

China Yuan Renminbi 7.0931 7.1384

Chilean Peso 852.3200 793.6508

Czech Koruna 24.96835 23.6801

Danish Krone 6.8008 6.8485

Euro 1.09725 1.0902

Hong Kong Dollar 7.7509 7.8394

Hungarian Forint 328.7355 307.2510

Indian Rupiah 75.65125 70.8688

Indonesian Rupiah 16310.0000 14195.0000

Japanese Yen 107.9289 108.0750

Malaysian Ringgit 4.3200 4.1870

New Mexican Peso 23.45925 19.7440

New Taiwan Dollar 30.2415 31.0245

New Turkish Lira 6.59025 5.6465

Norwegian Krone 10.501 9.0860

Philippines Peso 50.8600 56.5051

Polish Zloty 4.1535 4.0091

Russian Ruble -                                            64.8825

Singapore Dollar 1.4239 1.3829

South African Rand 17.8600 15.1625

South Korean Won 1217.35 1196.1500

Swedish Krona 9.9077 9.8321

Swiss Franc 0.96755 0.9971

Thailand Baht 32.7825 30.5975

United Kingdom Pound 1.23995 1.2323

United States Dollar 1 1
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Total Expense Ratio (“TER”) 

 

The TER is determined on the basis of total expenses of each sub-fund divided by the average net assets of the sub-fund each month 

for the period ended 31 March 2020: 

 

   
 

 

 

  

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection -Currency Allocation Return Strategy 

Aggregate Fees

Class (GBP) J-acc 0.15%

Class (GBP) I-A1-acc 0.84%

Class (USD hedged) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (GBP) Q-acc 0.92%

Class (EUR hedged) I-A1-acc 0.85%

Class (EUR hedged) Q-acc 0.96%

Class (GBP) U-B-acc 0.19%

Class (SEK hedged) I-A1-acc 0.84%

Class (SEK hedged) I-A3-acc 0.73%

Class (SEK hedged) P-acc 1.67%

Class (EUR hedged) I-A3-acc 0.70%

Class (USD hedged) I-A1-acc 0.81%

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Aggregate Fees

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.20%

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 0.95%

Class (CHF hedged) P-PF-acc 1.72%

Class (EUR) P-PF-acc 1.72%

Class (GBP hedged) P-PF-acc 1.73%

Class (SGD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.72%

Class (USD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.72%

Class (AUD hedged) P-PF-acc 1.71%

Class (CHF hedged) I-B-acc 0.19%

Class (USD hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.97%

Class (GBP hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.96%

Class (CHF hedged) Q-PF-acc 0.96%

Class (EUR) K-1 PF-acc 1.41%

Class (EUR) I-A1 PF-acc 0.86%

Class (USD hedged) F-PF-acc 0.77%

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund

Aggregate Fees

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.26%

Class (EUR) U-B-acc 0.26%

Class (EUR) I-A1-PF-acc 0.90%

Class (EUR) Q-PF-acc 1.03%

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Aggregate Fees

Class (USD) I-A1-acc 0.94%

Class (USD) I-A2-acc 0.89%

Class (EUR) I-A2-acc 0.89%

Class (USD) I-A3-acc 0.83%

Class (EUR) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (USD) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (USD) K-1-acc 1.38%

Class (GBP) P-acc 1.91%

Class (USD) P-acc 1.92%

Class (SGD) P-acc 1.92%

Class (GBP) Q-acc 0.97%

Class (USD) F-acc 0.84%

Class (USD) Q-acc 0.97%

Class (GBP) I-B-acc 0.18%

Class (SGD) Q-acc 0.97%

Class (USD) I -A3-PF-acc 0.23%

Class (EUR) Q-acc 0.96%
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Securities financing transactions regulation 

 
Article 13 of Regulation (EU) 2015/2365 on transparency of securities financing transactions (SFTs) and of reuse and amending 

Regulation (EU) No 648/2012, requires UCITS investment companies to provide the following information on the use made of 

SFTs. 

 

Securities Financing Transactions Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2015/2365) (“SFTR”) came into force on 12 January 2016 and, 

amongst other requirements, introduces new disclosure requirements in the Company's financial statements published after 13 

January 2017 detailing the Sub-Fund's use of securities financing transactions and total return swaps. As a result, additional 

disclosures have been included in this appendix. 

 

Below is the market value of assets engaged in securities financing transactions as at 31 March 2020. The assets which are 

engaged in securities financing transactions at this date are total return swaps, in the form of Contracts for Difference 

(“CFDs”).The Funds do not engage in securities lending, or repo transactions. 

 

Below is the market value of assets engaged in securities financing transactions as at 31 March 2020 based on a commitment 

amount of €10,068,871 in absolute terms. 

 

Fund Name Amount EUR 
% of net assets as at 31 

March 2020 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund (2,144,112) (1.29%) 

 

The following table details the Counterparty for the Contracts for Difference held by UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Equity 

Opportunity Long Short Fund 

 
Counterparty Name /  

Financial Institutions 

 

Country of Counterparty 

Contracts for Difference Market 

Value as at 31 March 2020 

Transaction cost for the period 

ended 31 March 2020 

Bank of America Merrill Lynch United States of America                                           (2,449,069) 523,565 

Morgan Stanley  United States of America                                                304,957 50,285 

 

The Contracts for Difference are settled bi-laterally. 

 

The following table provides an analysis of the maturity tenor of the Contracts for Difference held by the Fund as at 31 March 

2020: 

 
Maturity tenor USD 

Less than one week - 

One day to one week - 

One week to one month - 

One month to three months - 

Three months to one year - 

Above one year - 

Open maturity (2,144,112) 
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Securities financing transactions regulation (continued) 

 

The following table provides an analysis of the type, currency, and quality of collateral pledged as at 31 March 2020. 

 

Type of asset pledged as Collateral 

Collateral 

Currency Investment Grade 

Below Investment 

Grade Not Rated Amount EUR 

 Cash                                                                       USD - - - 2,464,708 

      

Below is the market value of assets engaged in securities financing transactions as at 31 March 2020 based on a 

commitment amount of €6,151,021 in absolute terms. 

 

   Fund Name Amount EUR 
% of net assets as at 31 March 

2020 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – Global Equity Long Short Fund (3,618,144) (5.17%) 

      

The following table details the Counterparty for the Contracts for Difference held by UBS (Irl) Investor Selection – 

Global Equity Long Short Fund 

 
Counterparty Name /  

Financial Institutions 

 

Country of Counterparty 

Contracts for Difference Market 

Value as at 31 March 2020 

Transaction cost for the period 

ended 31 March 2020 
Bank of America Merrill Lynch United States of America                                (3,572,510) 142,668 

UBS United States of America                                    (45,634) - 

 

The Contracts for Difference are settled bi-laterally. 

 

The following table provides an analysis of the maturity tenor of the Total Return Swaps held by the Fund as at 31 March 2020. 

 
Maturity tenor EUR 

Less than one week - 

One day to one week - 

One week to one month - 

One month to three months - 

Three months to one year - 

Above one year - 

Open maturity (3,618,144) 

 
The following table provides an analysis of the type, currency, and quality of collateral pledged as at 31 March 2020. 

Type of asset pledged as Collateral 

Collateral 

Currency Investment Grade 

Below Investment 

Grade Not Rated Amount EUR 

Cash                                                                       USD - - - 4,267,239 
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Top 20 purchases during the period 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 

   
 

  
 

 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy

Description Quantity Price Value in GBP

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 03/30/20 30,000,000          99.66                29,896,795           

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 04/20/20 30,000,000          99.64                29,892,510           

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 04/27/20 30,000,000          99.70                29,910,857           

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 05/11/20 30,000,000          99.67                29,902,395           

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 05/26/20 80,000,000          199.33              79,729,922           

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 06/01/20 85,000,000          199.31              84,704,157           

UK TSY 3 3/4% 2020 3.750% 09/07/20 95,000,000          305.33              96,734,950           

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Description Quantity Price Value in EUR

UBS Select Money Mk Eur-M 158,800               199.21              15,817,565

Accenture Plc-Cl A 20,487                 2,302.67           3,552,110

Unilever Plc 60,461                 170.07              3,073,937

Nippon Telegraph & Telephone 82,700                 14,027.31         3,043,765

Enel Spa 427,314               21.58                3,023,058

Edwards Lifesciences Corp 13,907                 925.39              2,840,241

Baidu Inc - Spon Adr 25,300                 990.41              2,775,144

Abbott Laboratories 34,834                 527.42              2,775,129

Legrand Sa 36,942                 292.36              2,689,513

Sherwin-Williams Co/The 5,191                   1,695.43           2,622,642

Charter Communications Inc-A 5,297                   2,039.46           2,607,082

Danone 37,689                 272.51              2,584,482

Mondelez International Inc-A 48,160                 174.52              2,521,520

Intuit Inc 10,244                 2,397.76           2,460,085

Eiffage 24,532                 298.40              2,433,412

Toyota Motor Corp 37,000                 15,622.50         2,427,020

Novo Nordisk A/S-B 42,031                 1,271.83           2,385,518

Aristocrat Leisure Ltd 112,616               102.85              2,357,080

Paypal Holdings Inc 22,740                 227.26              2,351,730

Sandvik Ab 140,590               174.18              2,325,012

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

Description Quantity Price Value in EUR

UBS Lux Money Market-Eur-Uxa 564                      20,477.56         5,776,988             

Infineon Technologies Ag 72,324                 51.13                1,284,337             

On Semiconductor Corp 83,273                 71.72                976,555                

Nec Corp 25,300                 12,725.18         897,678                

Alcon Inc 20,732                 94.44                895,339                

Vmware Inc-Class A 7,031                   395.05              877,614                

Ptc Inc 14,286                 194.21              875,361                

Xilinx Inc 9,758                   255.98              798,922                

Expedia Group Inc 12,398                 127.58              768,393                

Palo Alto Networks Inc 7,322                   543.00              765,897                

Jtower Inc 34,090                 11,446.63         754,593                

Liveramp Holdings Inc 33,316                 198.04              752,247                

Laboratory Crp Of Amer Hldgs 5,781                   465.48              732,010                

Softbank Group Corp 19,500                 8,109.09           666,442                

Sap Se 5,796                   215.27              664,184                

Mowi Asa 28,025                 446.50              624,048                

Apache Corp 97,669                 84.16                609,421                

Jabil Inc 26,159                 23.93                578,092                

Universal Display Corp 4,478                   133.94              553,727                

Galapagos Nv 2,719                   354.68              549,740                
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Top 20 purchases during the period 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 (continued) 

 

  
 

 Top 20 sales during the period 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Description Quantity Price Value in USD

Tata Consultancy Svcs Ltd 2,827,765            109,322.49       (82,922,808)          

China Merchants Bank-H 14,834,500          1,423.81           (75,520,079)          

Gree Electric Appliances I-A 7,820,852            868.90              (71,397,023)          

Tencent Holdings Ltd 1,188,100            5,236.81           (57,744,861)          

Alibaba Group Holding-Sp Adr 263,001               3,076.76           (55,498,215)          

Mercadolibre Inc 69,294                 11,245.27         (45,801,465)          

Yandex Nv-A 1,009,000            900.59              (45,182,473)          

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufac 4,072,000            3,513.35           (43,611,321)          

Samsung Electronics Co Ltd 827,119               509,719.31       (40,640,551)          

Merrill-Cw21 Kweichow Mout 225,317               160.95              (36,265,650)          

Sk Hynix Inc 367,864               910,776.08       (28,540,757)          

Hdfc Bank Limited 1,778,952            12,850.18         (26,855,549)          

Ping An Insurance Group Co-H 2,254,500            943.37              (25,541,550)          

Tal Education Group- Adr 445,700               432.21              (24,510,344)          

Astra International Tbk Pt 55,216,500          137,096.36       (23,330,070)          

Bank Mandiri Persero Tbk Pt 39,672,800          74,725.48         (21,607,806)          

Lukoil Pjsc-Spon Adr 213,675               634.99              (20,424,757)          

Cimb Group Holdings Bhd 16,445,429          197.51              (20,312,928)          

Axis Bank Ltd 1,893,345            6,569.19           (19,262,090)          

Naspers Ltd-N Shs 114,920               19,751.79         (19,216,702)          

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Currency Allocation Return Strategy

Description Quantity Price Value in GBP

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 05/26/20 10,000,000          99.95                9,995,326             

UK TREASURY BILL GBP 0.000% 06/01/20 20,000,000          99.94                19,988,653           

UK TSY 3 3/4% 2020 3.750% 09/07/20 25,000,000          101.64              25,410,000           

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Equity Opportunity Long Short Fund

Description Quantity Price Value in EUR

UBS Select Money Mk Eur-M 179,800               199.30              17,916,502

Comcast Corp-Class A 76,578                 351.91              3,061,014

Safran Sa 21,858                 280.81              3,025,484

Softwareone Holding Ag 139,532               157.09              2,872,701

Air Products & Chemicals Inc 12,812                 455.43              2,737,331

Allianz Se-Reg 14,204                 1,164.39           2,659,953

Citigroup Inc 37,293                 303.33              2,616,587

Kering 4,752                   2,174.72           2,583,500

Facebook Inc-Class A 17,172                 500.33              2,582,914

Koninklijke Philips Nv 58,805                 43.58                2,562,300

Eiffage 24,532                 103.68              2,543,228

Muenchener Rueckver Ag-Reg 9,754                   757.96              2,512,630

Yum! Brands Inc 32,607                 362.52              2,482,213

Sherwin-Williams Co/The 5,191                   2,108.42           2,426,617

Reckitt Benckiser Group Plc 33,685                 239.22              2,356,387

Paycom Software Inc 10,156                 1,879.81           2,343,359

Novozymes A/S-B Shares 51,830                 327.10              2,268,945

Hitachi Ltd 71,200                 14,996.05         2,266,685

Microsoft Corp 13,600                 689.77              2,111,684

LVMH Moet Hennessy Louis Vui 5,489                   2,096.64           2,097,526
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Top 20 sales during the period 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2020 (continued) 

  

   
 

 
 

 

 

UBS (Irl) Investor Selection - Global Equity Long Short Fund

Description Quantity Price Value in EUR

Activision Blizzard Inc 19,767                 113.58              1,053,238             

California Resources Corp 132,853               43.14                812,214                

Minebea Mitsumi Inc 41,400                 15,347.39         699,251                

Qorvo Inc 6,815                   221.73              698,840                

Skyworks Solutions Inc 5,825                   218.91              615,765                

Laboratory Crp Of Amer Hldgs 3,598                   184.97              609,666                

Avance Gas Holding Ltd 126,273               147.36              603,144                

Medicines Company 7,192                   83.93                547,389                

Teradyne Inc 8,451                   69.40                528,904                

Monolithic Power Systems Inc 3,160                   181.25              516,530                

Logmein Inc 6,483                   86.16                503,752                

Agco Corp 6,974                   78.48                496,358                

Ironwood Pharmaceuticals Inc 45,107                 12.06                492,980                

Bio-Rad Laboratories-A 1,504                   720.63              484,585                

Palo Alto Networks Inc 2,320                   454.15              480,419                

Western Digital Corp 7,587                   68.86                478,582                

Salesforce.Com Inc 3,102                   348.16              476,397                

Electronic Arts Inc 5,415                   299.34              474,391                

Allegion Plc 3,800                   256.78              463,436                

Arista Networks Inc 2,470                   205.98              458,846                

UBS Global Emerging Markets Opportunity Fund

Description Quantity Price Value in USD

Cnooc Ltd 35,101,000          188.58              55,892,903           

Bangkok Bank Public Co-Nvdr 8,046,100            3,996.95           38,676,358           

Merrill-Cw19 Kweichow Mout 225,317               160.95              36,265,650           

Tal Education Group- Adr 651,700               784.94              33,940,061           

Axis Bank Ltd 6,277,714            4,061.21           32,890,123           

Power Grid Corp Of India Ltd 12,231,994          3,763.33           32,376,343           

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufac 2,698,000            2,075.78           28,402,902           

Sk Innovation Co Ltd 217,694               3,664,585.12    27,093,394           

Prosus Nv 380,226               415.51              25,072,048           

Cimb Group Holdings Bhd 19,375,800          246.46              17,811,927           

Otp Bank Plc 300,648               100,441.79       14,069,400           

Alibaba Group Holding-Sp Adr 71,632                 955.62              13,599,816           

Sberbank 2,662,131            24.37                10,806,908           

Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine C-A 830,900               350.16              10,140,885           

Banco Bradesco Sa-Pref 1,178,022            263.18              8,939,282             

Tencent Holdings Ltd 157,400               1,437.03           7,217,709             

Samsung Electronics Co Ltd 170,643               192,600.00       6,819,882             

Ping An Insurance Group Co-H 517,000               326.64              5,433,005             

Banco Bradesco-Adr 638,337               54.72                4,985,969             

Merrill-Cw21 Kweichow Mout 28,000                 318.27              4,497,969             


